<TY °F

>

c
2
g

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE
SPECIAL MEETING

MONDAY, JANUARY 29, 2024
2:30 P.M.

2180 Milvia Street, 6th Floor, Berkeley, CA 94704 — Redwood Room
1404 Le Roy Ave, Berkeley, CA 94708 — Teleconference Location

Committee Members:

Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Sophie Hahn and Susan Wengraf
Alternate: Councilmember Ben Bartlett

This meeting will be conducted in a hybrid model with both in-person attendance and virtual
participation. If you are feeling sick, please do not attend the meeting in person.

Remote participation by the public is available through Zoom. To access the meeting remotely
using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Use URL -
https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1608158758. To request to speak, use the “raise hand”
icon on the screen. To join by phone: Dial 1-669-254-5252 or 1-833-568-8864 (Toll Free) and
Enter Meeting ID: 160 815 8758. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of
the agenda, press *9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair. Please be mindful that the meeting
will be recorded.

To submit a written communication for the Committee’s consideration and inclusion in the public
record, email policycommittee@berkeleyca.gov.

Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Agenda & Rules Committee by 5:00
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.

Pursuant to the City Council Rules of Procedure and State Law, the presiding officer may remove,
or cause the removal of, an individual for disrupting the meeting. Prior to removing an individual,
the presiding officer shall warn the individual that their behavior is disrupting the meeting and that
their failure to cease their behavior may result in their removal. The presiding officer may then
remove the individual if they do not promptly cease their disruptive behavior. “Disrupting” means
engaging in behavior during a meeting of a legislative body that actually disrupts, disturbs,
impedes, or renders infeasible the orderly conduct of the meeting and includes, but is not limited
to, a failure to comply with reasonable and lawful regulations adopted by a legislative body, or
engaging in behavior that constitutes use of force or a true threat of force.

Monday, January 29, 2024 AGENDA Page 1
Page 1


https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1608158758
mailto:policycommittee@berkeleyca.gov

AGENDA

Roll Call

Public Comment

Review of Agendas
1. Approval of Minutes: January 16, 2024

2. Review and Approve Draft Agenda:
a. 2/13/24 —6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting

i. Request from Bay Area Housing Finance Authority for presentation on
the ceremonial calendar.

3. Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal

4. Adjournments In Memory

Scheduling
5. Council Worksessions Schedule
6. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling

7. Land Use Calendar
Referred Items for Review

8. Discussion and Possible Action on City Council Rules of Decorum,
Procedural Rules, and Remote Public Comments

9. Amend Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 3.78 To Expand Eligibility
Requirements for Representatives of The Poor to Serve on The Human
Welfare and Community Action Commission
From: Councilmember Harrison (Author), Councilmember Bartlett (Co-
Sponsor)

Referred: November 13, 2023

Deadline: July 25, 2024

Recommendation: Amend Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 3.78 to expand

eligibility requirements for Representatives of the Poor to serve on the Human
Welfare and Community Action Commission, or any successor commission, to
consider the current geographic formation of poverty in Berkeley.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, (510) 981-7140

Monday, January 29, 2024 AGENDA Page 2
Page 2



Referred Items for Review
10. City Council Legislative Systems Redesign

Unscheduled ltems

11.  Modifications or Improvements to City Council Meeting Procedures
(referred by Council at the March 14, 2023 meeting)

12. Strengthening and Supporting City Commissions: Guidance on the
Development of Legislative Proposals

13. Discussion and Recommendations on the Continued Use of the Berkeley
Considers Online Engagement Portal

Items for Future Agendas
e Requests by Committee Members to add items to the next agenda

Adjournment — Next Meeting Tuesday, February 13, 2024

Additional items may be added to the draft agenda per Council Rules of
Procedure.

Rules of Procedure as adopted by Council resolution, Article Ill, C3c - Agenda - Submission of Time Critical
ltems

Time Critical Items. A Time Critical item is defined as a matter that is considered urgent by the sponsor
and that has a deadline for action that is prior to the next meeting of the Council and for which a report
prepared by the City Manager, Auditor, Mayor or council member is received by the City Clerk after
established deadlines and is not included on the Agenda Committee’s published agenda.

If the Agenda Committee finds the matter to meet the definition of Time Critical, the Agenda Committee
may place the matter on the Agenda on either the Consent or Action Calendar.

The City Clerk shall not accept any item past the adjournment of the Agenda Committee meeting for which
the agenda that the item is requested to appear on has been approved.

Written communications addressed to the Agenda Committee and submitted to the City Clerk Department
by 5:00 p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting, will be distributed to the Committee prior to the
meeting.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953 and
applicable Executive Orders as issued by the Governor that are currently in effect. Members of the City
Council who are not members of the standing committee may attend a standing committee meeting even
if it results in a quorum being present, provided that the non-members only act as observers and do not
participate in the meeting. If only one member of the Council who is not a member of the committee is
present for the meeting, the member may participate in the meeting because less than a quorum of the
full Council is present. Any member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding public
participation may be addressed to the City Clerk Department (510) 981-6900.

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION:
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a disability-related
L\‘ accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please
b contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) at

Monday, January 29, 2024 AGENDA Page 3
Page 3



least three business days before the meeting date. Attendees at public meetings are reminded that other
attendees may be sensitive to various scents, whether natural or manufactured, in products and
materials. Please help the City respect these needs.

| hereby certify that the agenda for this special meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther King
Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on Thursday, January 25, 2024.

Mid M)

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Communications

Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA, and are available upon request by contacting the City Clerk
Department at (510) 981-6908 or policycommittee@berkeleyca.qgov.

Monday, January 29, 2024 AGENDA Page 4

Page 4


mailto:policycommittee@berkeleyca.gov

01

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES

TUESDAY, JANUARY 16, 2024
2:30 P.M.

2180 Milvia Street, 6th Floor, Berkeley, CA 94704 — Redwood Room
1404 Le Roy Ave, Berkeley, CA 94708 — Teleconference Location

Committee Members:

Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Sophie Hahn and Susan Wengraf
Alternate: Councilmember Ben Bartlett

This meeting will be conducted in a hybrid model with both in-person attendance and virtual
participation. If you are feeling sick, please do not attend the meeting in person.

Remote participation by the public is available through Zoom. To access the meeting remotely
using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Use URL -
https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1608547170. To request to speak, use the “raise hand”
icon on the screen. To join by phone: Dial 1-669-254-5252 or 1-833-568-8864 (Toll Free) and
Enter Meeting ID: 160 854 7170. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of
the agenda, press *9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair. Please be mindful that the meeting
will be recorded.

To submit a written communication for the Committee’s consideration and inclusion in the public
record, email policycommittee@berkeleyca.gov.

Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Agenda & Rules Committee by 5:00
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.

Pursuant to the City Council Rules of Procedure and State Law, the presiding officer may remove,
or cause the removal of, an individual for disrupting the meeting. Prior to removing an individual,
the presiding officer shall warn the individual that their behavior is disrupting the meeting and that
their failure to cease their behavior may result in their removal. The presiding officer may then
remove the individual if they do not promptly cease their disruptive behavior. “Disrupting” means
engaging in behavior during a meeting of a legislative body that actually disrupts, disturbs,
impedes, or renders infeasible the orderly conduct of the meeting and includes, but is not limited
to, a failure to comply with reasonable and lawful regulations adopted by a legislative body, or
engaging in behavior that constitutes use of force or a true threat of force.

Tuesday, January 16, 2024 MINUTES Page 1
Page 5


https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1608547170
mailto:policycommittee@berkeleyca.gov
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
01


Roll Call: 2:35 p.m. All Present.

Public Comment — 3 speakers.

Review of Agendas

1. Approval of Minutes: January 3, 2024
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to approve the minutes of 1/3/24.
Vote: All Ayes.
2. Review and Approve Draft Agenda:
a. 1/30/24 — 6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to approve the agenda of 1/30/24 with the
changes noted below.
e Jtem 24 Council Appointments (Arreguin) — revised item submitted
e |tem 26 BAHFA Presentation (City Manager) — Move report to the Information Calendar
and schedule the presentation under Ceremonial Matters
e |tem 27 Building Emissions (City Manager) — removed from the agenda by the City
Manager
e Jtem 28 Underground Ultilities (Wengraf) — Councilmember Harrison added as a co-
sponsor; moved to Consent Calendar
o tem 29 Security Cameras (Humbert) — Scheduled for January 30 Action Calendar
Vote: All Ayes.
3. Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal
- None Selected
4. Adjournments In Memory — None
Scheduling
5. Council Worksessions Schedule — received and filed
6. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling — received and filed
7. Land Use Calendar — received and filed

Referred Items for Review

8. Discussion and Possible Action on City Council Rules of Decorum,
Procedural Rules, and Remote Public Comments
Action: 2 speakers. Discussion of potential new procedures for public comments.
Continued to next meeting.
Tuesday, January 16, 2024 MINUTES Page 2

Page 6



9. Amend Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 3.78 To Expand Eligibility
Requirements for Representatives of The Poor to Serve on The Human
Welfare and Community Action Commission
From: Councilmember Harrison (Author), Councilmember Bartlett (Co-
Sponsor)

Referred: November 13, 2023

Deadline: May 13, 2024

Recommendation: Amend Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 3.78 to expand

eligibility requirements for Representatives of the Poor to serve on the Human
Welfare and Community Action Commission, or any successor commission, to
consider the current geographic formation of poverty in Berkeley.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, (510) 981-7140

Action: Continued to next meeting.

10.  City Council Legislative Systems Redesign
Action: 2 speakers. Presentation of proposed elements of legislative process
changes. Discussion by committee. Continued to next meeting. M/S/C
(Arreguin/Hahn) to refer the questions in the supplemental materials to the

Budget & Finance Committee for review and response.
Vote: Ayes — Hahn, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Wengraf.

Unscheduled Items

11. Modifications or Improvements to City Council Meeting Procedures
(referred by Council at the March 14, 2023 meeting)

12.  Strengthening and Supporting City Commissions: Guidance on the
Development of Legislative Proposals

13. Discussion and Recommendations on the Continued Use of the Berkeley
Considers Online Engagement Portal

Iltems for Future Agendas
e None
Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: Ayes — Hahn, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Wengraf.

Adjourned at 3:56 p.m.

Tuesday, January 16, 2024 MINUTES Page 3
Page 7



| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the Agenda & Rules
Committee meeting held on January 16, 2024.

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Communications

Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA, and are available upon request by contacting the City Clerk
Department at (510) 981-6908 or policycommittee@berkeleyca.gov.

Tuesday, January 16, 2024 MINUTES Page 4
Page 8


mailto:policycommittee@berkeleyca.gov

02a

[ QITY 9F

>~

DRAFT AGENDA
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, February 13, 2024
6:00 PM

SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM - 1231 ADDISON STREET, BERKELEY, CA 94702
TELECONFERENCE LOCATION - 1404 LE ROY AVE, BERKELEY 94708

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — VACANT
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — MARK HUMBERT

This meeting will be conducted in a hybrid model with both in-person attendance and virtual participation. If you
are feeling sick, please do not attend the meeting in person.

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet
accessible video stream at http.//berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish _id=1244.

Remote participation by the public is available through Zoom. To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC,
Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL: <<INSERT ZOOM for GOV URL HERE>>. To
request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen. To join by phone: Dial 1-669-
254-5252 or 1-833-568-8864 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: <<INSERT MEETING ID HERE>>. If you wish to
comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair.
Please be mindful that the meeting will be recorded.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email
council@berkeleyca.gov.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953 and
applicable Executive Orders as issued by the Governor that are currently in effect. Any member of the public may
attend this meeting. Questions regarding public participation may be addressed to the City Clerk Department
(510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the Agenda.

Pursuant to the City Council Rules of Procedure and State Law, the presiding officer may remove, or cause the
removal of, an individual for disrupting the meeting. Prior to removing an individual, the presiding officer shall
warn the individual that their behavior is disrupting the meeting and that their failure to cease their behavior may
result in their removal. The presiding officer may then remove the individual if they do not promptly cease their
disruptive behavior. “Disrupting” means engaging in behavior during a meeting of a legislative body that actually
disrupts, disturbs, impedes, or renders infeasible the orderly conduct of the meeting and includes, but is not
limited to, a failure to comply with reasonable and lawful regulations adopted by a legislative body, or engaging in
behavior that constitutes use of force or a true threat of force.

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 DRAFT AGENDA Page 1
Page 9


http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244
mailto:council@berkeleyca.gov
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
02a


Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:

Land Acknowledgement Statement: The City of Berkeley recognizes that the community we
live in was built on the territory of xu¢yun (Huchiun (Hooch-yoon)), the ancestral and unceded land of the
Chochenyo (Cho-chen-yo)-speaking Ohlone (Oh-low-nee) people, the ancestors and descendants of the
sovereign Verona Band of Alameda County. This land was and continues to be of great importance to all
of the Ohlone Tribes and descendants of the Verona Band. As we begin our meeting tonight, we
acknowledge and honor the original inhabitants of Berkeley, the documented 5,000-year history of a
vibrant community at the West Berkeley Shellmound, and the Ohlone people who continue to reside in
the East Bay. We recognize that Berkeley’s residents have and continue to benefit from the use and
occupation of this unceded stolen land since the City of Berkeley’s incorporation in 1878. As stewards of
the laws regulating the City of Berkeley, it is not only vital that we recognize the history of this land, but
also recognize that the Ohlone people are present members of Berkeley and other East Bay communities
today. The City of Berkeley will continue to build relationships with the Lisjan Tribe and to create
meaningful actions that uphold the intention of this land acknowledgement.

Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the Mayor may add additional
ceremonial matters.

City Manager Comments: The City Manager may make announcements or provide information to
the City Council in the form of an oral report. The Council will not take action on such items but may
request the City Manager place a report on a future agenda for discussion.

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: Persons will be selected to address matters not on
the Council agenda. If five or fewer persons wish to speak, each person selected will be allotted two
minutes each. If more than five persons wish to speak, up to ten persons will be selected to address
matters not on the Council agenda and each person selected will be allotted one minute each. Persons
attending the meeting in-person and wishing to address the Council on matters not on the Council
agenda during the initial ten-minute period for such comment, must submit a speaker card to the City
Clerk in person at the meeting location and prior to commencement of that meeting. The remainder of the
speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be heard at the end of the agenda.

Public Comment by Employee Unions (first regular meeting of the month): This
period of public comment is reserved for officially designated representatives of City of Berkeley
employee unions, with five minutes allocated per union if representatives of three or fewer unions wish to
speak and up to three minutes per union if representatives of four or more unions wish to speak.

Consent Calendar

The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the
“Consent Calendar”, or move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Three members of the City Council
must agree to pull an item from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar for it to move to Action.
Items that remain on the “Consent Calendar” are voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items
are not discussed or acted upon at the Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent”.

No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced. At
any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and Consent items, any
Councilmember may move any Information or Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will
vote on the items remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons
who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time
the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar.

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 DRAFT AGENDA Page 2
Page 10



Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Iltems Only: The Council will

take public comment on any items that are either on the amended Consent Calendar or the Information

Calendar. Speakers will be entitled to two minutes each to speak in opposition to or support of Consent
Calendar and Information Items. A speaker may only speak once during the period for public comment

on Consent Calendar and Information items.

Additional information regarding public comment by City of Berkeley employees and interns: Employees
and interns of the City of Berkeley, although not required, are encouraged to identify themselves as such,
the department in which they work and state whether they are speaking as an individual or in their official
capacity when addressing the Council in open session or workshops.

Consent Calendar

1.

Amending the Miscellaneous CalPERS Contract to (a) Eliminate PEPRA Cost
Sharing for Unrepresented Employees (b) Add Paramedic and Limited Term
EMT to Safety Category

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,895-N.S. amending
the contract between the Board of Administration, California Public Employees’
Retirement System, and the City Council for the City of Berkeley (a) pursuant to
California Government Code Section 20516 to eliminate the cost share contributions
made on behalf of the City by PEPRA members of the Unrepresented Employees
group, and (b) pursuant to California Government Code Section 20434 to add the
Paramedic and Limited Term Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) classifications
under the Safety category.

First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Harrison, Hahn, Humbert, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett, Wengraf.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Aram Kouyoumdjian, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800

City of Berkeley’s 2024 State and Federal Legislative Platform

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the City of Berkeley’'s 2024 State
and Federal Legislative Platform.

Financial Implications: See report.

Contact: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 DRAFT AGENDA Page 3
Page 11



Consent Calendar

Amendments to the Regulations for Alternate Commissioners

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a resolution removing the now dissolved Police Review
Commission from the list of designated commissions on which Alternate
Commissioners may serve; expanding the list of designated commissions by adding
the following five commissions: Community Health Commission, Environment and
Climate Commission, Parks, Recreation, and Waterfront Commission, Transportation
and Infrastructure Commission, and Zero Waste Commission; adding a new
requirement for temporary appointments made to any quasi-judicial commissions to
two business days prior to the meeting; and rescinding Resolution No. 67,205-N.S.
Financial Implications: None

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Modifying the 2024 City Council Meeting Schedule

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution modifying the City Council regular meeting
schedule for 2024, with starting times of 6:00 p.m., to reschedule the April 16, 2024
regular meeting to April 2, 2024.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Grant Application: National Endowment for the Arts Grant for up to $150,000
From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to submit a grant application to the National Endowment for the Arts (NEA)
to receive up to $150,000 for a Civic Arts grant program totaling $300,000 to be
regranted to nonprofit organizations for arts and cultural programming in the City of
Berkeley in Fiscal Year 2026; to accept the grant if awarded; and to execute any
resulting grant agreements and any amendments.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Eleanor Hollander, Economic Development, (510) 981-7530

Contract: Masako Miki Public Artwork Commission for Aquatic Park Pathway
Wall

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract and any necessary amendments with artist Masako Miki for an amount not
to exceed $69,000 for a public art commission of a ceramic tile mural on the 42’-long
curved wall located along the San Francisco Bay Trail west of the intersection of
Addison Street and Bolivar Drive in Aquatic Park.

Financial Implications: Cultural Trust Fund - $69,000

Contact: Eleanor Hollander, Economic Development, (510) 981-7530

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 DRAFT AGENDA Page 4
Page 12



Consent Calendar

7. Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible
Issuance After Council Approval on February 13, 2024
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached
to staff report) that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the
requesting department or division. All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold
will be returned to Council for final approval.
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $90,000
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
8. Dissolution of the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission and the
Peace and Justice Commission; and, establishment of the Berkeley
Community Action Agency Commission
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance to: 1. Repeal Chapter 3.68,
Peace and Justice Commission; and, 2. Repeal Chapter 3.78, Human Welfare and
Community Action Commission; and, 3. Establish the Berkeley Community Action
Agency Commission with Chapter 3.70
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
9. Contract: Traditions Behavioral Health for Psychiatry Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to execute a contract with vendor Traditions Behavioral Health to provide
psychiatry services through June 30, 2027 in an amount not to exceed $1,379,400.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
10. Contract: CompuCom Systems, Inc. for Professional Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract with CompuCom Systems, Inc. for professional services for an amount not
to exceed $300,000 through December 31, 2024.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Kevin Fong, Information Technology, (510) 981-6500
Tuesday, February 13, 2024 DRAFT AGENDA Page 5

Page 13



Consent Calendar

11. Recommendation on Public Safety/Crime Prevention for Women
From: Commission on the Status of Women
Recommendation: That Council refer to the Council Public Safety Policy Committee
to develop plans to implement public safety crime prevention programs to address
the current rising crime against women, particularly older women. These plans
should include a budget referral to the Council Budget and Finance Committee for
consideration in the June budget process.
These plans should include:
1. Developing a plan of safety escorts modeled on the Respect-BART Escorts
Program passed by Council in 2003 to address the rash of muggings on Berkeley
BART paths (North Berkeley and Ashby). As in that plan, where $40,500 was
approved by Council, the Council Public Safety Policy Committee should identify the
current amount of monies needed for funding for this newly developed 2024 plan and
Council refer to the June budget process. These safety escorts should be available
throughout the entire community of Berkeley upon request. The Council Public
Safety Committee should also identify if a RFP need be issued for this purpose;
2. Develop a plan to engage Berkeley community ambassadors working under the
Downtown Berkeley Association, Telegraph Business Improvement District and any
similar ambassador programs to provide safety escort services upon request through
the business districts they serve and nearby residences that can be reached by foot;
3. Explore if the City ride-share funded program, Go-Go Grandparent, should be
expanded and in what form to provide ride shares for women concerned about their
safety. Consider cost share, if necessary, for some women and working with the ride-
share companies to ensure that they watch for the woman to safely reach her door
before leaving; Consider the feasibility of lifting age or disability requirements.
Identify a budgetary recommendation to be directed to the Council Budget and
Finance Committee.
4. Develop a City-wide community forum targeted towards women with a special
emphasis on safety and crime prevention for older, vulnerable women. This meeting
should be led by the Berkeley Police Department with participation by other safety-
related community resources and moderated by an official proposed by the Council
Public Safety Committee. The Committee shall recommend that the forum be hybrid,
both Zoom and in person. The Committee shall also discuss how City-wide
promotion of this public safety crime prevention forum shall be conducted.
5. Consult with the Berkeley Police Department to provide data and other information
identifying geographic locations which are high priority for safety escorts. Consult
with Berkeley Police Department to secure other information as to where women are
most at safety risk and what hours safety escorts, and other recommendations as
stated above, be best utilized. The Berkeley Police Department shall provide this
information at a Council Public Safety Committee meeting.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Okeya Vance-Dozier, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7100

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 DRAFT AGENDA Page 6
Page 14



Action Calendar

The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action. For items moved to the Action
Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on the item during the
Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again during one of the Action Calendar public
comment periods on the item. Public comment will occur for each Action item (excluding public hearings,
appeals, and/or quasi-judicial matters) in one of two comment periods, either 1) before the Action Calendar
is discussed; or 2) when the item is taken up by the Council.

A member of the public may only speak at one of the two public comment periods for any single Action
item.

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak line up at the podium, or use the "raise
hand" function in Zoom, to determine the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten
(10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the
Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are
permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four
minutes. The Presiding Officer may, with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue,
allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue.

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council.

Action Calendar — Scheduled Public Comment Period

During this public comment period, the Presiding Officer will open and close a comment period for each
Action item on this agenda (excluding any public hearings, appeals, and/or quasi-judicial matters). The
public may speak on each item. Those who speak on an item during this comment period may not speak a
second time when the item is taken up by Council.

Action Calendar — Public Hearings

Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments. For certain hearings, this is
followed by five-minute presentations each by the appellant and applicant. The Presiding Officer will
request that persons wishing to speak line up at the podium, or use the "raise hand" function in Zoom, to be
recognized and to determine the number of persons interested in speaking at that time.

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker.
Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more
than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing both sides of an
issue allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue.

When applicable, each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning
the subject of the hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the
commencement of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the City
Clerk.

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 DRAFT AGENDA Page 7
Page 15



Action Calendar — Public Hearings

12. Appeal of Landmarks Preservation Commission Decision — Approval of
Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP22022-0005 for 1960 San Antonio
Avenue/645 Arlington Avenue- Spring Estate
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt a
Resolution affirming the Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC) decision to
approve a Structural Alteration Permit (SAP) to restore the terrace, remove the non-
historic building addition, and repair railings and walkways of the Spring mansion;
demolish the detached, non-historic garage and construct a new ten-car garage;
demolish and replace the non-historic driveway, retaining walls and stairs on the east
side of the property; construct a new, detached pool house; excavate and install a
new swimming pool; and complete landscape improvements at a City Landmark
residential property in the Hillside neighborhood, contingent upon rehabilitation of the
historic gymnasium building, and dismiss the appeal.

Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400

Action Calendar — Old Business

13. RFP for Development of West Berkeley Service Center (Continued from January
16, 2024)
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Kesarwani (Author),
Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Wengraf (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP)
for the development of the city-owned West Berkeley Service Center, (1900 Sixth
Street), to permit site acquisition and construction of a 100-percent affordable
housing project with the following key features: -Space on the ground floor of the
building for administrative offices, community space and supportive services as
currently provided by the City; -Maximizing the number of units under the existing
zoning Mixed Use-Residential (MU-R) in conjunction with state law AB 1763 (2019); -
A mix of unit sizes, including studios, one-bedroom, and two-bedroom units; -Require
RFP applicants to include a plan for services provision and integration for the
population(s) they propose to serve; -A preference for serving seniors and adults
with mental health conditions while maintaining flexibility to serve other populations
based on availability of funding.
The City Manager should also consider the feasibility of the following elements in the
program design: -Universally designed housing for older adults with a portion of the
units for assisted living and memory care; -A board and care facility with a minimum
of 20 beds including space for staff and services; -Explore available federal, state,
regional, local and private funding sources to finance the construction of a housing
project, including with the potential target populations.
The issuance of an RFP should be timed to happen soon after funding for the
development has been identified.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 DRAFT AGENDA Page 8
Page 16



Action Calendar — Policy Committee Track Items

14. Incentives for Equitable and Affordable Middle Housing
From: Councilmember Taplin (Author), Councilmember Bartlett (Author)
Recommendation:
1. Refer to the City Manager and the Planning Commission to study and return to
Council potential amendments to the Berkeley Municipal Code and General Plan to
further the City of Berkeley’s goals for affirmatively furthering fair housing with
additional incentives for affordability and ownership opportunities, including first-time
homebuyers and households inheriting properties from relatives, in “Middle Housing”
zoning categories. At a minimum, consider: a. A local density bonus for on-site
affordable housing for Middle Housing, including additional dwelling units, Floor Area
Ratio, lot coverage, reduced or waived fees, and ministerial approval for projects with
on-site deed-restricted units affordable to Low- and Moderate-Income households,
and incentives for first-time homebuyer opportunities. Consider regulating maximum
buildable width and/or depth to disincentivize higher-cost dwelling units. b. A density
bonus for additional Accessory Dwelling Units in exchange for the inclusion of deed-
restricted ADUs on-site affordable to Low- and Moderate-Income households. To the
extent feasible, incorporate scope of study with Council’s referral to develop an
Efficiency Unit Ordinance. c. A density bonus for Middle Housing residential projects
in which an owner-occupier receives a minimum of in-kind compensation for the
parcel with on-site ownership unit(s) in the project. Consider standard form
agreements and other technical assistance. d. Pre-approved designs for bonus-
compliant projects. e. Seek to leverage consistency and compatibility with state and
regional resources including the Bay Area Housing Finance Authority (BAHFA),
MTC/ABAG, AC Boost, and the CA Dream For All program.
2. Refer to the Fiscal Year 25/26 biennial budget process $250,000 for technical
assistance.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120

15. Arts and Community Storefront Activation
From: Councilmember Bartlett (Author)
Recommendation: Creating a plan/strategy to leverage Berkeley’s arts community
and cultural resources to incentivize the occupation of empty storefronts.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, (510) 981-7130

16. Establishing a Black Arts and Culture District in the Adeline Corridor
From: Councilmember Bartlett (Author)
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution designating the Adeline Corridor as the Black
Arts and Culture District. Include members of Healthy Black Families and Equitable
Black Berkeley in the Planning Committee to emphasize community involvement and
focus on arts, culture, and well-being for South Berkeley residents. Establish a Black
Arts and Culture Center.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, (510) 981-7130

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 DRAFT AGENDA Page 9
Page 17



Information Reports

17. Small Sites Program Update
From: City Manager
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

18. Bay Area Housing Finance Authority and 2024 Regional Affordable Housing
Bond
From: City Manager
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Public Comment — Items Not Listed on the Agenda

Adjournment

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be
barred. 2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project.

Archived indexed video streams are available at:
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas.
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m.

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names,
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City
Clerk Department for further information.

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda
will be made available for public inspection at the public counter at the City Clerk Department located on
the first floor of City Hall located at 2180 Milvia Street as well as posted on the City's website at
https://berkeleyca.gov/.

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at:
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas
and may be read at reference desks at the following locations:

City Clerk Department - 2180 Milvia Street, First Floor
Tel: 510-981-6900, TDD: 510-981-6903, Fax: 510-981-6901
Email: clerk@berkeleyca.gov

Libraries: Main — 2090 Kittredge Street,
Claremont Branch — 2940 Benvenue, West Branch — 1125 University,
North Branch — 1170 The Alameda, Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch — 1901 Russell

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 DRAFT AGENDA Page 10
Page 18


https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas
https://berkeleyca.gov/
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION:

This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location.

To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD)
at least three business days before the meeting date.

Attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various scents,
whether natural or manufactured, in products and materials. Please help the City respect these needs.

&

Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet. In addition, assisted
listening devices for the hearing impaired are available from the City Clerk prior to the meeting, and are to
be returned before the end of the meeting.

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 DRAFT AGENDA Page 11
Page 19



Page 20



Page 1 of 102

O2a.11

[ CITY ©F

Commission on the Status of Women

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 13, 2024

To: Mayor and Members of the Berkeley City Council
From: Commission on the Status of Women
Submitted by: Carole Marasovic, Chair, Commission on the Status of Women

Subject: Recommendation on Public Safety/Crime Prevention for Women

RECOMMENDATION:

That Council refer to the Council Public Safety Policy Committee to develop plans to
implement public safety crime prevention programs to address the current rising crime
against women, particularly older women. These plans should include a budget referral
to the Council Budget and Finance Committee for consideration in the June budget
process.

These plans should include:

1. Developing a plan of safety escorts modeled on the Respect-BART Escorts Program
passed by Council in 2003 to address the rash of muggings on Berkeley BART paths
(North Berkeley and Ashby). As in that plan, where $40,500 was approved by Council,
the Council Public Safety Policy Committee should identify the current amount of
monies needed for funding for this newly developed 2024 plan and Council refer to the
June budget process. These safety escorts should be available throughout the entire
community of Berkeley upon request. The Council Public Safety Committee should also
identify if a RFP need be issued for this purpose;

2. Develop a plan to engage Berkeley community ambassadors working under the
Downtown Berkeley Association, Telegraph Business Improvement District and any
similar ambassador programs to provide safety escort services upon request through
the business districts they serve and nearby residences that can be reached by foot;

3. Explore if the City ride-share funded program, Go-Go Grandparent, should be
expanded and in what form to provide ride shares for women concerned about their
safety. Consider cost share, if necessary, for some women and working with the ride-
share companies to ensure that they watch for the woman to safely reach her door
before leaving; Consider the feasibility of lifting age or disability requirements. Identify a
budgetary recommendation to be directed to the Council Budget and Finance
Committee.

Page 21


NSalwan
Typewritten Text
02a.11


Page 2 of 102

Recommendation on Public Safety/Crime Prevention for Women Consent Calendar
February 13, 2024

4. Develop a City-wide community forum targeted towards women with a special
emphasis on safety and crime prevention for older, vulnerable women. This meeting
should be led by the Berkeley Police Department with participation by other safety-
related community resources and moderated by an official proposed by the Council
Public Safety Committee. The Committee shall recommend that the forum be hybrid,
both Zoom and in person. The Committee shall also discuss how City-wide promotion of
this public safety crime prevention forum shall be conducted.

5. Consult with the Berkeley Police Department to provide data and other information
identifying geographic locations which are high priority for safety escorts. Consult with
Berkeley Police Department to secure other information as to where women are most at
safety risk and what hours safety escorts, and other recommendations as stated above,
be best utilized. The Berkeley Police Department shall provide this information at a
Council Public Safety Committee meeting.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS:

In recent years, crime has risen including crime during broad daylight. Women have
been frequently targeted, many of which have been older women. Women need to feel
safe in our community. Safety escorts will reduce crime. The Commission Chair has
consulted with former Councilmember Linda Maio, who sponsored the 2003 item, who
confirmed that muggings greatly diminished under the 2003 BART Escorts Program
following implementation.

A City-wide community forum will make Berkeley residents more aware of the crime and
precautions that need to be taken.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal impacts shall be identified by the Council Public Safety Committee. The figure of
$40,500 earlier budgeted is obviously outdated as it is a figure from 20 years ago. In
addition, that $40,500 exclusively covered safety escorts down BART paths and during
limited hours. This recommendation broadens safety escorts coverage to a City-wide
basis. Substantial funding is needed to fully implement these plans. However, the safety
of our Berkeley residents is critical.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental effects, climate impacts, or sustainability
opportunities associated with the subject of this report.

BACKGROUND
On November 15, 2023, the Commission on the Status of Women voted as follows:

That Council refer to the Council Public Safety Policy Committee to develop plans to
implement public safety crime prevention programs to address rising crime against
women, particularly older women as stated in this recommendation in the

Page 22



Page 3 of 102

Recommendation on Public Safety/Crime Prevention for Women Consent Calendar
February 13, 2024

aforementioned 5 points. That Council refer plans developed based on the proposed
recommendations for the safety of women, particularly older women, to the June budget
process.

M/S/C: Marasovic, Arora

Ayes: Marasovic, Simon, Posey, Ortiz-Cedeno, Arora, Oliver
Noes: None.

Abstain:

Absent: Boyd

LOA: Seshagiri, Goodwin

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Safety is critical to our community. The crime landscape has changed where crime
victims are targeted in broad daylight more commonly than in the past. Women have
been frequently targeted with many victims older and more vulnerable. These safety
issues require awareness, education and implementation of crime prevention models
beyond police response after the fact.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
To leave the situation as is and not provide needed crime prevention protections for
women.

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager takes no position on this recommendation.

CONTACT PERSON

Okeya Vance-Dozier, Community Services Specialist Il, Office of the City Manager
(510) 981-7239

Carole Marasovic, Chair, Commission on the Status of Women, (510) 225-5060

Attachments:

BART RESPECT Escorts program contract (2003)
BART RESPECT Escorts program contract (2006)
Resolution No. 57,737-N.S.

City Council Meeting Minutes, November 1, 1994
Resolution No. 57,832-N.S.

Resolution No. 58,160-N.S.

ogakhwNE

Page 23



Page 4 of 102

Recommendation on Public Safety/Crime Prevention for Women Consent Calendar
February 13, 2024

7. Resolution No. 58,636-N.S.
8. Resolution No. 59,012-N.S.
9. Resolution No. 62,124-N.S.
10. Resolution No. 63,166-N.S.

Page 24



Page 5 of 102

CON--RACT CONTRACT NUMBER: 6085
S--ATUS CMS ID CODE: CZTTS
:ORM CONTRACT TYPE: Community Agency
CONTRACT AMOUNT: $40,500
VENDOR: Berkeley Boosters Association
ADDRESS: 1642 University Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94703
PROJECT MANAGER: Douglas Hambleton DEPT: POLICE
BART Safety Escort, winter months, commute hours, Ashby
KEYWORDS: station, North Berkeley station, RESPECT Team, 10/27/2003,
03/05/2004, FY03-04
| cOUNCIL Resolution No: | Ordinance No: CgleszOr;e;4
AUTHORIZATION: T
62’ 124 O BMC 7.12.030
06/24/03 Council Authorization
07/01/03 Contract Start
DATES: 06/30/04 Contract Expiration
08/19/03 Received from Auditor
08/20/03 Vendor's Copy sealed and Mailed
COMMENTS:
RETENTION CHECKLIST
v CON1 8/20 | Clerk's Index 700 Form
] PON 2 8/20 | CMS Log In Promissory Note
| DATE 6/30/09 8/20 | CMS Log Out
Indefinite
| REVIEWED BY: Danielle K. Muller DATE:  (8/20/03

G:\RECORDS\Contracts\Forms & Templates\Contract Status Form.doc

Page 25



Page 6 of 102

EXPEEGPITURE CONTRACT REVIE

CMS No.: CZTTS > “NEW CONTRACTS”

(To be filled in by department)

27ORM

Contract No.: (Q 0605

(To be filled in by auditor)

CONTRACTOR NAME: B -

This contract package contains: -
. . . -] - = ‘
o 59 3 }
S 25l & |
S ] 8 S :
*The Vital Record contract MUST be in a folder. E 2z g & i
*QOptional: In lieu of folders, the Department and Vendor copies may be assembled with an 2 :
Acco-fastener. ‘
I ! Scope of Services l X WW/
l MJ, Payment Provisions l X QWW
; 3 H Evidence of Competitive Solicitation or CM Waiver %‘ U ” ! - f
( [ Workforce Composition (businesses with 5 or more employees) H X H [:I H ’
1 5 H Nuclear Free Berkeley Disclosure , fL, X iW W,,._,,
{ 6 ” Oppressive States Disclosure (Exception: Community-based, non-profit organizations) f! X H ] H ] )
l l Living Wage Certification (Exception: Construction contracts)**LWO form revised 8/02 U X ” H D 3
! 8 Il Certification of Compliance with Equal Benefits Ordinance **EBQ form revised 7/02 !l X H.,_ D “ D«x
[ l Certificate(s)_of Insurance or Waiver (originals, not copzes) E] X H H D i
{ 10 ‘l Insurance Endorsement , H X H [ O
{ 11 { Council Resolution No.: 62,12/1/ N.S. ﬂ X IW! W ..........

l 12 E} Form 700, Statement of Ecowb/mic Interests (consultant contracts only) e f L,,WDWA W IW)

d copy attached)
0O

_ Requisition No.: sw ‘6‘@”\1)}’ (

Was there an advance payment made?| Yes X No

Routing and signatures:
I certify that the contract package is complete and accurate.

&o/cé

28 ¢- SBco

Contract amount; $ 40

: ,500 \(
If so, Purchase Order No.—m

8/1(/°3

Phone No.

1. Project Manager Department

ate

2. Mﬁ of Englngerln nstruction contracts only) ate /
) Db 5 751-5526™ 811/
3. Dept dmm Offié€i/Accounting Date
% $57-S700 &/ 11 /o5
4, artept Hea D?/
§// a,éa
5. Date
6. Contract Compliance Officer (for construction contracts only) Date

Routing continues to the following persons, who sign directly on the contract:

7. City Manager (Will not sigi\the contract unless all signatures and dates appear above.)
8. City Auditor (Initials _. )
9. City Clerk (Initials )

RECEIVED

AUG 1 5 2003
City Audito:

Page 26
January 2003



b Page 7 of 102 .~ °

COMMUNITY AGENCY CONTRACT

This contract is executed on July 1, 2003 and effective on July 1, 2003, between the CITY OF BERKELEY, a
Charter City organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, ("CITY"), and Berkeley Boosters -
Association, a non-profit corporation under the laws of the State of California, doing business at
1642 University Ave, Berkeley, CA. ("CONTRACTOR").

WHEREAS, the City has entered into a grant contract with the United States Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD), for a Community Development Block Grant under the Housing and Community
Development Act of 1974, as amended (CDBG) and/or United States Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) for an Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG) under the Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance Act of 1988, as
amended and/or Government Code Section 12725 et. seq., as amended, and 42 United States Code (USC) 9901 et.seq.,
as amended, the Community Services Block Grant Act as amended (CSBG), and/or a Shelter Plus Care Grant (S+C)
under the Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance Act of 1988, as amended, and under said grant contract(s) and/or
through the use of'its General Funds including Measure O Homeless Funds, the City is undertaking certain activities;
and

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage Contractor to render certain assistance for such undertaking.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Contractor mutually agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1, SCOPE OF SERVICES

A. Contractor agrees to perform all those services described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part
hereof, in accordance with the terms and conditions stated therein.

B. Contractor shall provide all necessary supplies, equipment, materials, clerical and all other services required
for satisfactory performance of this contract as described in Exhibit(s) A attached hereto and made a part hereof in
accordance W1th the terms and conditions stated therein.

ARTICLE 2. TIME PERIOD OF CONTRACT

Contractor shall begin performance under this contract on July 1, 2003, and shall continue until June 30, 2004,
unless earlier terminated as provided in Article 37 below.

ARTICLE 3, PAYMENT

A. This contract is utilized in connection with programs which receive funding from any one or combination of
federal and local sources, including but not limited to, CDBG, ESG, CSBG, Shelter Plus Care, and/or the City of
Berkeley General Fund.

B. City agrees to pay Contractor its expenses incurred in the performance of this agreement, not to exceed
$40,500 in accordance with the Budget and Method of Payment attached hereto as Exhibit B, and made a part hereof,
in accordance with the terms and conditions stated therein. Payment by City shall be subject to receipt of Contractor's
invoice(s) and supporting documentation of expenditures. At the beginning of the contract period, City will inform
Contractor of necessary procedures for billing and required documentation.

C. Fiscal Year 2004: Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the obligation of the City to pay the contract sum
above is contingent upon the provision of funds from the State of California to the City’s General Fund for the Fiscal
Year 2004 which begins in July 2003 and extends through June 2004. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that if the

‘ July 2003

" Page 27
R N

2

[



e Page 8 of 102 Q

State of California provides less monies to the City then was provided in Fiscal Year 2002, the City’s General Funds
will be adversely impacted and thus the City’s ability to continue paying the above sums will be adversely impacted. In
this event, the total not to exceed amount of this contract may be reduced unilaterally in the sole discretion of the City at
any time during Fiscal Year 2004. The City may, but is not required to, allow the Human Welfare and Community
Action Commission, the Homeless Commission, or other appropriate review body to consider the size of this reduction
and make recommendations to the City Council for final approval.

D. Fiscal Year 2005: Continued payment to the eligible contractors for Fiscal Year 2005 which begins in July
2004 and extends through June 2005, the second year of the contract term, is subject to the contingencies set forth
below:

1)  Berkeley General Fund Category: City agrees to pay contractor the same sum specified in subsection B of
Article 3 for services provided in Fiscal Year 2004, unless such sum is reduced pursuant to the terms
provided for in subsection C. Payment of the same or reduced sum in the second year of this contract is
contingent upon the following conditions precedent: a) City receives the same or greater level of funding
from the State of California as it réceived in Fiscal Year 2004; b) satisfactory performance of the
Contractor's duties under this contract during the prior year; and c) in the Fiscal Year 2005 budget, the
City Council appropriates the same or greater amount of money from the General Fund as it did in Fiscal
Year 2004 for the purpose of funding this contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that if the State
of California provides less funds to the City in Fiscal Year 2005 then was provided in Fiscal Year 2004,
the contract amount the City will pay Contractor may be reduced pursuant to the terms described in
subsection C of this Article. "

2) CDBG Public Services Category Funding: City agrees to pay contractor the same sum specified in
subsection B of Article 3 for services provided in Fiscal Year 2004. Payment of the same sum under the
second year of this contract is contingent upon the following conditions precedent: a) City receives the
same or greater level of funding from HUD as it received in Fiscal Year 2004, and b) satisfactory
performance of the Contractor's duties under this contract during the prior year. Contractor acknowledges
and agrees that if City receives less funding from HUD in Fiscal Year 2005, the amount City will pay
Contractor will be reduced accordingly in the sole discretion of the City, with the reduction being prorated
across all agencies receiving contracts under this same funding category.

3) All Other CDBG Categories, S+C and ESG: Contract terms greater than one year are not authorized;
therefore, the Contractor must reapply for funding.

4) CSBG and City of Berkeley General Funds: City agrees to pay contractor the same sum specified in
subsection B of Article 3 for services provided in Fiscal Year 2004, unless such sum is reduced pursuant to
the terms provided for in subsection C. In addition, payment of the same or reduced sum the second year
of this contract is contingent upon the following conditions precedent: a) City receives the same or greater
level of funding from HUD as it received in Fiscal Year 2004; b) City receives the same or greater level of
funding from the State of California as it received in Fiscal Year 2004; ¢) in the Fiscal Year 2005 budget,
the City Council appropriates the same amount of money from the General Fund as it did in Fiscal Year
2004 for the purpose of funding this contract; and D) Contractor satisfactorily performs duties under this
contract during the prior year. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that if City receives less funding from
the State of California and/or from HUD in Fiscal Year 2005, the amount the City will pay Contractor may
be reduced. Contractor further acknowledges and agrees that if funding from the State of California or
HUD to the City is reduced, the reduced contract sum for this contract will be reconsidered by the Human
Welfare and Community Action Commission, the Homeless Commission, or other appropriate review
body which will make recommendations to the City Council for final approval.

ARTICLE 4, BUDGET MODIFICATION

July 2003

Page 28



SRR T

. @ Page 9 of 102 @

A. A10% variation among budget line item categories will be allowed, provided the total expenditure under all
line items does not exceed the total contract amount.

B. A variation among budget line items exceeding 10% will be allowed at Contractor's discretion, provided
written approval is granted by the Manager of Program Planning, Management and Budget (PPMB) Division or his/her
designee prior to submission of Contractor's invoice, and provided that the contract total is not exceeded.

C. Expenditures covered by unauthorized budget modifications will be subject to disallowance by City and
repayment by Contractor.

ARTICLE 5, METHOD OF PAYMENT MODIFICATION

A. Modifications in the Method of Payment requested by Contractor will be allowed provided the total contract
amount is not exceeded and provided prior written approval is granted by the Manager of PPMB or his/her designee.

B. Modifications in the Method of Payment that exceed the total contract amount will require City Council
approval. .

ARTICLE 6, RECORDS

A. Contractor agrees to keep -all necessary books and records, including property, personnel, and financial
records, in connection with the operations and services performed under this agreement, in accordance with 24 CFR
Part 570 and OMB Circular A-110.

1) Records of nonexpendable property shall be maintained in accordance with the procedures set forth in
Attachment N of Office of Management and Budget Circular A-102, and shall contain any additional
information which may be required by City.

2) Financial records of contract funds shall be kept separately and not éo-mjngled with records of other funds.

3) Solely for the purpose of verifying compliance with the terms of this Contract Contractor shall maintain
the following types of records

a) job description, minimum qualifications, and compensation for all positions funded under this contract;

b) time sheets or comparable documentation for all personnel compensated with contract funds (such
records shall clearly shows the time spent on contract activities).

4)  Contractor assures that for contracts exceeding one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), to the best of its
knowledge, it is fully complying with the earning assignment orders of all employees, and is providing the
names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the Employment Development
Department as set forth in the Child Support Compliance Act of 1998, subdivision (1) Public Contract
Code 7110.

B. Contractor agrees to maintain racial, gender, head of household, age, income, family size, and neighborhood
residence data, as may be required under the law, showing the extent to which these categories of persons have
participated in, or benefited from the contract activities.

C. Contractor agrees to maintain employee and applicant records in a confidential manner to assure compliance

with the Information Practices Act of 1977, as amended, and the Federal Privacy Act of 1974, as amended. _
- July 2003

Page 29



g Page 10 of 102 g

D. Contractor agrees to maintain and preserve such records during the period from start of contract performance
until three (3) years from the submission of the final performance report or until the audit, referred to in Article 39, is
conducted and Contractor receives City notification that-said audit has been accepted whichever is later, except as
follows:

1) Records that are subject of audit findings shall be retained for five years after such findings have been
resolved.

2) Records for non-expendable property which was acquired with contract funds shall be retamed for three
~ years after its final disposition.

3) Records for any person displaced as a result of contract activities shall be retained for three years after the
contract activities have been completed or the person has received his/her final relocation payment,
whichever is later.

- 4) Records pertaining to each real property acquisition shall be retained for five years after settlement of the
acquisition, or until disposition of the applicable relocation records in accordance with paragraph (3) of
this section, whichever is later.

E. The Secretary of HUD, the Comptroller General of the United States, the State Department of Economic
Development, the City, or any of their duly authorized representatives shall have access to and right to examine such
records related to this contract during this period.

ARTICLE 7, REPORTS AND ON-SITE REVIEWING

A. Reports: Contractor agrees to submit periodic program status and financial reports to City in a timely
manner, and other reports and information as City determines are necessary to carry out its responsibilities in
accordance with 24 CFR 570 and OMB Circular A-110. :

B. On-Site Performance Review: Authorized representatives of HUD, the State of California, and the City shall
have the opportunity to review Contractor's performance under this contract at the sites where such performance is
being conducted. This review shall be in accordance with 24 CFR Part 570 and OMB Circular A-110. Such review is
solely for the purpose of verifying that the Contractor is providing the quality and quantity of services specified in this
contract and includes:

1)  Observation of service delivery and training, as agreed upon by Contractor, and administrative activities in
support of this contract.

2) Interview with Contractor personnel and staff currently involved in project operations.
3) Inspection of construction work in progress and upon completion.

4)  Validation of source data used in the preparation of reports to the City, provided this does not result in any
breach of client confidentiality and is mutually agreed upon.

5) Interviews with clients, when such interviews will not result in a breach of client confidentiality and are
mutually agreed upon.

6) In\}entory of personal property acquired with contract funds.

July 2003

Page 30



[

. O Page 11 of 102 ’
Refusal or failure by Contractor to provide reviewing opportunities as described herein within ten (10) working days

after notice from the City constitutes a violation of this contract and is cause for contract termination.

ARTICLE 8, FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system in accordance with OMB Circulars A-87, A-110
and A-122, which provide for:

A. Records that identify adequately the source and application of funds for contract activities.

B. Effective control over and accountability for all funds, property, and other assets. Contractor shall
adequately safeguard all such assets and shall assure that they are used solely for authorized purposes.

C. Comparison of actual outlays with budgeted amounts for contract funds.

D. Procedures to minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds from the City and disbufsement by
the Contractor, whenever funds are advanced by the City. CDBG funds shall be placed in an interest bearing account,
where appropriate.

E. Procedures for determining the reasonableness, allowability, and allocability of costs.

F. Accounting records that are supported by source documentation.

G A systématic method to assure timely and appropriate resolution of audit findings and recommendations.

ARTICLE 9, REAL PROPERTY

A. Definition: Real property refers to land including improvements, structures and appurtenances thereto,
excluding movable machinery and equipment.

B. Use and Disposition: Use and disposition of real property acquired or improved, partly or wholly with
contract funds in excess of $25,000, shall be governed by requirements prescribed by HUD or its successor, and City,
including the following:

1)  Title to real property shall vest in Contractor subject to the condition that Contractor shall use the real
property for the authorized purpose of this contract until (5) five years after the expiration of this contract
or such period of time as determined by the City and stated in Exhibit A.

2) Contractor shall obtain approval from the City for use of the real property for activities other than those
authorized by this contract when Contractor determines that the property is no longer needed for such
purpose. Use for other activities shall be limited to those carried out under other federal grant programs, or
under programs that have purposes consistent with those authorized for support by City.

3) If disposed of in a manner resulting in the Contractor being reimbursed in the amount of the current fair
market value of the property, the Contractor shall reimburse the City in the amount of the current fair
market value less any portion acquired or improved with non-CDBG funds. Such reimbursement is not
required after the period of time specified in B (1) above.

ARTICLE 10, TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY

All procurement transactions funded under this contract for tangible personal property shall be conducted in a
) July 2003

Page 31



@ v Page 12 of 102 O

manner consistent with HUD fegulations in OMB Circular A-110, Attachment N.
A. Definitions
1) Personal Property: Personal property refers to all property, except real property, which is acquired

with contract funds. Tangible property has physical existence. Intangible property has no physical
existence.

2) Non-expendable Personal Property: Non-expendable personal property means tangible personal
property, acquired with contract funds, having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition
cost of $300 or more per unit,

3) Expendable Personal Property: Expendable personal property refers to all tangible personal property
acquired with contract funds other than non-expendable property.

B. Acquisition

1) Purchase of personal property exceeding $300 per item and not delineated in Exhibit B shall require
prior approval from the City.

2) Contractor shall submit documentation to City for each item of non-expendable property at the time
such property is acquired. Documentation shall demonstrate proof of purchase and indicate date of
acquisition, cost, and description of the item, and any other information which may be required by the

City.
C. Identification, Inventory, and Maintenance

1) Contractor shall conduct annual inventories to verify the existence, condition, current utilization, and-
future need for non-expendable property. Contractor shall submit a written report on each inventory
conducted by Contractor to the City. Such report shall account for any differences between
Contractor's property records and the inventory findings.

2) Contractor shall ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss, damage, and theft of property. In case
such property is stolen or lost, Contractor shall immediately notify the Police Department, obtain a
written police report, and notify the City within three (3) working days of discovering stolen or lost

property.
D. Use and Disposition
1) Non-Expendable Property
a. Title to non-expendable personal property having a unit acquisition cost of less than $1,000 shall vest
in the Contractor. For non-expendable personal property having a unit acquisition price of $1,000 or

more, HUD/State/ City reserves the right to transfer the title to HUD/ State/City or to a third party
when such third party is otherwise eligible under existing statutes.

b. Contractor shall use the property for the project or program for which it is acquired as long as needed,
whether or not the project or program continues to be supported by Government funds. When no
longer needed for the original project/program, Contractor shall use the property in connectlon with

other Government sponsored activities in the following order of priority:

July 2003

Page 32



L

e Page 13 of 102 @

(1) Activities sponsored by HUD/State/City.
) Activities sponsored by other Government agencies

¢. During the time the property is held for use on the project or program for which it was acquired,
Contractor may make the property available for use on other projects or program if such other use does
not interfere with the work on the project or programs for which it was originally acquired.

d. When Contractor no longer needs the property as provided in (b) above, the property rhay be used for
other activities as follows:

O Non-expendable property with a unit acquisition price of less than $1,000 may be used by
Contractor for other activities without reimbursement to the Government, or may be sold and
‘the proceeds retained by the Contractor.

(2) Non-expendable property with a unit acquisition price of $1,000 or more may be retained by
Contractor for other uses provided compensation is made to HUD/State/City or its
successor(s). If Contractor has no further need for the property and the property has further
use value, Contractor shall request and follow disposition instructions from the City.

'2) Expendable Property

a. Title to expendable personal property shall vest in the Contractor upon acquisition. Upon termination
of the contract, Contractor shall conduct an inventory to determine the amount of unused expendable
personal property on hand which was acquired with contract funds. If there is a residual inventory of
such property exceeding $1,000 in total aggregate fair market value, upon termination or completion
of the contract activities and if the property is not needed for any other Government sponsored project
or program, the Contractor shall retain the property for use on non Government sponsored activities or
sell it, but in either case, compensate the Government for its share.

ARTICLE 11, INTANGIBLE PROPERTY

A. Invention and Patents: Any discovery or invention arising out of or developed in the course of work aided by
this contract shall be promptly and fully reported to the City. Contractor shall request City to determine whether patent
protection on such invention or discovery should be sought, and to determine how the rights in the invention or
discovery, including rights under the patent thereon, shall be allocated and administered to protect the public interest.

B. Copyrights: Except as otherwise provided in this contract, Contractor is free to copyright any books,
publications, or other copyrightable materials arising out of or developed during the course of work aided by contract
funds, but the City, State and HUD reserve a royalty-free, non- exclusive and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or
otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, the work for government purposes.

C. Publications: Books, publications, and other printed materials resulting from and developed in the course of
work aided by this contract, whether copyrighted or not, shall acknowledge the support of HUD/State/City funds by he
City. Five (5) copies of each such publication are to be furnished to the City as the City may reasonably require.

D. Publicity: Any publicity generated by Contractor for the project funded pursuant to this contract, during the
term of this contract or for one year thereafter, will make reference to the contribution of the City in making the project
possible. The words "City of Berkeley " and the specific funding source will be explicitly stated in any and all pieces of
publicity, including but not limited to fliers, press releases, posters, brochures, pubic service announcements,
interviews, and newspaper articles.

Tuly 2003

Page 33



PR

e Page 14 of 102 @

The City's staff will be available whenever possible at the request of Contractor to assist Contractor in generating
publicity for the project funded pursuant to this contract. Contractor further agrees to cooperate with authorized City
officials and staff in any City-generated publicity or promotional activities undertaken with respect to this project.

ARTICLE 12, PROCUREMENT STANDARDS

A. All procurement transactions funded under this contract shall be conducted in a manner that provides, to the
maximum extent practical, open and free competition consistent with HUD Regulations at 24 CFR Part 570, OMB
Circular A-110 Attachment O, and Executive Orders 11625, 12138, 12432,

B. Contractor shall make positive efforts to use small business and minority and women-owned business sources
of supplies and services (see also Article 19) and business concerns located in Berkeley or owned in substantial part by
Berkeley residents (see also Article 17).

C. For procurement of services, supplies, or other property, Contractor shall use one of the following
procurement methods: :

1) $1 to $999. Prices may be solicited by phone and selection determined by Contractor.
2) $1,000 to $5,000. Three or more prices may be solicited by phone and selection determined by
Contractor. :
©3) $5,000 to $14,000.Three quotations must be received by phone, FAX or letter and documented.
Selection is determined by Contractor.
4) $15,000 to $25,000.Three or more written bids must be requested with a specific due date. Award is made to
the lowest responsible bidder.
5) $25,000 and Over.

a). Competitive Sealed Bids - In competitive bids (formal advertising), sealed bids are publicly solicited
and a firm fixed-price contract (lump sum on unit price) is awarded to the responsible bidder whose
bid, conforming with all the material terms and conditions of the invitation for bids, is lowest in price.

b). Competitive Negotiation - In competitive negotiation, proposals are requested from a number of
sources and the Request for Proposal is publicized, negotiations are normally conducted with more
than one of the sources submitting offers, and either a fixed price or cost-reimbursable type contract is
awarded, as appropriate. Competitive negotiations may be used if conditions are not appropriate for
the use of formal advertising.

D. Contractor shall maintain records sufficient to detail the significant history of a procurement costing $15,000
or more (310,000 or more for CDBG). These records shall include, but are not necessarily limited to, information
pertinent to the following: rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection or
rejection and the basis for the cost or price.

ARTICLE 13, RELEASE, INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

A. Release: Contractor, upon final payment of amount due under this contract, less any credits, refunds, or
rebates due to City, releases and discharges City from all liabilities, obligations and claims arising from this contract.

B. Indemmification: Contractor, for itself, and its heirs, successors, and assigns, agrees to release, indemnify,
hold harmless, and defend City, its officers, agents, volunteers, and employees, from and against any and all claims,
demands, liability, economic loss of any type, damages, lawsuits, or other actions for damage or injury to persons or
property arising out of or in any way connected with the Contractor's operations under this contract, or the performance

July 2003

Page 34

@



“ Page 15 of 102 @

of this contract by Contractor or its officers, employees, partners, directors, subcontractors, or agents.
C. Insurance:

1) The Contractor shall maintain at all times during the performance of this contract, a commercial general
liability insurance policy with a minimum occurrence coverage in the amount of $1,000,000; an automobile liability
insurance policy (if applicable) in the minimum amount of $1,000,000; and, if any licensed professional performs
services under this contract, a professional liability insurance policy in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 to cover any
claims arising out of Contractor's performance of services under this contract. Said insurance, except professional
liability, shall name the City, its officers, agents, volunteers, and employees as additional insureds and shall provide
primary coverage with respect to the City. All said insurance policies shall provide that the insurance carrier shall not
cancel, terminate, or otherwise modify the terms and conditions of said policies except upon thirty (30) days prior
written notice to the City; shall be evidenced by the original Certificate of Insurance. If Contractor is to perform
construction work under this contract, Contractor shall also provide an endorsement in the form of the City's form
Endorsement, or the insurance carrier’s standard form Endorsements evidencing the required coverage; and shall be
approved as to form and sufficiency by the Employee Relations Officer.

2) If the commercial general liability insurance referred to above is written on a Claims Made Form, then,
following termination of this Agreement, coverage shall survive for a period of not less than five years. Coverage shall
also provide for a retroactive date of placement coinciding with the effective date of this contract.

3) If Contractor employs any person, it shall carry workers compensation and employers liability insurance
and shall provide a certificate of insurance to the City. The workers compensation insurance shall provide that the
insurance carrier shall not cancel, terminate, or otherwise modify the terms and conditions of said insurance except
upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City; shall provide for a waiver of any right of subrogation against City
to the extent permitted by law; and shall be approved as to form and sufficiency by the City's Employee Relations
Officer.

4) Contractor shall forward all insurance documents to City of Berkeley contract monitor.

5) Construction Contracts Only: If the budgeted costs of construction activities funded by this contract, as
delineated in Exhibit B, exceed $100,000, Contractor shall comply with HUD's bonding policies and requirements as
set forth in OMB Circular A 110 Attachment B. ;

6) Contractor shall not store hazardous materials or hazardous waste within the City of Berkeley without
the proper permit from the City. If a release of hazardous materials or hazardous waste that cannot be controlled occurs
in connection with the performance of this contract, contractor shall immediately notify the Berkeley Police Department
and the City's Health Protection Office.

ARTICLE 14, CONFORMITY WITH LAW AND SAFETY

A. Contractor shall observe and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes and regulations of
governmental agencies, including federal, state, municipal, and local governing bodies, having jurisdiction over the
scope of services or any part thereof, including all provisions of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1979 and all
amendments thereto, and all applicable federal, state, municipal, and local safety regulations. All services performed by
Contractor must be in accordance with these laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations. Contractor shall release, defend,
indemnify, and hold City, its officers, agents, volunteers, and employees harmless from any and all damages, liability,
fines, penalties, and consequences from any noncompliance or violation of such laws, ordinances, codes and
regulations.

B. Ifa death, serious personal injury, or substantial property damage occurs in connection with the performance
' July 2003

Page 35



Page 16 of 102 @

of this Agreement, Contractor shall immediately notify the City's Employee Relations Officer by telephone. Contractor
shall promptly submit to City a written report, in such form as may be required by City, of all accidents which occur in
connection with this contract. This report shall include the following information: (1) name and address of the injured
or deceased person(s), (2) name and address of Contractor's subcontractor, if any, (3) name and address of Contractor's
liability insurance carrier, and (4) a detailed description of the accident and whether any of City's equipment, tools, o
materials were involved. : - ’

ARTICLE 15, CONFLICT OF INTEREST PROHIBITED

A. In accordance with Government Code section 1090, BMC 3.64, and Berkeley City Charter section 36,
neither Contractor nor any person who is an employee, officer, director, partner, or member of contractor, or immediate
family member of any of the preceding shall have served as either an elected officer, an employee, or a Board,
Committee, or Commission Member of the City of Berkeley, who has formally or informally influenced the making of
this contract. '

B. In accordance with Government Code section 1090 and the Political Reform Act, Government Code sections
87100 et seq., no person who is a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or consultant of the Contractor or
immediate family member of any of the preceding shall make or participate in a decision made by the City of Berkeley
or a board or commission thereof, if it is reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have a material effect on any
source of income, investment, or interest in real property of that person or Contractor.

C. Interpretation of this section shall be governed by the definitions and provisions used in the Political Reform
Act, Government Code sections 87100 et seq., and the regulations manuals, and codes adopted thereunder, Government

Code section 1090, BMC 3.64, and section 36 of the City of Berkeley Charter.

ARTICLE 16, CONSULTANTS TO SUBMIT STATEMENTS OF ECONOMIC INTEREST

The City's Conflict of Interest Code, Resolution No. 59,372-N.S., as amended, requires every consultant to
disclose conflicts of interest by filing a Statement of Economic Interest (Form 730). Consultants agree to file such
statements with the City Clerk at the beginning of the contract period and upon termination of the Contractor's service.

ARTICLE 17, ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES FOR LOCAL BUSINESSES AND LOW INCOME RESIDENTS

To the greatest extent feasible, Contractor shall offer opportunities for training and employment to lower income
Berkeley residents, and patronize and award contracts for work in connection with this contract to business concerns
which are located in Berkeley or owned in substantial part by Berkeley residents. Such economic opportunities shall be
provided for in accordance with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, and
implementing regulations issued at 24 CFR Part 135.

ARTICLE 18, PROGRAM INCOME

A. Service Fees: Income earned from fees charged for services provided under this contract shall be considered
additional revenue to be expended by Contractor during this contract period for additional services rendered as a result
of such revenue. Should Contractor be unable to expend all fee-related revenue during the contract period, such
revenue shall be considered carryover funds available for the successive CDBG year.

B. Facility Use Fees: Receipts derived from the operation of a public work or facility, the construction of which
was assisted with contract funds, do not constitute program income.

C. Interest on Advances: Interest eamed in excess of $100 per fiscal year on advance of contract funds shall be
remitted to the City.

July 2003
10
Page 36



s 4 Page 17 of 102 @

D. Proceeds from Sale of Personal Property: Proceeds from the sale of personal property acquired with contract
funds shall be subject to the requirements set forth in Attachment N of the Office of Management and Budget Circular
A-110, "Property Management Standards." See also Article 10.D.

E. Real Property: Proceeds from the lease of real property acquired or improved, in whole or in part, with
CDBG funds in excess of $25,000 shall be determined by the City. See Article 9.B.

ARTICLE 19, DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED

Contractor hereby agrees to comply with the provisions of City Ordinance No. 5876-N.S., as amended from time
to time, attached hereto as Exhibit C, and made a part hereof. In the performance of this agreement, Contractor agrees
as follows;

A. Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, ancestry, national origin, age (over 40) sex, pregnancy, marital status, disability, sexual orientation, or AIDS.
This requirement shall apply to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. ‘ '

B. No person shall, on the grounds of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, age (over 40), sex,
pregnancy, marital status, dlsablllty, sexual orlentatlon or AIDS, be excluded from participation in the performance of
this contract. :

C. Inthe sale, lease or other transfer of land acquired, leased or improved with assistance provided under this
contract, the deed or lease for such transfer shall contain a covenant prohibiting discrimination upon the basis of race,
color, religion, sex, national origin, sexual preference, age or disability, in the sale, lease or rental, or in the use of
occupancy of such land or any improvements erected or to be erected thereon.

D. Inthe performance of this contract, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Title II of
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and any amendments thereto. Contractor shall further observe and comply
with all applicable federal, state, municipal and local laws, ordinances, codes and regulations that prohibit
discrimination against individuals with disabilities or require that individuals with disabilities are not excluded from
participating in or receiving benefits, services or activities of the City.

If Contractor is or becomes a "public accommodation" as defined in Title IIT of the Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990, Contractor shall observe and comply with all applicable provisions of the Act and any amendments
thereto, and all applicable federal, state, municipal and local laws, ordinances, codes and regulations prohibiting
discrimination on the basis of disability in the full and equal enjoyment of goods, services, facilities, privileges,
advantages, or accommodations offered by the Contractor. All Contractor's activities must be in accordance with these
laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations, and Contractor shall be solely responsible for complying therewith.

E. Contractor shall permit City access to records of employment, employment advertisement, application forms,
EEO-1 forms, and any other documents which, in the opinion of City are necessary to monitor compliance with the
non-discrimination provisions, and will, in addition, fill-out in a timely fashion, forms supplied by City to monitor these
non-discrimination provisions, to the extent required by HUD Regulations at 24 CFR Part 570.

F. For Construction Contracts Only

If the budgeted cost of construction activities funded by this contract exceeds $10,000, as detailed in Exhibit B,
Contractor shall comply with all requirements of Executive Order 11246, Equal Employment Opportunity, as amended
July 2003

11

Page 37



Page 18 of 102

by Executive Orders 11375 and 12086 attached hereto as Exhibit D, and made a part hereof.

ARTICLE 20, LOBBYING PROHIBITION

Contractor shall comply with Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code stipulating that no Government funds shall be
spent for lobbying and agrees to disclose names of persons and amounts paid with non-Government funds to influence
decisions by Congress or Executive Branch agencies.

~ ARTICLE 21, DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

Contractor shall provide a drug-free workplace and establish a drug-free awareness program in compliance with
the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 and the required certification.

ARTICLE 22, NUCLEAR FREE BERKELEY

Contractor agrees to comply with BMC 12.90, the Nuclear Free Berkeley Act, as amended from time to time.

ARTICLE 23, BERKELEY LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE

A. Contractor hereby agrees to comply with the provisions of the Berkeley Living Wage Ordinance,
B.M.C. Chapter 13.27. 1f Contractor is currently subject to the Berkeley Living Wage Ordinance, as indicated by
the Living Wage Certification form, attached hereto, Contractor will be required to provide all eligible employees
with City mandated minimum compensation during the term of this Contract, as defined in Chapter 13.27, as well
as comply with the terms enumerated herein. Contractor expressly acknowledges that, even if Contractor is not
currently subject to the Living Wage Ordinance, cumulative contracts, grants or other monies received by the City
may subject Contractor to the requirements under B.M.C. Chapter 13.27 in subsequent contracts.

B. If Contractor is currently subject to the Berkeley Living Wage Ordinance, Contractor shall be required
to maintain monthly records of those employees providing service under the Contract. These records shall include
the total number of hours worked, the number of hours spent providing service under this Contract, the hourly rate
paid, and the amount paid by Contractor for health benefits, if any, for each of its employees providing services
under the-Contract. These records are expressly subject to the auditing terms described in Article 39.

C. If Contractor is currently subject to the Berkeley Living Wage Ordinance, Contractor shall include the
requirements thereof, as defined in B.M.C. Chapter 13.27, in any and all subcontracts in which Contractor engages
to execute its responsibilities under this Contract. All contractor employees who spend 50% or more of their
compensated time engaged in work directly related to this Contract shall be entitled to a living wage, as described
in BM.C. Chapter 13.27 and herein. All subcontractor employees who spend 25% or more of their compensated
time engaged in work directly related to this Contract shall be entitled to a living wage, as described in B.M.C.
Chapter 13.27 and herein.

D. Contractor's failure to comply with this Section shall subject Contractor to termination of this Contract
pursuant to Article 36.

ARTICLE 24, BERKELEY EQUAL BENEFITS ORDINANCE

A. Contractor hereby agrees to comply with the provisions of the Berkeley Equal Benefits Ordinance,
B.M.C. Chapter 13.29,

B. If Contractor is currently or becomes subject to the Berkeley Equal Benefits Ordinance, Contractor
agrees to provide the City with any records the City deems necessary to determine compliance with this provision.
July 2003

12
Page 38



@ Page 19 of 102 @

These records are expressly subject to the auditing terms described in Article 39 of this contract.

C. Contractor’s failure to comply with this Section shall subject Contractor to termination of this Contract
pursuant to Article 37.

ARTICLE 25, RELIGIOUS ACTIVITY PROHIBITED

There shall be no religious worship, instruction or proselytization as part of or in connection with the
performance of this contract.

ARTICLE 26, POLITICAL ACTIVITY PROHIBITED

None of the funds, materials, property or services contributed by the City under this contract shall be used in the
performance of this contract to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office, to support or defeat any
ballot measure, for any partisan political activity, or for the conduct of political activities in contravention of Chapter 15
of Title 5, United States Code.

ARTICLE 27, COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES

Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency or other organization has been employed or retained to
solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement of understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or
contingent fee. For breach or violation of this warrant, the City shall have the right to annul this contract without
liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the compensation, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such
commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fees.

ARTICLE 28. LABOR STANDARDS (Construction Contracts Only)

A. Except as herein provided, all laborers and mechanics employed by Contractor or by Contractor's
subcontractors in the construction, alteration or repair, including painting and decorating of projects, building, and work
which is assisted with contract funds, shall be paid at rates not less than those currently determined by the Secretary of
Labor, in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 276a-276a-5), and shall receive overtime
compensation in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act
(40 U.S.C. 327-333), and the Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with all regulations issued pursuant to these
Acts and with other applicable federal laws and regulations pertaining to labor standards to the extent required by HUD
Regulations at 24 CFR Part 570. Any additional contract provisions required by federal statutes to be inserted herein,
are attached hereto as Exhibit E and made a part hereof. ' :

B. This provision does not apply to:
1) The rehabilitation of residential property with less than eight dwelling units.
2) Projects where the total budgeted cost of construction activities is less than $2,000.
3) Emergency Shelter Grant Funds

ARTICLE 29, FLOOD DISASTER PROTECTION

Use of contract funds for acquisition or construction in an area identified as having special flood hazards shall be
subject to the requirements of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234), including the mandatory
purchase of flood insurance in accordance with the requirements of Section 102(a) of said Act.

July 2003
13
Page 39



@ : Page 20 of 102 @

ARTICLE 30, CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT

Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Clean Air Act as amended (42 U.S.C. 1957 et seq.), and the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.), and the regulations thereunder (40 CFR Part
15 and 40 CFR Part 61).

ARTICLE 31, LEAD-BASED PAINT

Contractor shall comply with the lead-based paint requirement of 24 CFR Part 5 Subpart B issued pursuant to
the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4801 et seq.). Such requirements prohibit the use of lead-
based paint for construction, rehabilitation, or modemization of residential structures; mandate the elimination of
immediate lead-based paint hazards in residential structures assisted with CDBG funds; and require the notification of
the hazards of lead-based paint poisoning to purchasers and tenants of residential structures constructed prior to 1950
and assisted with CDBG funds.

ARTICLE 32, ARCHITECTURAL BARRIERS ACT OF 1968

Any building or facility, excluding privately owned residential structures, designed, constructed, or altered with
contract funds shall comply with the requirements of the " American Standards Specifications for Making Building and
Facilities Accessible to, and Usable by the Physically Handicapped,” Number A-117, I-R 1971, subject to the
exceptions contained in 41 CFR Subpart 101-19.604, issued pursuant to the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, 42 CFR
U.S.C. 4151, as amended.

ARTICLE 33, ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW RECORD (ERR)

The City will work with the Contractor to prepare the ERR. The ERR will cover areas such as historic
preservation, floodplain management, éndangered species, air quality, toxic chemicals, noise control, among others, in
compliance with HUD Regulations at 24 CFR Part 58. These regulations cover all CDBG-funded projects. No funds
will be disbursed under this contract until the ERR has been accepted and approved by HUD.

ARTICLE 34, RELOCATION

A. Contractors engaging in acquisitioﬁ/rehabilitatibn activities must comply with the Uniform Relocation Act
(URA), as amended, and applicable guidelines at 49 CFR Part 24 and 24 CFR Part 511, as well as the State of
California Government Code 7265.3, as amended, and City policies.

B. Any person displaced by rehabilitation, financed partially or wholly with contract funds, shall be offered the
option of relocation after completion of the rehabilitation in the dwelling from which the person was displaced, and

shall be provided the benefits due in accordance with State of California Government Code 7265.2, as amended.

ARTICLE 35, NON-PROFIT STATUS

A. Except as herein provided, Contractor must be a non-profit corporation. Contractor shall furnish the City
with a copy of its articles of incorporation, a copy of its by-laws, and a current list of its Board of Directors. If there are
any changes in Contractor's non-profit status with the California Secretary of State, Contractor shall notify City within
five (5) working days of the notice of said change. Loss of non-profit status or failure to maintain a status of good
standing with the Secretary of State is cause for termination of the contract.

B. Contractor must be a neighborhood-based, non-profit organization, a small business investment company, or

a local development corporation, according to the definitions set forth in 24 CFR 570.204(s), to be eligible to undertake
economic development or neighborhood revitalization activities pursuant to 24 CFR 570.204(c). Contractor shall
July 2003

14
Page 40



5o

@ Page 21 of 102 0

furnish the City with document(s), evidencing proof of such status. Ifthere are any changes in such status, Contractor
shall notify City within five (5) working days of said change. Failure to maintain eligible organizational status as
required by Government regulations is cause for termination of the contract. '

'C. This provision may not necessarily apply to Contractor if Contractor is undertaking only rehabilitation
activities pursuant to 24 CFR 570.202 or economic development activities pursuant to 24 CFR 570.203.

ARTICLE 36, CHANGES

A. The terms and conditions of this contract shall not be altered or otherwise modified except upon a duly
executed written amendment to this contract.

B. Contractor may request changes in the Scope of Services described in Exhibit A. Such changes, including
any increase or decrease in the amount of the Contractor's compensation (Exhibit B), require City Council approval and

must be incorporated by written amendment to this contract.

ARTICLE 37, CONTRACT TERMINATION

This contract may be terminated for cause by Contractor upon thirty (30) days prior written notice. The City
may terminate this contract in whole or in part with or without cause, which includes but is not limited to:

A. Failure, for any reason, of Contractor to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this
contract, including compliance with City, State and Federal laws and regulations and applicable directives.

B. Failure to meet the performance standards contained in Exhibit(s) A of this contract. When the City notifies
the Contractor that its contract performance is below performance specifications as outlined in the contract Exhibits, a
corrective action plan must be submitted in writing by the Contractor to the City within thirty (30) days. Failure to
achieve the performance specifications within a maximum of sixty (60) days is cause for immediate contract
termination. -

C. Improper use or reporting of funds provided under this contract. '

D. Reduction, suspension or termination of funding or grant(s) to the City from any Federal or State sources
under which this contract is made, or the portion thereof earmarked for this contract or appropriated by the City Council
for this contract. '

E. A written notice shall be deemed served upon sending said notice in a postage-paid envelope addressed to the -
other party to this contract and depositing the same with the United States Post Office with postage prepaid. For
" purposes of this contract, all notices to the City shall be addressed as follows:

City Manager

City of Berkeley

2180 Milvia Street
Berkeley, California 94704

For purposes of this contract, all notices to Contractor shall be addressed to Contractor's authorized signee as
indicated on the last page of this contract to the address indicated on page 1 of this contract.

F. If either party terminates this contract before the Contractor completes the services in Exhibit(s) A, in
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract, Contractor shall be entitled to
compensation for services performed hereunder, through and including the date of termination, but not to exceed the

July 2003

15

Page 41



;,‘ "'. v . H ’ »
Page 22 of 102 G

payment according to the rate specified in Exhibit B. Contractor shall be entitled to all reasonable costs incurred in
connection with such services. In no event will the amount paid exceed the full amount in Article 3 of this contract.

ARTICLE 38. CLOSE OUT PROCEDURES

Contractor shall prepare and submit a final invoice for final claims no later than sixty (60) days after the
termination of this contract. The final invoice shall cover all claims for costs incurred by the Contractor during the
period of the contract. All unexpended funds shall be returned to the City. Where funds are due the City, payment
should be made to CITY OF BERKELEY and must accompany the final invoice.

ARTICLE 39, AUDIT

All contractors receiving $300,000 or more in Government funds shall have their financial and compliance
records, maintained in connection with the operations and services performed under this contract, audited annually by
an independent auditing agent selected by the City. This audit will be conducted in accordance with the Single Audit
Act of 1984, Office of Management and Budget Circulars A-133 (June 30, 1997), and any other prescribed guidelines.
Contractors receiving $300,000 or more in Government funds and choosing to select their own independent auditor
shall provide the City with a copy of the audited Financial Statement which is to be prepared in compliance with OMB
Circulars A-110 and A-133 (June 30, 1997). Contractors receiving less than $300,000 in Government funds are exempt
from audit pursuant to the Single Audit Act of 1984, but records must be available for review by appropriate officials.
All contractors regardless of the amount of Government funds received, are subject to State and Local regulations.

Pursuant to Section 61 of the Berkeley City Charter, the City Auditor’s Office may conduct an audit of
Contractor’s financial, performance and compliance records maintained in connection with the operations and services
performed under this Contract. In the event of such audit, Contractor agrees to provide the City Auditor with
reasonable access to Contractor’s employees and make all such financial, performance and compliance records
available to the Auditor’s Office. City agrees to provide Contractor an opportunity to discuss and respond to any
findings before a final audit report is filed.

The City will provide Contractor with the preliminary draft of the audit report and hold a conference with
Contractor to discuss the report if any findings are noted. Contractor shall respond to all findings within ten (10)
working days after the conference. The auditing agent will then prepare its final audit report and submit it to the City
Manager. City will notify contractor of any disallowed expenses. Contractor shall make payment of disallowed
expenses to City within thirty (30) days of such notification, unless otherwise specified by the City. Failure to
reimburse the City may result in the discontinuance of any or all City contracts with Contractor and may make
Contractor ineligible for additional or further funds from the City.

ARTICLE 40, GOVERNING L AW

This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. -

ARTICLE 41, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

A. Contractor shall be deemed at all times to be an independent contractor and shall be wholly responsible for
the manner in which Contractor performs its obligations under this Agreement. Contractor shall be liable for its acts
and omissions, and those of its employees and its agents. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as creating an
employment, agency or partnership relationships between City and Contractor.

- B. Terms in this Agreement referring to direction from City shall be construed as providing for direction as to
policy and the result of Contractor's work only and not as to the means or methods by which such a result is obtained.

July 2003
16 '
Page 42



Page 23 of 102

'

C. Nothing in this Contract shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not party to this
Contract.

ARTICLE 42, CITY BUSINESS LICENSE, PAYMENT OF TAXES, TAX I.D. NUMBER

Contractor has obtained a City business license as required by B.M.C. Ch. 9.04, and its license number is written
below; or, Contractor is exempt from the provisions of B.M.C. Ch. 9.04 and has written below the specific B.M.C.
section under which it is exempt. Contractor shall pay all state and federal income taxes and any other taxes due.
Contractor certifies under penalty of perjury that the taxpayer identification number written below is correct.

ARTICLE 43, ENTIRE AGREEMENT

A. The terms and conditions of this contract and all exhibits attached hereto or documents expressly
incorporated by reference therein represent the entire contract between the parties hereto with respect to the subject
matter hereof, and this contract shall supersede any and all other prior contracts, either oral or written, regarding the
subject matter between the City and Contractor. No other contract, statement, or promise relating to the subject matter
of this contract shall be valid or binding except upon a duly executed written amendment to this contract.

B. Should any conflicts arise between the terms and conditions of this contract and the terms and conditions of
any exhibits attached hereto or documents expressly incorporated by reference therein, the terms and conditions of

Federal Regulations shall control.

ARTICLE 44, ‘OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

A. When this contract is terminated Contractor agrees to return to City all documents, drawings, photographs
and other written or graphic material, however produced, that it received from City, its contractors or agents, in
connection with the performance of its services under this contract. All materials shall be returned in the same
condition as received.

B. Allinternal work, papers, internal drawings, internal memoranda of any kind, photographs, and any written
or graphic material, however produced, prepared by Contractor in connection with its performance of services under
this contract, shall be, and shall remain after termination of this contract, the property of Contractor. Contractor may
use that material for any purpose whatsoever. However, if either party terminates this contract before Contractor
completes all services required under Article 1, the latest set of draft documents shall be and shall remain the property
of the City.. h

C. The final written product of this contract shall be the property of the City. City may use all or any part of the
product for projects other than those contemplated by this contract. Contractor shall not be liable for any improper
reuse of the product. City may also retain the original of any design documents upon request.

ARTICLE 45, SETOFFF AGAINST DEBTS

Contractor agrees that City may deduct from any payments due to Contractor any monies that Contractor owes
the City under any Ordinance, contract, or Resolution for any unpaid taxes, fees, licenses, unpaid checks, or other
amounts. :

"ARTICLE 46, RECYCLED PAPER FOR WRITTEN REPORTS

If Contractor is required by this contract to prepare a written report or study, Contractor shall use recycled paper
for said report or study when such paper is available at a cost of not more than ten percent more than the cost of virgin
paper, and when such paper is available at the time it is needed. For the purposes of this contract, recycled paper is

: July 2003

17
Page 43



% Page 24 of 102 @

paper that contains at least 50% recycled product. Ifrecycled paper is not available, Contractor shall use white paper.
Written reports or studies prepared under this contract shall be printed on both sides of the page whenever practical.

ARTICLE 47. MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEETS

A. To comply with the City's Hazard Communication Program, Contractor agrees to submit Material Safety
Data Sheets (MSDS) for all products Contractor intends to use in the performance of work under this contract in any
City facility. The MSDS for all products must be submitted to the City before commencing work. The MSDS for a
particular product must be reviewed and approved by the City's Employee Relations Officer before Contractor may use
that product.

B. City will inform Contractor about hazardous substances to which it may be exposed while on the job site and -
protective measures that can be taken to reduce the possibility of exposure

ARTICLE 48, SEVERABILITY OF PROVISIONS

Should a provision of this contract be held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions
hereof shall continue to be valid and enforceable.

e T T e e e

July 2003
18
Page 44



Page 25 of 102 .

ARTICLE 49, ASSIGNMENT

This contract may not be assigned without the prior written consent of the City.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Clty and Contractor have executed this contract through their duly authorized

representatives as of the date first above written.
CITY OF B% 4%
/Z/C ,/

Clﬁ Manager
THIS CONTRACT HAS BEEN
APPROVED AS TO FORM BY
THE CITY ATTORNEY FOR THE Registered by: .
CITY OF BERKELEY ﬂ
July 2003 , | W %
(7L - 0% %
' City Auditor
Attest:
Deputy City Clerk
CONTRACTOR

IRS Tax I.D. No.:
B.M.C. §

City of Berkeley Business License No.: _Zea- 109 2Y

Incorporated: Yes K No

Subject of Contract: F\) gL~ SAFeT ;/

July 2003
19
Page 45



@ ' Page 26 of 102 | 0

 EXHIBITA |
SCOPE OF SERVICES .. : it

Page 46



Page 27 of 102

EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES
Berkeley Boosters Association E-mail: dmanson@berkeleyboosters.org
P.O. Box 17 Web Site: www.berkeleyboosters.org

Berkeley, CA 94701
Telephone: (510) 704-0467
Fax: (510) 649-0886

RESPECT GRANT 2003/2004: BART ESCORT SERVICE

1. PROGRAM DESCRIPTION:
During the winter months, the Berkeley Boosters Association will provide BART
SAFETY ESCORT Service to BART patrons during the two (2) busiest commute
hours each evening. The service will be provided at both the Ashby and North
Berkeley BART stations. The patrons will be escorted from the BART station to
their cars or homes within a radius of approximately five (5) city blocks.

IL SCOPE OF SERVICE:
The Berkeley Boosters RESPECT Team will provide, from Monday, October 27,
2003 (end of daylight savings time) to Friday, March 5, 2004, BART SAFETY
ESCORT SERVICE at both the Ashby BART station and the North Berkeley
BART station. The ESCORT SERVICE will be provided Monday to Friday for
two (2) hours during the evening commute time (except on City Holidays). The
training will occur during the week of October 20, 2003.

The staffing model calls for four (4) team members plus one supervisor at each
station. The team members will wear uniforms (light blue baseball jacket with
BART ESCORT and RESPECT insignia, navy pants, light blue shirt) and will
be equipped with flashlights and police radios. Team members will be upper
class Berkeley High School students (over the age of 15) and/or local community
college, UC students, or community members. The Supervisors will be adults,
typically veteran supervisors from within the Berkeley Police Department Traffic
Enforcement Division.

HI. TRAINING:
The team members will be trained through an intensive training that includes
police radio training and protocol, conflict resolution, diversity training, public
relations, positive communication skills, personal safety and other topics. This
training will be provided by experienced personnel from within the Boosters, as
well as various outside experts from within Berkeley Police Department and
BUSD School Safety personnel. The BART Escorts work in teams of two (except
supervisors, who may work alone). Each team is equipped with a police radio for
emergencies. Each team member will be assigned a call number (e.g. G-31).

IV. NETWORKING WITH OTHER AGENCIES:
It is the responsibility of the Executive Director to establish contact with BART

Police and the Berkeley Police Department Patrol Division. The Berkeley Police
Department will assist in the radio training for the ESCORTS.

Page 47



Page 28 of 102

® ®

EXHIBIT B
PAYMENT

CONTRACT AMOUNT $ 40,500
SIX (6) TWO MONTHS CASH ADVANCE PAYMENTS
LINE ITEM BUDGET ATTACHED.

Page 48



Page 29 of 102

RESPECT ~ BART ESCORTS PROGRAM
Operating Statement

July 1, 2003 — June 30, 2004

- Date: As of 12/18/02

INCOME

GRANTS
CITY OF BERKELEY

TOTAL PROGRAM INCOME:

EXPENSE

PERSONNEL
Executive Director
Administrative Director
Supervisors
Part Time Escorts
Accounting
Subtotal Personnel

Employer Payroll Taxes @11%
Worker’s Comp @9%
Health Insurance
Subtotal Fringe Benefits
TOTAL PERSONNEL & FRINGE BENEFITS

EQUIPMENT
Uniforms, Equipment & Supplies

TOTAL EQUIPMENT

OPERATING EXPENSE
Grant Operating Expense

TOTAL OPERATING

TOTAL EXPENSES

$40,500

$40,500

$ 2,900
$ 2,900
$ 8,820
$11,500
$ 1,200
$27,320

$ 3,005
$ 2,458
$ 780
$ 6,243

$ 33,563

$ 2,000

$ 2,000

$ 4937
$ 4,937

$ 40,500

Page 49



@ Page 30 of 102

REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF COMPETITIVE SOLICITATION

BY CITY MANAGER
DATE: August 11, 2003
TO: Weldon Rucker, City Manager
FROM: Roy L. Meisner, Chief of Police
DEPT. Police Department

RE: REQUEST FOR WAIVER

BERKELEY BOOSTERS ASSOCIATION
CONTRACT NAME

INSTRUCTIONS:

A written request must be submitted for a waiver consideration. Please
complete and forward to City Manager.

We are requesting a waiver on the above contract for one the following
reason(s). Explanation must clearly state why this exception meets the required
criteria. For details see section on Evidence of Competitive Solicitation online.

1. Service'is very SPECIALIZED because the Berkeley Booster Association is
selected through the annual General Funded Community Agency allocations.

2. This product or service can only be provided by this contractor (SOLE
SOURCE) _

This service and/or product must be provided IMMEDIATELY because

4. OTHER CATEGORY. NOTE: The lack of advanced planning does not
constitute an immediate need. The reason for this request is

WAIVER IS RECOMMENDED

D D -
/) / 77//\4 Z«ﬂ/ | ’?)Z/f / )
Weldon Ru%ﬁ,City Man/ager , Df':lte

Page 50



Page 31 of 102

0
132140 ddueldwo)n SE»;QU Aa|aylag jo 3_0 %

£ o/F179 P Stz 7 i

@ 0/21/9 :era %mﬁﬂ“ PoUBS

a

ON e SOA ‘Luonieuswiosip-uou jo Aojjod e aAey nok og

uoleolIuUap! Siuyle alediput Jo ajewad EYET :Auoads aseajd ‘sok §|

¢Aouabe jeym Aq ‘sok §|
X ON SOA 2PaLIUad 38Q/3gM/38IN Ssaulsnq InoA s|
T | L | R ¢cle | < |t sieioL
o O fioads) Jsnio
Q / 90UBUDJUIBIN/ODIAIRS
Q Q SJI9YIOAA YEID palnIS
~ 775

@@nos ! / O CIEIERITS)
/- ) ~Z < W k sjeuoissajoid-eled
< / o 0\ ,  SJOYJOAA 9DIAIBS 8A1091014
Q o SUBIDIUYDD ]|
(\‘\NS\ v\n 7 \ Z 9 S|BUOISS90id
1787 7 = - O | /7 SI0J_LSIUIPY/SIeIOIO
ajewad | aen alewdd | e | djewa4 dlell | 9lewa4 aley | ajewaq | deN| ajewad| 3N (swudy
10 UONeUBdXD J0) APIS 9SIOASI
(A4103dS) N3HIO|  DINVASIH NVISV Yovia ALHM _ |seskoidwz jejoy|  999) Aobajed feuonednadg

&H.r Q1 =2 0o%Z  :ON3ISNIOIT SSANISNE
YOLYY 9 Sﬁu\_&um T X9 "Q' ¢ :ssayaav

- md:j soL1 AUy P @3/ Nseig S#21S 004 2 |2>442¢] NOILVZINVONO

#om:coo JnoA Buipuey juswpedaq A)D ayj 0} }l uiNa) pue Mojaq pajsenbal se jauuosiad JNoA
Buipsebal uonewsoul ysiuiny noA jeyy pajsanbau st )i ‘Aoijod uoneulwiiosig-uoN sy Buuswaidui ui AsfaxJag 1o A)ID sy} isisse 0

SLOVH.LNOD NOLLONYLSNOO-NON TV ¥HOd Nomom xmo; zo_._-<z=>=mow_0..zoz




Page 32 of 102 0
CITY OF BERKELEY
Nuclear Free Zone Disclosure Form

I (we) certify that:

1.  Iam (we are) fully cognizant of any and all contracts held, products made or otherwise
handled by this business entity, and of any such that are anticipated to be entered into,
produced or handled for the duration of its contract(s) with the City of Berkeley. (To this
end, more than one individual may sign this disclosure form, if a description of which
type of contracts each individual is cognizant is attached.)

2. I(we)understand that Section 12.90.070 of the Nuclear Free Berkeley Act (Berkeley
Municipal Code Ch. 12.90; Ordinance No. 5784-N.S.) prohibits the City of Berkeley
from contracting with any person or business that knowingly engages in work for nuclear
weapons. '

3. I(we) understand the meaning of the following terms as set forth in Berkeley Municipal
Code Section 12.90.130:

"Work for nuclear weapons” is any work the purpose of which is the development,
testing, production, maintenance or storage of nuclear weapons or the components of
nuclear weapons; or any secret or classified research or evaluation of nuclear weapons; or
any operation, management or administration of such work.

"Nuclear weapon” is any device, the intended explosion of which results from the energy
released by reactions involving atomic nuclei, either fission or fusion or both. This
definition of nuclear weapons includes the means of transporting, guiding, propelling or
triggering the weapon if and only if such means is destroyed or rendered useless in the
normal propelling, triggering, or detonation of the weapon.

"Component of a nuclear weapon" is any device, radioactive or non-radioactive, the
primary intended function of which is to contribute to the operation of a nuclear weapon
(or be a part of a nuclear weapon),

4.  Neither this business entity nor its parent nor any of its subsidiaries engages in work for
nuclear weapons or anticipates entering into such work for the duration of its contract(s)
with the City of Berkeley.

Based on the foregoing, the undersigned declares under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of
California that the foregoing is true and correct.

Printed Name: vt Mang <ol Tile: ©xecutwe Durector™
Signature: % )‘_A’ﬂw //// Date: ©-12-0 5
Business Entity: @ £ CQJJ B O0STeVvs AS$ o \oTuY) / T. AL

Contract Description/ Speciﬁ{ation No.
Attachment C

Page 52



@ Page 33 of 102 e

CITY OF BERKELEY »
Oppressive States Compliance Statement for Personal Services

The undersigned, an authorized agent of B.@r“d@q 6 OO ST 2v ASS l\) . (hereafter "Vendor"),
has had an opportunity to review the requirements of Berkeléy City Council Resolution No. 59,853-N.S. (hereafter
"Resolution"). Vendor understands and agrees that the City may choose with whom it will maintain business relations and
may refrain from contracting with those Business Entities which maintain business relationships with morally repugnant
regimes. Vendor understands the meaning of the following terms used in the Resolution:

"Business Entity" means "any individual, firm, partnership, corporation, association or any other commercial
organization, including parent-entities and wholly-owned subsidiaries” (to the extent that their operations are
related to the purpose of the contract with the City).

"Oppressive State" means: Tibet Autonomous Region and the Provinces of Ado, Kham, and U-Tsang,

“Personal Services” means “the performance of any work or labor and shall also include acting as an independent contractor
or providing any consulting advice or assistance, or otherwise acting as an agent pursuant to a contractual relationship.”

Contractor understands that it is not eligible to receive or retain a City contract if at the tirne the contract is executed, or at
any time during the term of the contract it provides Personal Services to:

a. The governing regime in any Oppressive State.

b. Any business or corporation organized under the authority of the governing regime of any
Oppressive State.

c. Any person for the express purpose of assisting in business operations or trading with any

public or private entity located in any Oppressive State.

Vendor further understands and agrees that Vendor's failure to comply with the Resolution shall constitute a default of the
contract and the City Manager may terminate the contract and bar Vendor from bidding on future contracts with the City for
five (5) years from the effective date of the contract termination.

The undersigned is familiar with, or has made a reasonable effort to become familiar with, Vendor's business structure and
the geographic extent of its operations. By executing the Statement, Vendor certifies that it complies with the requirements
of the Resolution and that if any time during the term of the contract it ceases to comply, Vendor will promptly notify the
City Manager in writing.

Based on the foregoing, the undersigned declares under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct.

. . 3Jv.
Printed Name: | ) \J \,A W . N\WSO N (Title: EX&CLET\UL D W Ctov™
Signature: w Z,(), M Date: (b-\2 -0 j

Business Entity:

I am unable to execute this Statemfent; however, Vendor is exempt under Section VII of the Resolution. I have attached a
separate statement explaining the reason(s) Vendor cannot comply and the basis for any requested exemption.

Signature: Date:

Contract Description/Specification No.:

Attachment D

Page 53



Page 34 of 102

CITY OF BERKELEY
Living Wage Certification for Providers of Personal Services

TO BE COMPLETED BY ALL PERSONS OR ENTITIES ENGAGING IN A CONTRACT FOR PERSONAL
SERVICES WITH THE CITY OF BERKELEY.

The Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.27, Berkeley's Living Wage Ordinance (LWO), provides that contractors who
engage in a specified amount of business with the City (except where specifically exempted) under contracts which furnish
services to or for the City in any twelve (12) month period of time shall comply with all provisions of this Ordinance. The
LWO requires a City contractor to provide City mandated minimum compensation to all eligible employees, as defined in
the Ordinance. In order to determine whether this contract is subject to the terms of the LWO, please respond to the
questions below. Please note that the LWO applies to those contracts where the contractor has achieved a cumulative
dollar contracting amount with the City. Therefore, even if the LWO is inapplicable to this contract, subsequent contracts
may be subject to compliance with the LWO. Furthermore, the contract may become subject to the LWO if the status of
the Contractor's employees change (i.e. additional employees are hired) so that Contractor falls within the scope of the
Ordinance.

Section .
1. IF YOU ARE A FOR-PROFIT BUSINESS, PLEASE ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS
a. During the previous twelve (12) months, have you entered into contracts, including the present contract, bid, or
proposal, with the City of Berkeley for a cumulative amount of $25,000.00 or more?
YES NO

If no, this contract is NOT subject to the requirements of the LWO, and you may continue to Section II. If yes, please
continue to question 1(b).

b. Do you have six (6) or more employees, including part-time and stipend workers?
YES NO

If you have answered, “YES” to questions 1(a) and 1(b) this contract IS subject to the LWO. If you responded "NO"
to 1(b) this contract IS NOT subject to the LWO. Please continue to Section II.

2. IF YOU ARE A NON-PROFIT BUSINESS, AS DEFINED BY SECTION 501(C) OF THE INTERNAL
REVENUE CODE OF 1954, PLEASE ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS.

a. During the previous twelve (12) months, have you entered into contracts, including the present contract, bid or
proposal, with the City of Berkeley for a cumulative amount of $100,000.00 or more?

YES_}( NO

If no, this Contract is NOT subject to the requirements of the LWQ, and you may continue to Section II. If yes, please
continue to question 2(b).

b. Do you bave six (6) or more employees, including part-time and stipend workers?
YES NO

If you have answered, “YES” to questions 2(a) and 2(b) this contract IS subject to the LWO. If you responded "NO"
to 2(b) this contract IS NOT subject to the LWO. Please continue to Section II.

Section II
Please read, complete, and sign the following:
THIS CONTRACT 1S SUBJECT TO THE LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE. %

THIS CONTRACT IS NOT SUBJECT TO THE LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE. O

Page 54



G Page 35 of 102 . e

The undersigned, on behalf of himself or herself individually and on behalf of his or her business or organization, hereby
certifies that he or she is fully aware of Berkeley's Living Wage Ordinance, and the applicability of the Living Wage
Ordinance, and the applicability of the subject contract, as determined herein. The undersigned further agrees to be bound
by all of the terms of the Living Wage Ordinance, as mandated in the Berkeley Municipal Code, Chapter 13.27. If, at any
time during the term of the contract, the answers to the questions posed herein change so that Contractor would be subject
to the LWO, Contractor will promptly notify the City Manager in writing. Contractor further understands and agrees that
the failure to comply with the LWO, this certification, or the terms of the Contract as it applies to the LWO, shall constitute
a default of the Contract and the City Manager may terminate the contract and bar Contractor from future contracts with
the City for five (5) years from the effective date of the Contract termination. If the contractor is a for-profit business and
the LWQ is applicable to this contract, the contractor must pay a living wage to all employees who spend 25% or more or
their compensated time engaged in work directly related to the contract with the City. If the contractor is a non-profit
business and the LWOQ is applicable to this contract, the contractor must pay a living wage to all employees who spend
50% or more or their compensated time engaged in work directly related to the contract with the City.

These statements are made under penalty of perjury under the laws of the state of California.

Printed Name: \)¢3 v Title: E X cunue [PV eCOv

Signature:

Date: C:// \7.{/ 0%
AL,

Business Entity:

Contract Description/Specification No:

Section III

o ** FOR ADMINISTRATIVE USE ONLY — PLEASE PRINT CLEARLY * * *

I have reviewed this Living Wage Certification form, in addition to verifying Contractor's to llar amount contract

commitments with the City in the past twelve (12) months, and determined is Contrac /ISNOT (mrcle one)
sWt to Berkeley's Lﬁvmg Wage Ordinance.

Department Name Départment Representatlve

Living Wage Certification Revised 8/8/02

Page 55



P

Page 36 of 102
’ To be completed by @
Contractor/Vendor Form EBO-1 /e
CITY OF BERKELEY ¢

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL BENEFITS ORDINANCE

If you are a contractor, retumn this form to the originating department/project manager. If you are a vendor (supplier of |
goods), retumn this form to the Purchasing Division of the Finance Dept.

SECTION 1. CONTRACTOR/VENDOR INFORMATION

o
m
A
LA
E
R g

| Name: (3, et-bg«.\m_?;.o_osmrs BessN. / Solice Aonvmsy lasgllsVendor No. |

I Address: P b \q—— ” City: MJ' State: “ ZIP: C(_f‘.k'_jo_(_l
[ Contact Person: D /o W Mawsen, Iv ” Telephone: 4 L O ~ 7] 04 — (H-b‘{'
| E-mail Address: o phanssy)._e_ bew lcu(u, bovsrevs. -orgL________Fax No: 510 -649 -0556]

\l

SECTION 2. COMPLIANCE QUESTIONS

A. The EBO is inapplicable to this contract because the contractor/vendor has no employees.
[0 Yes [J No (if “Yes,” proceed to Section 5; if “No®, continue to the next question.)

B. Does your company provide (or make available at the employees’ expsense) any employee benefits?

*QI Yes No
if “Yes,” continue to Question C.
if “No,” proceed to Section 5. (The EBO is not applicable to you.)

C. Does your company provide (or make available at the employees’ expense) any benefits to
the SPoUSE Of AN EMPIOYEE? ............c.oceiiirciiie et s ae e esesaesasesre s sha bt e e es b eneene O Yes Sdﬂo

D. Does your company provide (or make available at the employees’ expense) any benefits to
the domestic partner of an emMpPlOYEE?.............covviiii et [ Yes (]
if you answered “No” to both Questions C and D, proceed to Section 5. (The EBO is not applicable to this contract.)
if you answered “Yes” to both Questions C and D, please continue to Question E.
if you answered “Yes” to Question C and “No” to Question D, please continue to Section 3.

E. Are the benefits that are available to the spouse of an employee identical to the benefits that
are available to the domestic partner of the employee? ...............coccviiriiniin, [ Yes [JNo
If you answered “Yes,” proceed to Section 4. (You are in compliance with the EBO.)
If you answered “No,” continue to Section 3.

SECTION 3. PROVISIONAL COMPLIANCE
A. Contractor/vendor is not in compliance with the EBO now but will comply by the following date:

O By the first effective date after the first open enrollment process following the contract start date, not to exceed two
years, if the Contractor submits evidence of taking reasonable measures to comply with the EBO; or

O At such time that administrative steps can be taken to incorporate nondiscrimination in benefits in the Contractor’s
infrastructure, not to exceed three months; or

[:I Upon expiration of the contractor’s current collective bargaining agreement(s).

B. If you have taken all reasonable measures to comply with the EBO but are unable to do so,
do you agree to provide employees with a cash equivalent?* ...............cccoovvceenrercnenenesnnnnen. O Yes O No

* The cash equivalent is the amount of money your company pays for spousal benefits that are unavailable for domestic partners.

SECTION 4. REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION

At time of issuance of purchase order or contract award, you may be required by the City to provide documentation (copy of
employee handbook, eligibility statement from your plans, insurance provider statements, etc.) to verify that you do not
discriminate in the provision of benefits.

Form EBO-1 Revised 7/1/02 Page 1

Page 56



Page 37 of 102
SECTION 5. CERTIFICATIO@ @

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that | am
authorized to bind this entity contractually. By signing this certification, | further agree to comply with all additional obligations of
the Equal Benefits Ordinance that are set forth in the Berkeley Municipal Code and in the terms of the contract or purchase
order with the City.

Executed this /2 dayof ___J UN & intheyear 200 3  at ge,r—mlﬂm C-A'
(City) //(State)
Davnid W, Mauso N,y Yy

Name (please print) -~ Sigrature

Exeocvthee Duweom

Title

e . ;:\. .
Federal ID or Social Security Number

FOR CITY OF BERKELEY USE ONLY

{T] Non-Compliant (The City may not do business with this contractor/vendor)
[ One-Person Contractor/Vendor Full Compliance {1 Reasonable Measures

[ Provisional Compliance

ompliance hy Date:

no& Howbde _ (p/15702

Staff Name(Sign and Print):

Form EBO-1 Revised 7/1/02 Page 2

Page 57



CERTIFIC/A

BE OF LIABI

S5O

ICITY INSURAGBE

OT Ud

~ DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)
04/28/2003

PRODUCER (260)482 5455 FAX (
Diller-Smith & Associates

2526 Scotswolde Dr. '

P.0. Box 8517

Ft. Wayne, IN 46808

260)483-6297

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION
ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE
HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR
ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLIC

ES BELOW.

INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE

NAIC #

2000 East 14th Street
San Leandro, .CA 94577

insurep California Police Activities League #2

’

weuRER A CLARENDON AMERICA INSURANCE CO-

insurer8: AMERICAN NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCH

CO0. OF TX.

INSURER C:

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

hi -

COVERAGES

THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BEL.OW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE-INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDINC
ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR

MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH
POLICIES. AGGREGATE LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

EVENT DATE: COVERAGE PERICD
INSURED MEMBER. CHAPTER:

BERKELEY BOOSTERS/PAL, ATT CHERYL LA ROSA LONGO PO BOX 17 BERKELEY, CA 94701

INSR DD, TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER P ELA'ECY‘MHM%RS\J'RN LiMTS
GENERAL LIABILITY ECP000305-00 01/01/2003 01,/01 /2004 | EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
| X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY ) ’ MG TORENTED IS 50,000
. | CLAIMS MADE OCCUR MED EXP {Any ons person) $ NONE]
A __)S_ INCLUDES ATHLETIC PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $ 1,000, 000
|| PARTICIPANTS GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000, 0004
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 1,000,000
] pouoy [ ] BEK []oc o T ’
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY EPC000305-00( 01/01/2003 | 01/01/2004 | oyamneo SINGLE LT s
ANY AUTO ' © | (Ba accident) 1,000,000] .
|| ALLOWNED AUTOS 1 sooiLy iury s
A || scHepuLED AUTOS {Per parson)
[ X | HiRED AUTOS BODILY INJURY - $
X | Non-owNED AUTGS (Par accident)
- i g PROPERTY DAMAGE ~ s
{Per accidont)
| GARAGE LIABILITY AUTO ONLY - EA ACCIDENT | §
ANY AUTO .OTHER THAN EAACC | $
B AUTO ONLY: AGG | 5.
EXCEBS/UMBRELLA LIARBILITY EEX000026-00[ 01/01/2003 | 01/01/2004 | EACH OCCURRENCE s 4,000,000
X] OCCUR CLAIMS MADE : AGGREGATE $ 5,000,0004
A. | < i $
DEDUCTIBLE $
RETENTION  § $
WC STATU-: oin-
\év:?g&aﬂgoumxsmagmn AND ‘ ToRY Limitsl | ER
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNERIEXECUTIVE EL. EACH ACCIDENT $
mb: e EX~CLU =7 E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEH $
SPECIAL PROVISIONS below . E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $
hEETDENT MEDICAL FLD02-34200-BC{ 01/01/2003 | 01/01/2004 - AD & D $50,000
B M e ACCIDENT MEDICAL EXCESS-MAX,
_ BENEFIT $50,000 DED.: NONE
DESCRIPTION OF OPERAT
T TR RO oS AorT B2 SO e T/ B 16 1o
$25,000 PER OCCURRENCE  AGGREGATE $100,000
CERTIFICATE HOLDER IS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED FOR CAL PAL. EVENT: PAL‘ EVENTS

CANCELLATION

CERTIFICATE HOLDRER

04/28/03 CITY OF BERKELEY.
BERKELEY POLICE DEPARTMENT
ATT TRACY. VESELY

2180 MILVIA STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94704

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE
EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, THE JSSUING INSURER WILL ENDEAVOR TO MAIL

_30__ DAYS WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT,
BUT FAILURE TO MAIL SUCH NOTICE SHALL IMPOSE NO OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY
OF ANY KIND UPON THE INSURER, IT5 AGENTS OR REPRESENTATIVES.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

A D

ACORD 25 (2001/08)

John Lefever/AKB

. ©ACORD CORPORATION 1988

Page 58



P IMPORTANT

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. A statement
on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of,such endorsement(s).' -

) If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the pohcy, certaln pohmes may
_require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the- certiﬁcate
holder in lieu of such endorsement(s) , .

DISCLAIMER

The Certificate of Insurance on the reverse side of this form does not constitute a contract between
the issuing insurer(s), authorized representative or producer,-and the certificate holder, nor does it
affirmatively or negatively amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policies\lisfe;d thereon..

ACORD 25 (2001/08)

| Page 59






c e .. . page4lofi102

Addi tional Coverages and Factobs' "‘u o o o E B _ , 12/23/2002

--:Liné of BusiheéEICoverages for - General Liability N R L Coelm

LR

Coverage T - . Limits: S . Ded/Ded Type Rate Premium Factor
General Aggregate- ~ 2,000,000 : : o o T _
Products/Completed Ops. . 1,000,000 o S 1 _— s
Aggregate - ) - B o T
Personal & Advertising 1,000,000 - . - - .- )
Injury : - o R R
Each Occurrence’ 1,000,000 o ' N
Firae Damage o . ,50,000 . S e

- Medical Expense = “NONE o S Lo e

~ Page 61



&

Page 42 of 102 ‘
@TY OF BERKLLEY' COMMUN[TY SERVICES P s«g;, (A‘\IS

" CONTRACTORS leoxcr: :

" PLEASE TYPE @eégec_—r— M Eswr’rb

PERSONNEL o ' . - i S N T .
mew 320 |0 1t & n

1.CONTRACTOR'S NAME (Agency)’ 2. ADDRESS: CIW/STATUZ]P

- 3. FUNDS REQUESTED F

66\/%{}&4 BOos\evs AL PO@ax 7 807/&/&77470/
-;F(nmal B ,’.‘b,[:]Periodi; cDRelmburscmen; - o[ .Final> . | , CeTomer B i ir. g;mﬁ for Months of:

Advance ' Advance’ ' : o nvoice " Specify . s
v o ) . ‘ . - o : © Month/s Day  Year
g. PROGRAM TYPE: CSBG © GENERAL FUND OTHER T
v - .. : - 'l" = -
4.COST INCURRED: - b.To End of Report Mo: ~ | 5. PERIOD COST PROJECTED: o 'b. To End of Two Mo. Projection: h
‘a. From Start Of . . “a. From End of Report Mo: . - - ) - ‘ ) N
Agreement ) A C . B : : . .
7 0 8319 ( o3| e
Mo ' Day" - Yr Mo -~ Day Yr Mo . . Day:-. = Yr : : - |"Mo - " Day - -Yr.

COMMUNITY SERVICES CONTRACTORS INVOICE

. 6.COST CATEGORY 7.CONTRACT 8.COSTS FOR 9:CUM. . | 1ocosTs . - | i1 TOTALS
S COMPONENT ~ REPORT MONTH |.costs - - . | PROJECTED . k
- BUDGET . : ONLY o (Nearest Dollar) . | (Nearest Dollar)-" (Column 9.
C .(Nearest ‘Dollar) . | (Nearest Dollar) - . . +
i C : ’ ‘ - - Column 10)

FRINGE BENEFITS b (L2494 b b, " . (/b. o b,

TRANS: COST ¢ o e _ e . N) c. e

: 461 3’7 | ¢ " 9 J>'<‘ o a

| OPERATING COSTS | d

EQUIPMENT e e. N ' N - .
PURCHASES ) 00 _ )

UINSURANCE | f ' R | J)(y P -l 7 e
'OTHER: ‘Specify & o » g ‘ l g. : ) £ . o g
OTHER: Specify - h. ' ih h [say ' .

ved

“TOTA.I..S.‘ 4—0 5{\(,) P I 9')&?/ Co é’vf

P.OA FORCITY USEO’\LY' INVOICE#___~ 1 L
S - . o . .. - 12.LESS CASH RECEIVED: - § ‘6—'

BUDGET CODE: = e e . I
: : - 13. NET AMOUNT OF THIS REQUEST s@jS@

[

AMOUNT TO BE PAID $

14. CONT OR CER'ﬂFICATlON I cemf) that'the costs incurred are taken from the books of account and that such costs are valid and consmcm wﬂh the
% /g Ny .
m //(] V. é ",2 3 /05
Aulhonud Contracygr's S)gnamre V S : ) : . -Date Slgned

CITY STAFF ONLY. &)
PERFORMANCE SATISFACTORY FOR PAYMENT

| APPROVED BY: ' S - : . S . 'EXAMINED BY:

Date . ' Signature o Date

Signature

TPy 1+ TINANCE ,
COPY 2 - HHS ACCOUNTING
COPY 3 - CONTRACT MONITOR
COPY 4 - CONTRACTOR

HL s

S - " Page 62




2
XPIRATION
OR!UNLAW:

X N
- :
~ . “oo
- i -
.
W
’ . .
2
B
.
s >
r
- .
»
<
.

, | L : Page 63



, Page 44 of 102
Expenf@ure Contract Amendment Rev@y Form

Original CMS #: Y\;bilj " Amendment:‘C;MS #: K&KB@ . ) Contract No.: ¢, 79 4A

(To be filled in by department) (To be filled in by department) ! (To be filled in by auditor)

CONTRACTOR NAME: Berkeley Boosters Association

This contract package contains:

Three Original Contracts (Department, Vital Record and Vendor)

contracts in Folders Attached Waiver Not
ache Attached Required

*The Vital Record contract MUST be in a folder.
*Optional: In lieu of folders, the Department and Vendor copies may be assembled with

an Acco-fastener.

| 1. Authorizing Council ResolutionNo.: ~~~ 1 63,166 N.S. T X 7z,

2. Living Wage Certification (if not submitted with original contract) **LWO 0 0
form revised 8/02 Submitted With Original Contract 4

3. Certification of Compliance with Equal Benefits Ordinance (if not submitted 0 0
with original contract)**EBO form revised 7/02 With Original Contract

! 4. Insurance Certificate Original on File: Contract Number 6701 copy attached [! X 5‘ L] }]

o

[

Requisition No.: __105/22 (Hard copy attached) Purchase Order No: 56 /3 7

Original contract amount $ 174,368
Amount(s) added by previous amendment(s) $ 0 (if applicable)

Amount added by this amendment $ 29.643

Total contract amount after amendment $ 204011

Routing and signatures: All elements of the contract package including information provided above and on the Amendment Data
Transmittal form have been reviewed for completeness and accuracy and evidenced by the following signatures:

Kristen Lee 4§ Housing PPMB x 5427 1/18/2006
W - ©

ept./Division Tel. No. Date

At Dat

2. pt.- Admis: Ofﬁce/r or Accounting
-
3. ager n i PW construction only) L , Date
4 Dep;lrt(xnﬁ + >— - {
A\ \\\/ Y
5. Employee Relatioits Officer \\3 Date"
0. Contract Compliance Officer (Construction only) Date

Routing continues to the following persons, who sign directly on the contract:

7. City Manager (Will not sign unless all signatures and dates appear above) _ | E G E \V E D

8. City Auditor (lnitiaI%L' ) Q 2008

9. City Clerk  (Initial | Jﬁﬂaﬁ e
. City Cler nitials ) Aud\tﬂv

Page 64
Page 1 of 2 January 2003



a Page 45 of 102 @

~  cMms#_RRKB
AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT -

THIS CONTRACT is entered into January 15, 20006, between the CITY OF BERKELEY
("CITY"), a Charter City organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, and The
Berkeley Boosters Association ("CONTRACTOR"), a non-profit corporation under the laws of the State of

California, doing business at P.O. Box 17, Berkeley CA 94701.

WHEREAS, CITY and CONTRACTOR previously entered into Contract Number 6724, dated
July 1, 2005, which Contract was authorized by the Berkeley City Council by Resolution No. 62,976 -

N.S.; and

WHEREAS, on December 13, 2005 by Resolution No. 63,166-N.S., the Berkeley City Council
authorized an amendment of said contract, adding a total of $29,643; $10,000 for the Berkeley Guides

program and $19,643 for the BART Escorts program.

THEREFORE, City and Contractor mutually agree to amend said contract as follows:
1. Section 1 is amended to include the services detailed in Exhibit A, which is attached to
and made part of this Contract.

2. Section 3 is amended to read as follows:

PAYMENT
For services referred to in Section 1, City will pay Contractor a total amount not to exceed
$204,011. City shall make payments to Contractor in accordance with provisions described in

Exhibit B, which is attached to and made part of this Contract.
Page 1 '6/01

Page 65



B Page 46 of 102 e

3. In all other respects, the contract dated July 1, 2003, shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and Contractor have executed this Contract as

of the date written on the first paragraph of this Contract.

CITY OF BERKELEY

By &W

%ﬁ//y City Manager

THIS CONTRACT HAS BEEN Reglstered b
APPROVED AS TO FORM BY

THE CITY ATTORNEY FOR /// / /
THE CITY OF BERKELEY i - 7 W

6/01 City Additor

Attest:

Lx,/k//vtg{"? e —
&%T.Depu{—y City Clerk

CONTRACTOR: Berkeley Boojters Associa'tion'

N\ ERRY,

By? David W. Manson, JIr., Exe¢utive Director

Page 2 o 6/01

Page 66



LAHIBIL

sTATEWFf%RK PL{gY

(Please TYPE: Use additional sheets if necessary)
~ (Services For Berkeley Residents Only)

Agency: __ Berkeley Boosters Police Activities League
Contract Period: July 1, 2005 — June 30, 2006
Program Title: BART ESCORTS

A. Brief Program Description [Primary Goal(s)]

Youth Employment and Public Safety Program
Primary goals:
- 1) Job Training
2) Employment Support
3) Job Placement
4) Public Safety

B. Scope of Services - Briefly describe each service activity or project to be undertaken.
(See attached)

C. Networking and Merging of Efforts with Other Agencies. (Quantify planned contacts,
referrals, etc., with and/or to specific agencies)

Berkeley Police Department — Training
Inter City Services — Training and Assessment
BART - Training

Page_| OLL.
E}(hlbitA

Page 67



Page 48 of 102 @

BART Escorts Program Description (Public Safety / Employment Training)

A violent incident in 1995 led to the establishment of this Berkeley Boosters PAL program. A woman
was attacked and severely hurt at the North Berkeley BART station. The City of Berkeley approached us
for help. We organized the BART Safety Escort program. BART gave us a grant for the purchase of
uniforms, radios, and a van, and the City of Berkeley paid for the salaries of the employees. For the last 9
years, we have provided escort services at both the North Berkeley BART station and the Ashby BART
station.

This program serves a dual purpose: providing a public safety benefit for Berkeley residents and also a
youth employment program for Berkeley residents. We will operate during nine weeks in the winter
during daylight savings time (Januvary through March) . At each station, we will have 6 people — one
adult supervisor and five young people, high school or community college students or other at-risk youth.
They will work in pairs, carry flashlights and escort BART patrons from the station to their parked cars or
their homes. In this role, they will be equipped with, and trained to use police radios-which put them in
direct contact with Police and Fire dispatch. They are able to immediately radio directly to the Public
Safety Commumications Center in cases of crimes, fires, medical emergencies or other critical needs.

These services will be provided Monday through Friday from 5:30pm to 7:30pm, during the heavy
commute hours. ‘

As a result of the dual nature of this program, the BART Escorts actually address several of the priorities
outlined in the City Manager’s letter to prospective applicants as important unmet needs:
% Provides healthy youth altematives
% Reduces Poverty .
<> Ensures public safety

The BART Escorts will be responsible for the establishment and ongoing maintenance of a friendly,
approachable presence to improve the feeling of safety and welcomeness at the Ashby and North
Berkeley BART stations during the non-daylight savings commute hours. The BART Escorts will
participate in training, evaluating and coaching sessions with the Berkeley Guides coordinator, the
Berkeley Police Department, and their Supervisor/Job Coach, as well as the Executive Director of the
Berkeley Boosters PAL. Their training shall include both employment / employability training as well as
Jjob-specific trainings such as conflict resolution, personal safety, verbal de-escalation, and customer
service skills. They shall maintain accurate and complete records of their daily activities. They will be

. responsible to maintain the daily log book of incidents, events, contacts, and escorts. When appropriate,

they shall refer individuals in need of services to the appropriate city or public service agency, and will
initiate police intervention backup when necessary. Berkeley Guides will provide special attention to
vulnerable groups such as children, older adults and disabled persons.

As an employment and job readiness program for Berkeley residents between 14 and 24, the BART
Escorts program will also provide its participants with a meaningful job training experience. Not only
will this serve as a means of providing gainful employment, but also serve as an entryway into other
meaningful employment and career opportunities.

Since the State of California’s Employment Development Department’s Labor Market Information
Division has identified that most new job growth will be in Health Care and Social Assistance, Retail
Trade and Accommodation and Food Services, we will tailor our training towards skills that are valuable
in those fields. We will spend one week prior and one week after the official start of BART Escort
services providing vocational assessment tests, pre-employment training, and post-employment job
search, resume building, networking training, and job placement assistance. Following U.S. Department
of Labor recommendations that “proven techniques for developing improved employment outcomes for
young people....includes four core areas: Preparatory Experiences, Connecting Activities, Work-Based
Experiences and Leadership Development,” our program plan includes activities designed to address

h of these. f
cach ofthese Page = of 4

= ibR e 68



Page 49 of 102 %

Our pre-session Training Week addresses the need to provide a meaningful Preparatory Experience.
Drawing upon our years of experience providing team-building experiences that deepen the nature of
interpersonal relationships among Police Officers and young people, we will provide participants with a
full-day ropes course during our Training Week that will include trust-building and team-building
activities with their supervisors and Police Department trainers. In addition, participants will be given a
learning skills inventory and vocational assessment test. Results will be shared with the participants to
help them begin to develop an understanding of their own unique skill sets. Connecting Activities will
take place during the five-month course of our program. In addition to their regular contacts with positive
adult role models serving as their supervisors (our BART Escorts supervisors are both long-time City of
Berkeley employees within the Berkeley Police Department’s Parking Enforcement Division and have
been with us for the past four years), we will also provide once monthly social activities to reinforce their
sense of teamwork and community.

The outcomes for the project fall under the City of Berkeley category of Employment:

< TRAINING:
o By June 30, 2006 10 (10) clients will have achieved marketable employment skills as
evidenced by pre- and post-tests, and/or job placement.
< JOB PLACEMENT:
o By June 30, 2006, ten (10) clients will have secured employment as evidenced by pay
stubs.
% SUPPORT:
o By June 30, 2006, ten (10) clients obtained continued employment training and/or
placement assistance through ongoing Berkeley Boosters PAL staff support, as well as
use of One Stop Career Center services, as evidenced by attendance sign-in sheets.

Page_¢ of T

L ‘#95‘-9”&‘69



Page 50 of 102

D. Service Activities (Berkeley Residents Only Who Meet Income Guidelines — 200 percent of Poverty Level Only for CSBG/GF,

or Those Who Receive TANF or SSI or Who Have a Disability.) - The following indicates planned number of times a client will
receive a service, and the planned number of clients to be served. A client is to be recorded only once during the program year,
however, that same client may receive other types of services during the yeat. The Service Measure (s) should indicate, in a few

words, the measurable unit of contact (e.g., bed nights, hours, sessions, classes, etc.)

Planned Quarterly Planned Annually
. ‘ : * #ofClient | #of New | * #of Client # of New
Services Activity Service Measure Contacts Clients Contacts Clients
Job Training | Hours 5 10 5 10
Vocational Skills / Aptitude Assessment | Hours 2 10 2 10
Employability Skills Training Hours 2 10 2 10
Resume Building Skills Workshop Hours 2 10 2 10

INCOME LIMITS FOR POVERTY, VERY LOW INCOME AND LOW INCOME FAMILIES -- 2005

Household Size 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Person | Person Person Person Person Person Person Person
Poverty Level 9,570 12,830 16,090 19,350 22,610 25,870 29,130 32,390
200% of Poverty 19,140 25,660 32,180 38,700 45,220 51,740 58,260 64,780
Very Low (50% of AMI) 29,000 33,100 37,250 41,400 44,700 48,000 51,350 54,650
Low (80% of AMI): 46,350 53,000 59,600 66,250 71,550 76,850 82,150 87,450

* N/A if meeting with monitor indicates.



£. CUALAGIETISTCS OF ramctpams to be Served: Pro 1|ec51éms (Berkeley Residents Only)

Page 51 o
S

lients with disabilities to be served: 0

1. Total number '
2. Total number of homeless clients to be served: 0

3. Total number of Female Heads of Household to be served: 0

4. Total number of clients residing in the Target Area to be served: 10

5. Total number of clients not residing in the Target Area to be served: 0
G. Agency Fee Schedule - (if applicable, attach copy) N/A

H. Briefly Describe Method for Verification of Client Income Eligibility:

Self-Reported through intake forms and verified via collection of tax returns or paystubs

I Specify the outcomes to be achieved by this contract. (Refer to City-Wide Outcomes.)

< TRAINING:
o By June 30, 2006, 10 (10) clients will have achieved marketable employment skills as
evidenced by pre- and post-tests, and/or job placement.
» JOB PLACEMENT:
o By June 30, 2006, ten (10) clients will have secured employment as evidenced by pay
stubs.
«» SUPPORT:
o By June 30, 2006, ten (10) clients obtained continued employment training and/or
placement assistance through ongoing Berkeley Boosters PAL staff support, as well as use
of One Stop Career Center services, as evidenced by attendance sign-in sheets.

i‘“ﬂjc G of L

Pebesti A



WORK PLAN - BART ESCORTS

Em:nowmocsﬁ_nmmonﬁovm:oaugg~Noom.:SowoNoom».o_.amorBm._o_.ooavosoao_.mo_.sonOoBv_QopsamccB:oan <<o_._6_m= wrn _
per program/project. Include number of new participants expected to be served each month, number of participant contacts, project phase:

significant events, milestones, or construction deadlines as appropriate. O.Pt
- (NOTE: Total number of participants to be served is ALWAYS 12, with one exception: Escorts Provided. /.@
PROGRAM BART Escorts . the figures that are provided below indicate the number of parti "awm
oL
. »‘mb
Component/Service : July [Aug [Sept |Oct |Nov |Dec |[Jan | Feb | March | April | May | June | TdtAl
Vocational Skills Assessment 1 2
.&Bmsm Styles Inventory { ,

NEmployment / Employability Training

w_ 5 5 10
o
|| I9]
i
mio:?wsmna Experiences ) 20 23 94
. . 2 8
@:o Safety Training

Support Programs Interface (One Stop
|| Career Center, Inner-City Services, | 1 3
etc.)




Page 53 of 102; '
- PROPOSED BENEFIC S — BART Escorts | @

Please report the total number of participants residing in Berkeley to be served with this funding
request during the period July 1, 2005 — June 30, 2006.

10 _ Total number of Berkeley residents the project will serve from July 1, 2005 — June 30,
2006. (estimate) ,
3 200% of Poverty or below (see chart below)

"5 50% of Area Median Income (AMI) or below
2 80% of Area Median Income (AMI) or below
ANNUAL INCOME LIMITS FOR POVERTY, VERY LOW INCOME AND LOW INCOME FAMILIES - 2004
Income Level 1 Person 2 Person | 3 Person 4 Person | 5 Person | 6 Person 7 Person | 8 Person
200% of Poverty 18,620 24,980 31,340 37,700 44 060 50,420 56,780 63,140
50% of AMI 29,000 33,100 37.250 41,400 44,700 48.000 51,350 54.650
80 % of AMI 46,350 53,000 59,600 66,250 71,550 76,850 82,150 87,450

Target Population and Outreach: Describe the population(s) targeted (e.g., youth, seniors,
disabled, homeless) and your planned outreach to them. ‘

The list of proposed beneficiaries of the BART Escorts service is to indicate the number
of youth employees ages 14-24 ONLY that this program will serve. THIS FIGURE DOES NOT
INCLUDE THE NUMBER OF BERKELEY RESIDENTS THAT WILL BE SERVED
THROUGH THE PUBLIC SAFETY BENEFIT OF THIS PROGRAM WITH ESCORTS TO

THEIR CARS OR HOMES. We have not included that estimate, because there is no way for us

to accurately determine the level of income for those Berkeley residents. However, in the past,
over a five-month period, we have averaged 630 total escorts for the past three years.

We will be targeting teens and young adults that are primarily residents of the South and
West Berkeley areas. Our outreach efforts to recruit the appropriate youth to our program will
include collaborating with other youth serving agencies such as Berkeley Youth Alternatives, the
Young Adult Project, EBAYC R.LS.E., Berkeley Alternative High School, and others to alert
their participants about the program. In addition, we will also outreach through the faith
community in South and West Berkeley and ask various spiritual leaders to inform their
congregations about this opportunity.




J. Contract Stputations & Agency Compliance Plan:
Page 54 of 102
1. Contractor shall ﬁide the City with job descriptions of a@f the employees’ positions
funded under this Contract, as listed in Exhibit B, Composite Program Budget.

2. Contractor shall provide the City with a list of authoﬁzed signatories for the Contractor's

Advance Payment Request or Invoice and Quarterly Statement of Expense (or other cost
documentation, as required by contracting department).

Page { ot 7

=i Pagelra



1PLISIT SUY 1908 _
s Jouire] ‘[eAn :
MOY Juol1y) Sjud

Ksjoryiog 18 oocoﬁ&
Kages orjqnd apia mm

L s 8 8 8{ ¥ S

3
(neamg co_EoEoOD‘%
: 1T | IOUSIA ‘W[BSH [BIUSIN
811 01 91| 81 1T ¥4 1T ‘add ‘vedq) sioureq

o . _ : UMOIUMOT YUM 3N

STIedD

0% JuBYOIS 0) puodsay

0n - sc| ov| or| ov| ov| o

(suoneoiay

/ sonss] Yijesy

: Tews / Sutjpusyuey
(1}74 _ ST o o oy o OF OF | oAIssai33y) siolaeyag
4 19311S onBwWIR[qOI]
Ul UoTIuAIU]

09 _ SUONOAII(] / SOUBISISSY
.@ 08¥ : 08 08 08 08 08 08

) 098
v | s L L 2 L L SHoosH

810 sunf | AgN | [udy | yoreN q34 uef % AON 1°0 idag | Sny Ang 901A19GJuduOdwo))

S9pIMD AJ[NISH NV ID0Ud

‘9y8udoidde s SsuUI[PESp UONONIISUOD JO *SSUOISI|IW ‘SIUSAS
reoyruis ‘saseyd 199foxd “soru0d Juredionred Jo Jsquinu ‘Quow yYors PaAIss 9q 0} paradxs syuedionred mau jo 1squunu spnjouy ‘1osfoid/ureiSoid
12d 10ays ueidyiop suo Jwqgns pue 339[dwo) "901A19s 10 Jusuodwos Jofew Yoes 10§ 900T ‘0€ Sunf — 50T ‘1 Ang pouad 3y} 10J sanIAnoR A3 ISI7]

SHAIND AHTANEHY — NV'1d 0OM



,
?
i
!
|

Page 56 of 102

COMMUNITY AGENCY
EXHIBIT B
COMPOSITE PROGRAM BUDGET

REVENUE & EXPENSE SUMMARY

BERKELEY GUIDES I Period 1/1/06-6/30/06
Contractor: Berkeley Boosters Assoc./PAL APPROPRIATE REQUIREMENTS
SOURCES OF FUNDS TOTAL  |Expenditure Categories

Salaries & Services &
Revenue Categories Benefits Supplies] Fixed Assets

1. CITY OF BERKELEY ALLOCATED FUNDS

A.CDBG

B. ESG

C.CSBG

D. General Funds

25,328

4,315

E. Measure "E"

F. Others, Specify: S+C

Sub-Totals

$ 25,328

$ 4,315

0. OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS
A. Federal ‘

B. State

1. Education $ -
2. Family Planning $ -
3. Prop 99 $ -
4. Other: Specify $ -
5. Other: Specify $ -

Federal & State Sub-Totals| § - $ - $ - $ -
C. Other Local (Redevelopment/Rent Board) $ -
D. County $ -
E. Patient/Client Fees/ $ -
F. Private/Foundations/Corporations $ -
G. Fundraising Activity/Inkind $ -
H. Miscellaneous/Other Local Gov. $ -

Other Sub-Totals| § - - $ - $ -

GRANTTOTAL}$ 20643 |$ 25328 43151 % -

Page_[ of 4
| ExhibibBye 76




Page 57 of 102

Page Z of &

2€9'6L $ - $ 1000 2€89 $]120 0082t $(Sl'C sjejo | -qng ebey
- m ) -
- $
- $
- $
- w . -
c8e $ 2g %L 0S¢ %6 000y 01’0 Bununosoy
0s.'9 ¢ %0 0S.'9 %001 0629 020 SU09S3 B | Pey
008 $ 008 %Y %0 000'02 ov'0 3QIN5 swi| ved
0002 $ 0002 %9 %0 2ro'ee 00t 3aIND J01ueg
008c $ %0 008'2 %001 0082 (2) s1osusdng
000't  $ 000°c %8 %0 G9G'9¢ 00'L 10]eUIpI00)
0s8‘'t ¢ 00y %1 0S¥'L %E 0052y 00’1 loyoaug eAnensiuiwpy
0s0‘’c ¢ 009 %l 0S¥'L %E 000'9S 004 10108110 8AIINdaX3
- $
2101 junowy 314 () [unowy 314 () [unowy 314 () |(Aeesienuuy | 314(,) | smuonisod sabep ® Alejes
c#| sapiny Asjoyuog 2# SHo2s3 1HYg L# S123rodd
selobaen ainypuadxy
laquinp 10enuo) 90/0€/9-90/1/1 pouad Aiobaje) UONBIDOSSY S181500g Adjdiag :0JOBIUOD
9JIAIBGS 10BIU0D

— jogebeq
g naux3

(AluQ s1uapisay Asjariag 0) papinoid wwo_?_wmv
[reyeq seuobale) ainypuadx3 g S83IN0S enusAsY
196png weibo.id susodwo)

Aouaby Aunwwio)

Exhibitd -7



Page 58 of 102

®

aoueInsu| [euag
soueInsu| yyesH
dwo)) SIaIOM

XVL TI0HAvd
psywiun 9,Gy| 81ed-IpsiN
006‘v8$ 01 dn %g'9 ¥OId

&
O =
geesz $| - S 0068 $ gzv'ol $ [B101 sujouag 1§ mm_a_mwcx_ &
ke
969G $ - $ 8902 $ 829t $ [e101-ans siyaued| o i
o
&
8YI0

sjyyauag
L TES - $ {000 2€8'9 $|120" 0082t $1S51C jej01-qng Aiejes

- $

- $

- $

- $

- $

- $

- $

- $

- $

- $

- % )
[el0L junowy 314 () [unowy 314 () [unowy 314 () [fees ETEL®) 3 1/uonisod
. : fenuuy sabepp @ Alejeg
e#| sopino Asjariieg Z#|  SW00s3 LHvE L# (ANOD) S123roud
, saliobaje) ainypuadxy
30 ¢ abeqd

(AluD swuaplsay Aajaylag 0] papirold S82INIBS)
relaq sysuag B ssuobaje) ainypuadxy
196png weiboig eysodwon
Asuaby Ajunwwo?)



@

Page 59 of 102

(AuO swuspisay Asjaxiag 0} PapInCld S92IMBS)
[lele@ ssuobajen ainppuadx3 % $821N0S SnuaAay

186png weiboid aysodwo)
Aouaby Ajlunwwo?)

. o))
3 3 13 - \m
£v9'62 $ $ [ o000l $ [ eva'el $ 19bpng (€10 e
@ Ll
82€°ST _ $ $ | 006’8 $ | 82vol $ [E101-GNS SHJSUSE % SOLEieS|
Q.
- $ s - s - $ |e101-qNng S19sSy paxid
- $ S18sSy pexig
SIEY $ $|oo0t't $ | sie’e 8 lelo1-gng saljddng @ sa9|AI9S
- $ 18yl0
S12°L $ 00! GLLL weawdinbg :ewO
0S $ 0S salddng
- $ EG
0s. $ 0S¢ 00S Bunuud
002 $ 0S 0S1 abejsog
00S $ 0S¢ 0S1 auoyds|a]
056 $ 002 0SL aoueINSU|
0se $ 0]°] 00c ssinn
oov $ 0§ 0se jusy
salddng B sadinlag
leol €# sS9pinY >w_o.¥_0m c# Hoos3 1LHvE ¥ SWVYHOOHd / S103rodd
(vgaso
‘pund Jesauay) ‘'Hg3 ‘ngagn) seucbare) ainppuadxy
T j0 ¥ ebed ,
g 1qiyx3g



| Page 60 of lozj '

ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MMDDIYYYY)
'12/28/2005

- | PrODUCER _ (661)327 3111 FAX (661)327 1262
Thomas E. Mestmaker Ins & Assoc

c/o Wllson, Paves & Assoc

‘12300 Bahamas Drlve o

Bakersfleld ii'CA' "'93305'

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION
" ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE " |
.- HOLDER. - THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR -
ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. -

INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE : NAIC #

|NsureD . T s _
Berkeley Boosters Assoc1atlon PAL

INSURER A: Lexington -Ins Company- .
INSURERB: National Union Fire Ins |

PO. Box 17 INSURER C: . -
e 1 INSURER D;_
, Berkeiey‘ L CA 94701 . INsURE'R'E:
© -COVERAGES . : o

‘THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED. BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY
REQUIREMENT "TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS.CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY:PERTAIN,"
THE- INSURANCE AFFORDED BY.THE POLICIES DESCRIBED. HEREIN IS SU_BJECT TO ALL THE TERMS EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES

AGGREGATE LIMITS SHOWN MAY-HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

~ - INSRIADDLI- . —TPOLICY EFFECTIVE[POLICY EXPIRATION] -~~~ = G
- ILTR INSRD “ TYPE OF INSURANCE . _POLICY NUMBER ~ | DATE (MM/DD/YY) | DATE (MMIDDYY) |~ “ " ¢ s oo
|y i | SENERAL LiagiLITY : Co 1 s © " |EacHoCcurRence T |§"-~-.1,000,000f
ERE Dy A . o [ DAMAGE TO RENTED,- - 50,000 ¢
s X COMMERCIALGENERA[ LIABILITY S _ - ... 0. | PREMISES (Eaocourrence) - $ . it B
Al ICLA[MSMADE occuR 4194471 1/1/2006 | 1/1/2007 | 1o xp (hny one pérson) |5 excluded|
X Sex“al Abuse .. - o : PERSONAL & ADVINJURY |8~ - 1,000,000
| X[ Limit. $100 000 " .| GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GENLAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: .| PRODUCTS = COMPIOP AGG |$ 1,000,000
BOLICY - IJECT I ILOC i - : ’
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY : PR ¥ _ |:COMBINED sINGLE LIMIT v S .
N -ANY AUTO » o ’ Tl = i | :(Ea accident) R | o T
- ALLOWNEDAUTOS ’ BODILY INJURY - - s
: SCHEDULEDAUTOS R -(Per person) - SN
HIREDAUTOS SN ", | BODILY INSURY s
“NON- OWNEDAUTOS I  (Per accident _
v | PROPERTY DAMAGE .~ s
N ) (Per accident) .- . S
GARACELIABILITY o ‘AUTO ONLY EA ACCIDENT $
: ANYAUTO' : SEra | T | OTHER THAN EAACC $
Ll SRR e ST T T AUTOORLYE AGG |5
s EXCESS/UMBRELLA LTy, L EACHOCCURRENCE - [
; OC_C_UR I:] CLAIMS MADE ST o ~AGGREGATE s
DEDUCTIBLE L f _ s
e 'RETENTION § e 5 ‘ ~_1s
]| WORKERS COMPENSATION AND . . TO(RYS s | - |9
¢} EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY © . ... i B
'ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE - L E.L..EACHACCIDENT o
[ OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? .- | EL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE|S
| ffyes, descnbe under . .. o i
SPECIAL PROVISIONS bélow _ E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT |$ L o
. L OTHER.. oo le e RO B REE R L:.mit o o ©.850,000] ¢ .
_B' ! _’ Accxdent Medlcal;' ‘S_RG9'1'016'9“0 1/,1/2006.,9 1’/1‘/2_00_,7- o "Deductible P $50.00) .
‘ ST R : il ) ol (_Per Occurrence ) s

la 10 day notice of cancellatlon

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONSILOCATIONSNEHICLESIEXCLUSIONS ADDED BY ENDORSEMENT/SPECIAL PROVISIONS . . g . ;
P City of Berkeley Its Officers,. Agents, . Volunteers and Employees are named as Additlonal Insured with: respects to the 1
: General Liabillty -and- only w1th regards to the operations of the Named Insured * non payment of premlum w111 result in]” -

'CERTIFICATE HOLDER

" CANCELLATION

..‘Ci'ty;' of' Berchelley'

» Its- Offic‘efs'rAgents,
“Employees . i
2180 M11v1a Stree &
‘ Berkeley,_ A°194704

Volunteer"andj”

. '”FAILURE TO DO SO SHALL IMPOSE NO OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND UPON THE' N

' SHOULD "ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THEL, E
_EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF THE ISSUING INSURER WILL ENDEAVOR TO MAIL:.
3 0 " DAYS WRITTEN NOTICE TO T EICERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT BUT .

-.:'INSURER ITS AGENTS OR REPRESENTATIVES
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE R

Mlke Wllson/RP

: ACORD 25 (2001/08)
IN3025 (0108)06 L AMS

_V' P Morigage S_olutions, Inc‘. (800)327-0545. o

© ACORD CORPORATION 1988
Page §Q1 o2




o I o Pageelof 1020 '”LVIVCY'HvO.LD_IEI‘i' COPY
STATE - PO. 'f'Bo'X' 4208_’07,.'SAN FF\”‘ANCISCO,CA 9’4142_'—'08‘0,'7 o

COMPENSATION .. - : . i : i - . ) N

INSURANCE”»‘“T-

CERTIFICATE OF WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE

]ISSUE DATE o1 o1 2oos .:7 ""'f;.~754»' f~3'5 " GROUP: 5*v‘ *‘rﬁéa 000380
o o T UORINDREIE POLICY NUMBER: ~ ~ 0000808 - 2oos
CERTIFICATE ID: .. - .18 -

'CERTIFICATE EXPIRES:. 01-01-2007
’ 01 O1 2006/01 -01- 2007

CITY OF BERKELEY o R - "NB
PARKS & RECREATION C\O MARK SELEZNow S
2180 MILVIA ST . - ST BT
_BERKELEY ‘CA 94704 N ; ,,,-".g T

'Thls is to certlfy that we have lssued a vahd Workers Compensatron msurance pol|cy in
Cahforrua Insurance Commnssroner to the employer named below for the pollcy perlod »ndlcated

,'We'.WiII als‘oi_gi\_/e‘yoLI'a'b: days adyanc‘:e: n‘otIC“e sh’ou_ld this ‘p'o'IiCy 'be'..caricelled;‘_’pri'o'r to its -’Hormal 'expiratioh.

by the policy listed ‘herein. Notwrthstandlng any requirement, term or condition of any contract'of other document
with respect to. which. this certificate of .insurance may be. issued or to’ which it may pertain, the insurance
afforded by the pollcy descrlbed hereln |s subJect to aII lhe terms exclu5|ons and condmons of such pohcy

PRESIDENT

!AUTHORQED REPRESENTAﬂVE N ST S
EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY LIMIT INCLUDING DEFENSE COSTS 81, 000, ooo PER OCCURRENCE

.ENDDRSEMENT #2065 ENTITLED CERTIFICATE HDLDERS’ NOTICE EFFECTIVE 01 01- 1999 IS
ATTACHED TO AND. FORMS A PART OF THIS POLICY ..

EMPLOVER -

':?BERKELEY BODSTERS ASSDCIATION (A NON PRDFIT
-, CORP..) -
- PO BOX 17 O *g

-EERKELEY cA 94701,,

'i::mEVE-ga ) .geRIRrED 12 17 2005

-Th|s cernflcate of msurance is not an insurance - pollcy and does not arnend extend or alter the coverage afforded

o NB

»form approved by the

-'Thvis_ p'olioy_'_ isvnot‘ subjec_tv to'- tancella o'n_‘ by.,the Fund exoept'upor\f 30 : day§ 'adva’hcef VYritfen'rio,tic_e to"t‘he', 'er‘nplo'yer. -

Page 81

- .Mo4oe“‘ui?



@ Page 62 of ;02 g ’

ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
8/4/2006

PRODUCER (661)327-3111 FAX (661)327-1262

Thomas E Mestmaker Ins & Assoc
c/o Wilson, Paves & Assoc‘
2300 Bahamas Drive- :

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION
ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE
HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR
ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW.

INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE __

Bakersfield’ (. ca 93309 INAICH . . .
INSURED . ¢ Bo il st 7 : L\/}/\ iINsURER A: Lexington Ins Company '
Berkeley ‘Boosters- Assoc:.at:.on PAL q/z insurer 8: National Un:.on ‘Fire TIns N
PO'Box 17 -~ (O INSURERC: | i
. T INSURER D;
Berkeley CA 94701 INSURER E:
COVERAGES

AGGREGATE LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY
REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN,
THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES.

TR INSRD TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER PSH%Y(WSSWF POATE. (MDY " LIMITS
| GENERAL LIABILITY, EACH OCCURRENCE 3 1,006,000
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY A L e ey s 50,000
A I CLAIMS MADE occur| 4194471 1/1/2006 |1/1/2007 MED EXP (Any one person)  |$ excluded
| X | Sexual Abuse PERSONAL & ADV INJURY  |$ 1,000,000
| X |Limit $100,000 GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LlMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG [$ 1,000,000
_| POLICY l_| B [_l Loc
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 'COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT . v
.| any AauTo ; . ‘ (Ea accident) S
“}oo T AuL owneD AUTOS: BT T T S e " BOD[LYINJURY JUTUT B
+ || scHepuLepAutos o i . ~ ' - : ‘-' Si. 70| (Perperson) T $
|| #irep auTos RN N BODiLY.INJURY s
. || NON-OWNED AUTOS (Per accident)
T _ M PRéPEéﬁr DAMAGE s
(Per accident)
| GARAGE LIABILITY ' AUTO ONLY - EA ACCIDENT |$
e s
: AGG [$
EXCESS/UMBRELLA LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s
OCCUR CLAIMS MADE AGGREGATE [
$
DEDUCTIBLE $
| RETENTION _§ $
HORKERS COMPENSATON AND SRvliiits | [
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? & L DISEASE - EA ENPLOYEE!S
If yes, describe under
SPECIAL PROVISIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LiMiT |8
OTHER Limit ' $50,000
B | Accident Medical ' SRG9101690 1/1/2006 [1/1/2007 Deductible ’ $50.00
Per Occurrence

WILL RESULT IN A TEN DAY NOTICE.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES/EXCLUSIONS ADDED BY ENDORSEMENT/SPECIAL PROVISIONS

City of Berkeley Its Officers, Agents, Volunteers and Employees are included as Additional Insureds with respects to
the General Liability and only with regards to the operations of the Named Insured.

*CANCELLATION FOR NON PAYMENT

'CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

City of Berkeley,Its Officers, Agents
Volunteers and Employees

2180 Milvia Street:

Berkeley, CA 94704

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE
EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, THE ISSUING INSURER WILL ENDEAVOR TO MAIL
_3_0_ DAYS WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT, BUT
FAILURE TO DO SO SHALL IMPOSE NO OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND UPON THE
INSURER, ITS AGENTS OR REPRESENTATIVES.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE ’/"(__4_‘_/ -
Mike Wilson/RP = |
ACORD 25 (2001/08) . © ACORD CORPORJE 10K 1988 -

INS025 (0108).06 AMS

VMP Mortgage Solutions, Inc. (800)327-0545

Page 1 of 2




@ Page 63 of 102

IMPORTANT

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the.policy(ievs) must be endorsed. A statement on this
certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an
endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such
endorsement(s).

DISCLAIMER

The Certificate of Insurance on the reverse side of this form doss not constitute a contract between the issuing
insurer(s), authorized representative or producer, and the certificate holder, nor does it affirmatively or negatively
amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policies listed thereon. )

ACORD 25 (2001/08)
INS025 (0108).06 AMS i ' Page 2 of 2
‘ Page 83



Page 64 of 102

RESOLUTION NO. 57,737 -N.S.

AUTHORIZING FUNDING FOR THE RESPECT PROGRAM ESCORT SERVICE AT
THE NORTH AND SOUTH BERKELEY BART STATIONS DURING EVENING
COMMUTE HOURS FOR THE PERIOD NOVEMBER 1 THROUGH DECEMBER 31,
1994, AND EXECUTION OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH
BERKELEY BOOSTERS AND BREAK THE CYCLE TO INCLUDE THESE SERVICES

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

That the City Manager is hereby authorized to provide funding for the RESPECT
Program Escort Service at the North and South Berkeley BART Stations during evening
commute hours for the period November 1 through December 31, 1994 in an amount not to
exceed $15,000, to escort commuting residents to their cars and homes and to assist in
forming groups of residents to walk with one another to their destinations; and that during
this time the City Manager shall (1) contact BART regarding sharing of financial support and
(2) present to the Council the results of a program evaluation and a recommendation
regarding the continuance of the service.

FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is authorized to execute an
amendment to the agreement with Berkeley Boosters and Break the Cycle to cover these
services; a record signature copy of the amendment to be filed in the Office of the City

Clerk.




Page 65 of 102

Copies sent _11/4/94
To: Health & Human Services
City Manager

Independent Task Force
on Homelessness

RESOLUTION

No._57,737 N.S.

Dated November 1, 1994

Adopted by the Council of the City of Berkeley by the following vote:

Ayes: Councilmembers Collignon, Dean, Maio, Olds, Shirek, Spring, Wainwright,
Woodworth and President Leiter.

Noes: None.
Abstaining: None.

Absent: None.

JEFFREY S. LEITER
Mayor and President of the Council

Attest: SHERRY M. KELLY
City Clerk and Clerk of the Council

Page 85




Page 66 of 102

MINUTES
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING

November 1, 1994

Section A. Preliminary Matters

1. Roll Call: 7:08 p.m.

Present: Councilmembers Collignon, Dean, Maio, Olds, Shirek, Spring,
Wainwright, Woodworth, President Leiter and Acting City Manager
Rucker.

Absent: None.

2. Ceremonial Matters:

a. Presentation of the Meritorious Service Award from the California Emergency
Services Association to the Hills Emergency Forum.

b. Proclamation proclaiming the week of November 13 through November
20,1994 as Ecology Center Week in honor of the Ecology Center’s 25th
Anniversary.

c. Proclamation in observation of Diwali, the Indian New Year.

3. Comments From The Public: 11 speakers heard.
Comments from: Bert J. Mondino, 3010 Shattuck; Carolyn Erbele, 1711 Channing;
John Roberts, 2927 Newbury Street; Clifford Fred, 1334 Peralta Avenue; William
Rentz, 2262 Summer Street; John Yellen, P. O.Box 13531; Mark Liolios, 1846
Parker Street; John Raina, Jr., 1455 Stannage Avenue; Nancy Bickel, 1522 Summit;
Dan Craig, 2230 Shattuck Avenue; Arash Davallon, 2601 Channing Way #309.

4, Consent Calendar: Various actions to remove, withdraw, and/or continue items as
noted in specified sections.

S. Report-Closed Session: No report

November 1, 1994 Council Minutes Page 1
Page 86



Page 67 of 102

Section B. Action On Minutes

Meeting of October 4 (spec. closed) and October 4 (reg.), 1994
Action: Approved Minutes of October 4, 1994 regular meeting. Continued Closed
Session minutes to next meeting.
Motion:

Moved, seconded, carried (Wainwright/Spring) to take the action shown
above.

Section D. Consent Calendar

The Second Reading of Ordinances was moved to the Consent Calendar by Councilmember
Collignon, moved for adoption by Councilmember Wainwright and seconded by
Councilmember Woodworth, and adopted by unanimous vote of the Council unless otherwise
stated:

1. Amending Section 5 of Ordinance No. 5061-N.S. Transfer Tax (Section 7.52.060
of the Berkeley Municipal Code), to extend the time limit on the completion of
seismic work for purposes of the seismic retrofit exemption.

Action: Adopted Ordinance No. 6262-N.S. Effective: December 1, 1994

2. Authorizing the City of Berkeley to vacate a 5-foot wide sewer easement located
at 1197 Cragmont and authorizing the execution of related quitclaim deed to
Douglas and Patricia Hill.

Action: Adopted Ordinance No. 6263-N.S. Effective: December 1, 1994

Section D. Consent Calendar

The Consent Calendar was moved by Councilmember Wainwright, seconded by
Councilmember Woodworth, and adopted by unanimous vote of the Council unless otherwise
stated:

(a) From City Manager:

1. Needle Exchange Emergency Distribution
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution reviewing and confirming the continued
existence of a local emergency with regard to HIV transmission from use of
HIV-infected needles among injection drug users, and authorizing the Director of
Public Health to take steps to enable the operation of needle exchange emergency
distribution. Expense: None
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 57,733 -N.S.

November 1, 1994 Council Minutes Page 2
Page 87



Page 68 of 102

2. Contract: X-Rays And Laboratory Services
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing a contract with Alta Bates Medlcal
Center for X-rays and laboratory services for calendar years 1993 and 1994; and
authorizing execution of any amendments.
Expense: Not to exceed $17,500 per each contract year
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 5§7,734-N.S.

3. Contract: Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the Plans and Specifications for
Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project Sub-Basin 11-107A at Santa Barbara Road,
Indian Rock Avenue, Shattuck Avenue and Visalia Avenue; accepting the bid and
awarding a contract to Woods Construction Company. Expense: $529,511
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 57,735-N.S.

4. Application: PG&E Energy Advantage Program
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit an
application to the PG&E Energy Advantage Program for participation in its energy
efficiency project support and low-cost financing program and accept funds, if
awarded, and execute the resultant agreement and any amendments.
Revenue: Annual Net Savings: $53,000 after Loan Repayment in year 6 of the
Agreement.
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 57,736-N.S.

() From Mayor and Council:

1. Trash Pick Up Time On Bowditch And Channing
From: Councilmember Carla Woodworth
Recommendation: That Council direct the City Manager to modify pick-up times on
Bowditch and Channing at the request of the residents. Expense: None
Action: Approved recommendation.

2. Funding For RESPECT Escort Service For Two Months
From: Councilmembers Linda Maio, Maudelle Shirek and Mayor Jeffrey Leiter
Recommendation: That Council provide two months of funding for the RESPECT
Program Escort Service at North Berkeley and South Berkeley BART stations during
the evening commute hours to escort commuting residents to their cars and homes,
and to assist in forming groups of residents to walk with one another to their
destinations, during which time the City Manager will 1) contact BART regarding
sharing of financial support ; and 2) present to the Council the results of a program
evaluation and a recommendation regarding the continuance of the service
Action: Approved recommendation. Adopted Resolution No. §7,737-N.S.

November 1, 1994 Council Minutes Page 3
age 88



Page 69 of 102

(c) From Others:

1. Review Of Sanitary Sewer Fund Billing
From: City Auditor Anna Rabkin
Recommendation: That Council request report back by January 31, 1995 on
implementation of audit recommendations to collect over $3 Million estimated owing
to the Sanitary Sewer Fund. Revenue: Estimated owing $3,050,000 to $3,335,000
Contact: Anna Rabkin, City Auditor, 644-6440
a. City Manager Report For Information
Action: Removed from Consent Calendar for discussion by Councilmember Dean.
Approved recommendation. Requested the City Manager report back regarding
possible exemptions for businesses impacted negatively by work on sewer
reconstruction.
Motion:

Moved, seconded, carried (Dean/Collignon) to take the action shown above.

2. Review Of Engineering Permittee’s Compliance With Business License
Requirements
From: City Auditor Anna Rabkin
Recommendation: That Council request the City Manager to report by February 1995
on implementation of procedures at permit issuing offices to ensure equitable
compliance with the Business License Tax Ordinance.
Action: Approved recommendation.

Section F. Continued or Uncompleted Items
(a) From City Manager:

1. Allocation of $60,000 Repaid By Redevelopment Agency Under Repayment
Agreement For 3000 Block Of Sacramento Street To Housing Trust Fund
(Continued from 10/4/94, Item G(a)l)

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution which 1) approves allocation of funds repaid
by the Agency under the Repayment Agreement for the 3000 Block of Sacramento
Street Project to the Housing Trust Fund and 2) directs the City Manager to include
allocation to the Housing Trust Fund in the next amendment to the Appropriation
Ordinance for Fiscal Year 94-95. Expense: $60,000

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar by Councilmember Dean. Adopted Resolution
No. §7,738-N.S.

November 1, 1994 Council Minutes Page 4
Page 89



Page 70 of 102

Reduction Of Interest Rate On Loan From The City To The Redevelopment
Agency For Development Of The 3000 Block Of Sacramento Street

(CR#93-086) (Continued from 10/4/94)

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing City Manager to amend the
Repayment Agreement between the City and the Redevelopment Agency for
development of the 3000 Block of Sacramento Street to reduce the interest rate
charged by the City. Repayment to the General Fund: $555,629

Contact: Neil Mayer, Community Development, 644-6073

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar by Councilmember Dean. Adopted Resolution
No. 57,739-N.S.

(b) From Mayor and Council:

1.

Allocation Of Funds For The Ohlone Mural

(Continued from 10/25/94, Item D(b2)

From: Councilmember Dona Spring

Recommendation: That Council allocate the $3,000 approved in the 1994-95 budget
(from Measure AA Funds) for the Ohlone Mural (work in progress) to commemorate
the Ohlone Indians in Ohlone Park. Expense: $3,000 has already been allocated and
does not involve additional funds.

a. City Manager Oral Report

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar by Councilmember Spring. Approved
recommendation. Adopted Resolution 57,740-N.S.

Section G. Reports For Action

(a) From City Manager:

1.

Contract: Lenny Goldberg & Associates

Recommendation: That Council decide whether it wishes to continue its contract with
Lenny Goldberg & Associates for legislative representation on rent control issues and
if so, adopt a Resolution authorizing execution of a contract amendment extending the
term to September 15, 1995. Expense: $13,200 from salary savings

Action: All motions failed. No Action taken.

Motion:

Prior to discussion of this item, Mayor Leiter recused himself due to conflict
of interest, and turned over the chair to Vice Mayor Collignon.

Councilmember Maio inquired of the City Attorney regarding her potential
conflict of interest. The City Attorney indicated a formal advice letter would have to
be obtained from the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) in Sacramento; that
Councilmembers Maio and Wainwright had the option to participate pending receipt
of an opinion from the FPPC. Councilmember Maio stated she would like to wait for
the FPPC opinion.

Moved, seconded, failed (Maio/Woodworth) to continue the item until a
formal opinion from the FPPC has been obtained. (Ayes - Maio, Shirek, Spring,
Woodworth; Noes - Collignon, Dean, Olds, Wainwright; Abstaining - Leiter)

Moved, seconded (Olds/Dean) not to continue the contract and wait until there

November 1, 1994 Council Minutes Page.de 00



Page 71 of 102

is some issue on rent control proposed in Sacramento and then select a consultant on a
monthly basis.

Upon further discussion, Councilmember Dean added an amendment to refer
this issue back to the Rent Stabilization Office.

Upon call of the roll, the motion failed. (Ayes - Collignon, Dean, Olds; Noes
- Shirek, Spring, Woodworth; Abstaining - Maio, Wainwright, Leiter)

Contract: Provision Of Licensed Drug/Alcohol Social Model Residential
Recovery Home Bed Days To Individuals Referred By Berkeley Mental Health
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract with Bi-Bett Corporation, for the provision of 1,095 licensed drug/alcohol
social model residential recovery home bed days to individuals referred by Berkeley
Mental Health from December 1, 1994 through November 30, 1995, and authorizing
a two-month advance payment. Expense: $50,000

Action: Adopted Resolution No. §7,741-N.S.

Motion:

Moved, seconded (Olds/Wainwright) to renegotiate this contract so that clarity
can be obtained in the bidding process and Berkeley businesses will have a chance to
be considered; that the item be brought back for reconsideration.

Moved, seconded, carried (Collignon/Maio) a substitute motion, to approve
the City Manager’s recommendation. (Noes - Olds)

Presentation And Adoption Of The Proposed Downtown Berkeley Public
Improvements Plan and Mitigated Negative Declaration
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution adopting both the 1994 Downtown Berkeley
Public Improvements Plan for public infrastructure improvements and the Mitigated
Negative Declaration per the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
Expense: Estimated to be between $7 and $8 Million
a. Board of Library Trustees Information Report
b. Planning Commission Report
c. Communications
Action: Adopted Resolution No. §7,742-N.S. and referred issues related to Negative
Declaration to the City Manager.
Motion:

Mayor Leiter recused himself from participation due to conflict of interest and
turned the chair over to Vice Mayor Collignon.

Moved, seconded, carried (Olds/Shirek) to take the action shown above.
(Abstaining - Leiter)

November 1, 1994 Council Minutes Page 6

Page 91



Page 72 of 102

(c) From Others:

1. Sather Gate Retrofit Project — Recommendation To Study Alternative Design
Work
From: Citizens Budget Review Commission
Recommendation: That the City Manager authorize that the alternative study in
parallel with the additional design work that is about to begin on the existing steel
option.
a. City Manager Report
Recommendation: That Council not reject current bids for the project as designed by
Degenkolb Engineers. Expense: Rejection of bid could result in loss of $1,300,000 in
FEMA monies and possible legal action by contractors/subcontractors.
Action: Approved the City Manager’s recommendation not to reject current bids and
continue with the project.
Motion:

Moved, seconded (Collignon/Shirek) to approve the City Manager’s
recommendation.

Moved, seconded, failed (Woodworth/Dean) to approve the Citizens Budget
Review Commission’s recommendation. (Ayes -Dean, Olds, Woodworth; Noes -
Collignon, Maio, Shirek, Spring, Leiter; Abstaining - Wainwright)

The main motion carried. (Ayes - Collignon, Maio, Shirek, Spring,
Woodworth, Leiter; Noes - Dean, Olds, Wainwright)

Section H. Reports For Information
(c) From Others:
1. Measure O

From: Peace & Justice Commission
Action: Received and filed.

November 1, 1994 Council Minutes e 7
age 92



Page 73 of 102

Section 1. Priority Items (Set For Certain)

1. PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING ZONING APPEAL, 2109 CEDAR STREET
(Continued from 10/18/94, Item L.3)
a. Appeal filed by Charles Forline against the decision of the Zoning Adjustments
Board which denied without prejudice (1) Use Permit under Section 9E.2(e) to
establish a food service in an existing retail commercial space and (2) Variance under
Section 9E.8(b)(2) to establish a food service without providing the required one
additional off-street parking space (Submitted 9/20/94)
b. Zoning Adjustment Board Report (Submitted 9/20/94)
c. Communication from Charles Forline (submitted 9/20/94)
Action: Closed public hearing. Adopted Resolution No. 57,743-N.S. overruling the
Zoning Adjustments Board’s decision and granting the Use Permit and Variance based
on findings and subject to conditions contained in the City Manager’s report which
was submitted for this meeting.
Motion:
Moved, seconded, carried (Wainwright/Maio) to close the public hearing.
Moved, seconded, carried (Olds/Dean) to overrule the Zoning Adjustments
Board’s decision and grant the Use Permit and Variance based on findings and subject
to conditions contained in the City Manager’s report.

Section J. Communications
The following communications were read, noted and filed, uniess otherwise shown:

1. Mila Tolbert, Co-Chair, Oakland & March McGaugh, Co-Chair,
Berkeley, The Association Of Concerned Neighbors Of Bateman-
Fairview Park, regarding the AHA/BOSS proposal for a halfway house
at 2350 Woolsey Street.

2. Communications in support of proposed Rose Street residence for AIDS
patients:

Joyce Kraus, 1510 Summit Road

Bryan Uhlewbrock, 287 Hanover Avenue, Oakland, CA.

Sue Friday, 5361 Manila Avenue, Oakland, CA.

Leon Moffett, 287 Hanover Avenue, Oakland, CA.

Carol Mosher, Berkeley Friends Meeting

David C. Barrows, 240 Grand Avenue #24, Oakland, CA.

Lucy Jane Bledsoe, 1226 Cedar Street

Patricia E. Mullan, 1226 Cedar Street

3. Richard Katz, 39th Assembly District, State Capitol, Sacramento, CA.,
regarding Domestic Partners Registry bill.

4. Rick Crispino, Executive Director, P. O. Box 3780, copy of letter to
Department of Health and Human Services Mental Health Division,
announcing Bonita House has been chosen as one of six projects
nationwide to receive a second round of funding through the
Cooperative Agreements for Federal CMHA/CSAT Collaborative
Demonstration Program for Homeless Individuals.

FRome AR TR

November 1, 1994 Council Minutes Page 8
Page 93



Page 74 of 102

s. Petition filed with the Berkeley City Clerk, with recommendations
from John Yellen at the request of Councilperson Linda Maio at the
Council meeting of Oct. 18, 1994 regarding proposed removal of
residential Street Sweeping Program Westbrae/Gilman Commercial
District. Referred to the City Manager by Councilmember Maio.

6. Connie Silvey, 1411 Gilman Street, regarding a proposed casino at the
foot of Gilman Street.
7. Tra-My Culp, regarding the need for a left turn light at the

intersection at University and San Pablo Avenue. Referred to the
City Manager by Councilmember Maio.

8. Charles Smith, 61 San Mateo Road, submitting article entitled "
Bicycles and Buses”,

Section K. Adjournment

Adjourned at 10:03 p.m.

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct
copy of the minutes of November 1, 1994, as approved
by the Berkeley City Council.

ATTEST:
. City Clerk and Clerk of the Council

November 1, 1994 Council Minutes PaE% ge a4



Page 75 of 102

RESOLUTION NO.57,832-N.S.

AUTHORIZING FUNDING FOR THE RESPECT PROGRAM ESCORT SERVICE AT THE
ASHBY AND NORTH BERKELEY BART STATIONS DURING EVENING COMMUTE
HOURS FOR THE PERIOD FEBRUARY 1 THROUGH MARCH 25, 1995, AND EXECUTION
OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH BERKELEY BOOSTERS
ASSOCIATION TO EXTEND THESE SERVICES.

BE IT RESOLVED by Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

That the City Manager is hereby authorized to provide funding for the RESPECT
Program Escort Service at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations during evening
commute hours for the period February 1, 1995 through March 25, 1995 in an amount not
to exceed $13,561, to provide escort services and coordination of safe travel to local
destinations.

FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is authorized to execute an amendment

to the agreement with Berkeley Boosters Association to include these services; a record

signature copy of the amendment to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk.

Page 95



Page 76 of 102

Copies sent _1//20/95

To: Health and Human Services

RESOLUTION

No._57.832 N.S.

Dated January 17, 1995

Adopted by the Council of the City of Berkeley by the following vote:

Ayes: Councilmembers Armstrong, Maio, Olds, Shirek, Spring, Wainwright,
Woodworth, Woolley-Bauer and President Dean.

Noes: None.
Abstaining:  None.

Absent: None.

SHIRLEY DEAN
Mayor and President of the Council

Attest: SHERRY M. KELLY
City Clerk and Clerk of the Council

Page 96



Page 77 of 102

RESOLUTION NO. 58,160-N.S.

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT AND ANY AMENDMENTS WITH
BERKELEY BOOSTERS INC. FOR THE RESPECT PROGRAM BART ESCORT SERVICE FOR
FY 1995-96.

WHEREAS, the RESPECT Program has completed three successful years of service to "at risk"
youth and has also established a successful escort program for BART patrons from the Ashby and
North Berkeley BART stations during the Standard Time months of November through March; and

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley has received ‘approximately $50,000 from BART for one-time
equipment costs to support this program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the City
Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with the Berkeley Boosters Inc. RESPECT
Program to provide an escort service for BART patrons during the months of November 1995
through March 1996 in an amount not to exceed $45,000 to be paid from budget code 010-4693-
440.34-11.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Contractor may receive a two-month advance payment.

FURTHER RESOLVED that record signature copies of said contracts and any amendments to be
on file in the Office of the City Clerk.

The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Berkeley City Council on September 12, 1995,
by the following vote:

Ayes: Councilmembers Maio, Shirek, Spring, Wainwright and President Dean,
Noes: Councilmember Olds.

Abstain: Councilmembers Armstrong and Woodworth.

Absent: Councilmember Woolley-Bauer.

SHIRLEY DEAN
Mayor and President of the Council

Attest: SHERRY M. KELLY
City Clerk and Clerk of the Council

Page 97




Page 78 of 102

RESOLUTION NO. 58,636-N.S.

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT AND ANY
AMENDMENTS WITH BERKELEY BOOSTERS ASSOCIATION FOR THE RESPECT
PROGRAM AND THE BART ESCORT SERVICE PROGRAM IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $87,500 FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 1996 TO JUNE 30, 1997

WHEREAS, the RESPECT Program has been successfully providing service to "at risk" youth
since 1993; and

WHEREAS, the Program provides classroom education 1n ethnic diversity in Berkeley, and

WHEREAS, the Program provides escort services from the Ashby and North Berkeley BART
Stations during the months of November through March.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the City
Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract and any amendments with Berkeley Boosters
Association to provide services to "at risk" youth under the RESPECT Program and Escort
Service from Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations during the months of November through
March in an amount not to exceed $87,500 from budget code 010-4676-440.34-11 for the period
July 1, 1996 to June 30, 1997.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Berkeley Boosters Association shall receive a two-month
advance payment. A record signature copy of said contract and any amendments are on file in
the Office of the City Clerk.

The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Berkeley City Council on September 17, 1996,
by the following vote:

Ayes: Councilmembers Armstrong, Maio, Olds, Shirek, Spring, Wainwnight,
Woodworth, Woolley-Bauer and President Dean.

Noes: None

Absent: None.

%Aﬁ«/t———-
/S(hirley Dedn

Mayor and President of the Council

Attest: Mn }L,LJ/U/U-/{ s

Sherry M. Kdlly
City Clerk and Clerk of thg/Council




Page 79 of 102

RESOLUTION NO. 59,012-N.S.

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT AND ANY AMENDMENTS
WITH BERKELEY BOOSTERS ASSOCIATION FOR THE RESPECT PROGRAM AND THE BART
ESCORT SERVICE PROGRAM, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $87,500 FOR THE PERIOD
JULY 1, 1997 THROUGH JUNE 30, 1998

WHEREAS, the RESPECT Program has been successfully providing services to "at risk" youth since
1993; and

WHEREAS, the Program provides classroom education in ethnic diversity in Berkeley; and

WHEREAS, the Program provides escort services from the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations
during the months of November, 1997 through March, 1998.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the City Manager
is hereby authorized to execute a contract and any amendments with Berkeley Boosters Association to
provide services to "at risk" youth under the RESPECT Program, and Escort Service from Ashby and
North Berkeley BART Stations during the months of November, 1997 through March, 1998 in an amount
not to exceed $87,500 from budget code 010-4676-440.34-11 for the period July 1, 1997 to June 30, 1998.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Berkeley Boosters Association shall receive a two-month advance
payment. A record signature copy of said contract and any amendments to be on file in the Office of the
City Clerk.

The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Berkeley City Council on June 10, 1997, by the
following vote:

Ayes: Councilmembers Armstrong, Breland, Maio, Olds, Shirek, Spring, Woolley, Worthington
and Mayor Dean.

Noes: . None.

Absent: None.

ghirley Deﬁ, Mayor

I‘J': ,-"’ 7 )
NI - feres
Sherry M<Kfelly, City 7‘erk

o

Attest:

Telecommunications Device for the Deaf - (510) 644 6915

Page 99



Page 80 of 102

- RESOLUTION NO. 62,124-N.S.

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITY OF BERKELEY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2004 -

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2003 the City Manager presented to the Council a Proposed Biennial |
Budget for fiscal years 2004 and 2005, and

WHEREAS the City Manager’s Proposed Budget included a specific balancing plan to address
the projected budget deficits for FY2004, a contingency plan for additional reductions in the
event of mid-year impacts from the State Budget, and preliminary reduction proposals to address
the looming FY2005 deficit; and

WHEREAS, the City Council held a series of meetings to consider the Proposed Budget,
including public hearings held on May 20th, 2003 and Junel 7™2003, and; :

WHEREAS, members of the City Council presented recommended revisions to the Proposed
Budget at the Council meeting of June 10" and the Special Meeting of June 17", and;

- WHEREAS, in addition to formal budget adoption, Council action is required to authorize two-
month advances for selected community agencies receiving City funds in FY2004;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that City Council approves the FY2004 Budget as
contained in the City Manager’s Proposed FY2004 & FY2005 Budget, presented on May 13%,
2003 (Attachment A and Attachment A - Exhibit 1), and amended by the City Council on June
24" 2003 (Attachment B), including the reailocation of up to $140,000 in Bicycle Plan -
Implementation funds for construction on new, permanent and landscaped traffic circles.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the appropriations constituting the FY2004 Adopted |
Budget will be reflected in a separate FY2004 Annual Appropriation Ordinance, as required by
City Charter.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council adopts the contingency plan (Attachment
A — Exhibit 2) consisting of additional budget reductions that may be needed in order to address
potential adverse impacts from the FY2004 State Budget, provided that the City Manager will
present a report to the City Council assessing the impacts of the State Budget and, if needed,
recommending mid-year balancing measures prior to implementing any of the contingency plan
reductions.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager is directed to ensure that salary savings
from vacant positions be held in reserve to help further buffer any adverse impacts from the State
Budget; and be it

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council commits to a series of city-wide priority-

setting discussions to inform development of recommendations to address the looming $8
million General Fund deficit projected for FY2005.

Page 100




Page 81 of 102

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager is authorized to execute contracts and/or
amendments, as necessary, to provide two-month advances to selected community agenc1es,
receiving City funds in FY2004 as reflected in Attachment C.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager is authorized to finalize and submit the
Community Action Plan for the Community Services Block Grant for 2004.

The foregoing Resolutlon was adopted by the Berkeley City Council on June 24, 2003 by
the following vote:

Ayes: Councilmembers Breland, Hawley, Maio, Spring, Worthington, Wozniak and

Mayor Bates.
Noes: Councilmeinber Olds.
Abstain: Counc_ilmember Shirek.

Absent: None.

: Tom Bates, Mayor
Attest: M‘(} o . ‘
 SHerry M. Klly, %ty/aérk .

Page 101




N
o
-l
Y
[e]
AN
(0]
Q
[@)]
©
o

ATTACHMENT A




Attachment A

EXweiT- 4

GENERAL FUND - Recurring Reductions

Fund Transfer {from General Fund to Other Funds) )

Fire Emergency Sefvices
HHS Envimonmental Health
HHS Mental Heaith ~

HHS Public Health

Housing

Housing

Human Resources Administretion -

PRW
Planning Toxics *

Transporation . Administration

Page 83 of 102

‘ City Manager's
" Budget Reductions Proposals
- FY 2004

Transfer staff costs to Measure Q - Emergency Fire Equipment
Offica Specialist II-Shift 18% costs to Sewer Fund

Transfer General Fund costs to MH Realignment funds
Transfer General Fund costs to other funds

Housing Trust Fund / Shift to CDBG (RHIP Fees)
Transfer funding for .15 Sr. Planner to Permit Fund

Transfer 10% of Director salary and IS Support Technician &
Training Funds .

Transfer .20 of 0S!I to Playground Camp Fund

Reallbcate labor costs to other funds

* Shiftstaffing costs to Off-Street Parking Fund

Sub-Total Transfers

50,000
26,746
331,823
154,213
130,000
10,000
29,088
11,642
15,254

30,000

$

788,773

Page 103




oL Page 84 of 102

City Manager's
Budget Reductions Proposals
FY 2004

Expenditure Reductions
Cltywide ~ Facllities Maintenance Redwce Cltywide Facilities Maint. Costs i $ 50,000
Citywide Fleet Maintenance Reduce Fleet Costs / No. of Vehicles and Malnt, Costs i 75,000
Citywide Administrative Overhead Telephones / Pagers/ Cell Phones 80,000
Citywide Administrative Overhead Reduce Citywide Travel Costs (20% Raductlon) . 40,000
Citywide Living Wage SetAside 133,000
378,000
City Clerk Administration Eliminate Asst. Management Analyst 1.00 \ 74,192
City Clerk Elections Reduce Runoff Election costs 15,779
’ 89,971
City Manager Administration Delets E-Civis Grant Locator conuact : . 11,000
City Manager Neighborhood Services  Delete Asst. to CM ) 1.00 v 110,689 .
City Manager Neighborhood Services  Delete CIP funding in Neigh. Services 25,000
City Manager Animal Services Delete Animal Services Operations Supervisor : . 1.00 v 74,780
City Manager Program Evaluation Delete Membership in ICMA Perf. Meas. Project 5,000
- : 226,469
Finance Eliminate one vehicle . 3.226
Finance Reduce overtime 25,000
.Finance Reduce existing contracts 100,000
Finance ' Misc program reductions ) ] 65,000
Finance Delete 1.0 Sr Fidd Representative 10 -V 72,000
Finance o Delete 2.0 OSIls / Replace with 1.0 ADSHH (Accounting) 100 F 57,401
322,627
Fire . Fire Suppression Reduce Overtime . ) 50,000
HHS ) Public Health - Delets Comm. Health Worker 1.00 " F 47,954
HHS Senior Programs - Eliminate 1 vehicle 14,300
HHS Eliminate funding for Hourly Administrative Support ) 11,000
HHS ) - Pre-Apprenticeship Program Support ] 11,430
; 84,694
Housing o Combine HIV/AIDS Housing & Homelessness Prevention Prog 30,000
Housing Reduce funding for Utllity Bill Payment Assistance . 45,000
Housing Eliminate Contract with Ecology Center ; . 1 . SR I 40,000
Housing Redyce Funding for Community Agencies (5%) - 139,000
Housing’ Reduce Sr. Mgmt. Analyst } 1.00 v 107,718
Housing ' Reduce Funding to Municipal Renewable Energy Program ' 76,000
Housing ] ’ Redlass Sr. Mgmt. Analyst to Communiy Serv. Specialist Il . F 27,000
' : : - 464,718

Page 104

7———




ur

OED
OED
OED

. OED
OED
OED
OED
OED
OED
OED -

PRW
PRW
PRW
PRW

Planning '

Planning
Planning

Police
Police
" Police
- Police

PRC -

Page 85 of 102

City Manager's
Budget Reductions Proposals
© FY 2004

Human Resources Administration .

Network Support

Economic Development

Arts

Arts

Arts

Asts

Business Assistance
Business Assistance
Business Assistance
Business Assistance
Marketing

Aquatics
Administrafion
Recreation
Recreation

Advanced Plannng
Building & Safety

" Current Planning

Community Services
Community Services
Customer Service
Patrof

Eliminate Dept Vehicle
Re-organization - Network ﬁdmiﬁJHelp Desk

Eliminate staff position i- Comm Dev. Proj. Coordinator
Reduce Arts Grants (2.5%)

Civic Arts - Berkeley Art Center Contract (2%)

Civic Arts - Community Arts Organizations (10%)-

Civic Arts - N. Shattuck Concerts

South Berkeley - Misc. Prof. Services

Wast Berkeley Market

North Shattuck Association

South Berkeley Nelghborhood Development Corp.
Adjust ConVis Contract (1% of Hotel Tax Revenues)

Close One of Five Pools during Witner Months (Rotadng anually)
Reduce Unallocated Contract Funds

Eliminate .50 Recreation Acivity Leader

Eliminate Citywide Special Programs

Reclass Planning positions
Delete Senior Mgmt. Analyst
Reclass positions / Reduce Non-Personnel Costs

Berkeley Boosters / Guides
Berkeley Boosters / Escorts

" Second Floor Counter - Reduca 1 0 FTE

Reduce Overtime

Police Review Commissior Reduce Non-Personnel Expenditures

TOTAL RECURRING GENERAL FUND PRPOSED REDUCTIONS

6.00 F

0.50 v

1.00 \Y

100 \Y

3,765

250,000

101,349
6,250
1.250
3,100
5,000

25,000
15,000

4,867
10,000

Unfunded in bassline

56,544
23.4C0
19,010

13,000
112,530
29,510

19,300

4,500
73,270
50,000

2,00

8,700 |-

155,040

$  2.453.924

$ 3,242,657

Annual FTE

185

Swom FTE
Cumulative

0
0

3,765

250,000

180,616

98,954

147,070

Page 105




Page 86 of 102

City Manager's
Budget Reductions Proposals
" FY 2004

Reduce Transfer to Public Liability Fund ’ $ 373,000
Deferral of Capital Program Allocations
Streets Capital 375,000 375,000
Sidewalk Capital 75,000 75,000
Transportation / New Traffic Signals 120,000 120,000
Parks ADA Capital 137,500 137,500
Curb Ramp ADA Capital 37,500 37,500
City Buildings ADA Capital 37,500 37,500
TOTAL One-Time General Fund Proposed Reductions $  1,155500 § 782500
OTHER RESERVES / FUND BALANCES )
Cost Savings Strategy : .
Continue Selective Hiring Freeze $ 1,000,000
Draw-down of Reserves . R v ]
General Fund Reserve ’ 1,000,000
PERS Super-Fund Savings / Offset Retirement Cost Increase . ) 1,000,000
: 1,000,000

Raservaes / Other Fund Balances

Total Available Reserve Balances (to Buffer FY2005 Reductions) $ 1000000 § 3000000

Page 106




Page 87 of 102

City Manager's

Budget Reductions Proposals

FY 2004

WIA
HHS Employment
Mental Health (065)
. HHS Mental Health
HHS Menta! Health
- HHS Mental Health (AB2034)
Berkeley Housing Authority (205)
BHA Public Housing
Measure B Sates Tax (390)
) Public Works

Parks Tax (450)

. Parks -
Parks
Parks
Parks
Parks-
Parks
Parks
Parks
Parks
Parks
Parks
" Parks
Parks
Parks

Streetlisght Assessment (470)
Public Works
Public Works

Sewer Fund (830) -
Public Works

Clean Storm Water (831)
Public Works

Funding Reduction in WIA/Employment Programs

Reduction in Mental Health Programs (FY2005)
Reduce 2.0 Mental Healith Clinlcians
Reduction in State-funded Grant Program / Homeless

Reduce Administrative Support for Public Housing
Reduce Capital Funding Aliocation

Transfer Payroll to other funds

Transfer Landscape Architect costs to Projects
Reduze Water Costs (10%)

Reduze Cell Phones/Pagers

Redwze Event Fee Walvers (Portables)
Eliminate 1.0 Landscape Gzrdener

Eliminate 1.0 Bidg Mtc Mechanic

Eliminate Seasonal Employment Program
Reduce Berketey Youth Altematives Contract
Reduce East Bay Conservation Corp Contract
Reduce budgeted overtime by 42%

Reduce budgeted landscape suppli

Eliminate 3 vehicles - .

Reduce annual CIP funding -

Additional Program Reductions
Reduce Overtime
Elimiate Survey Technician

Efiminate .5 Survay Technican

Eliminate .1 Survey Technican

Reduce Contract Services

2.00

3.00
2,00
TBD

2.00

040

0.50

0.10

Fv  § 150,000

331,823
152,239
718,645

FNV 150,000
1,000,0€0

80,850 Transfer
110,250 Transfer
32,000
5,000
15,000
\ 68,250
v 73,500
54,000
20,000
30,000
25,000
50,000
30,000
20,000

151,000
o 10,000
F 28,243

F . 35,304

F 7,061
150,000

Page 107



Page 88 of 102

City Manager's

Budget Reductions Proposals
FY 2004

Fleet Maintenance (865) )
Public Works TBD : 300,000
Facilities Malntenance (865) ' _
Public Works . Eliminate janitonial overtime 20,000
Public Works Other 80,000
7.00 $ 2544458 § 1,352,707

Page 108




Page 89 of 102

_A'r’rachrhen'r B

Office othe Mayor
~ Revised Budget Proposal

- Mayor Tom Bates

~ June 20, 2003

Page 109




Page 90 of 102

Mayor Bates Revised Budget Proposal ' -2-

Mayor Tom Bates
Revised Budget Proposal
- June 20, 2003

SUMMARY OF REQUESTED ACTIONS
JUNE 24'® CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Special Session (5 p.m.) _
1. Adopt a parking fee structure that will raise $2.8 million in new revenue.

_Regular Session (7 p.m.)
2. Adopt the'Manager's Proposed FY 2004 Budget with amendments as indicated in
Attachment A.
3. Provide Commission and the City Manager a 60 day review period for all funding
allocation increases in excess of $2500.
4. Create a State Budget Emergency Reserve.

Overview

First, I want to thank city staff, commissioners, and my colleagues for all of the time, energy, and
hard work that went into our budget process. I believe we are accomplishing this difficult task in
a way that all of Berkeley can be proud.

As we near the end of this year’s process, I respectfully put forward this revised budget proposal
(included as Auachment A) in an effort to reconcile the various budget requests and suggestions
made by Members of the Council and the public. If the Counczl is amenable, I would like to use
this revision as the starting point for our discussion on June 24",

I believe the budget presented in this revised proposal restores funding to a number of important

community services, provides a buffer to protect us from state funding cuts, and keeps our books
in balance.

Revenue Available

‘The Council will make its final decision on new parking fine revenue at the June 24™ meeting.
In this budget, I am recommending that the Council adopt a fee structure that raises $2.8 million
Unrvugh increase parking fines. A $2.8 million increase would rajse an additional $800 000
above the City Manager’s recommendation of $2 million.

Table 1 indicates this additional available revenue.

Page 110




e

Page 91 of 102

Mayor Bates Revised Budget f?roposal ' | ' , -3-
; -
Additional Parking Fine Increase $800,000
Unallocated Community Agency Funds $115,000

TOTAL FUNDING AVAILABLE $915,000

Protect Important Community Services

In ihi; proposal, 1 have reconciled the various requests made by Council Members and the '
community. (See attached spreadsheet for the specifics.) With large county and state funding
cuts expected this year, it is crucial that Berkeley protects front line programs and services.

I add one note of caution to those organizations receiving additional funding under this proposal.
If the state adopts a budget that cuts city funding, we may need to revisit these allocations. All
organizations should develop contingency plans in case the Council makes emergency tundmg
reductions later thns ﬁscal year.

. TABLE 2: l*undinﬂ Additions Iv Program

Ans Programs $105,600

Health/ Family/ Community Scrvxces $226,404

Homeless/ Housing Programs 1 $111,435

Youth and Education Programs $237,500

Other Funding Increases $5,000

TOTAL RESTORATION $685,939
 Arts Programs - $105 600

-The City has a vibrant cultural arts commumty and economy. In this budget, I

recommend restoring approximately $45,600 in arts program funding. I am also
recommending $10,000 for the Office of Economic Development to produce an arts
newsletter to help publlclze our many wonderful cultural events

I am recommendmg that we restore $50,000 of the cut made in funding for community
events. For years, the city has been budgeting costs for community events far below their
actual costs. Last year, we spent double the amount that had been budgeted for
community events. The City Manager has recommended reducing our expenditures on
community events from last year’s total of $269,542 to $195,000 in fiscal year 2004.

~ The City Manager will return in July with a recommendation on how to determine

specific event funding allocations given the adopted budget.

In addition, I am asking the Council to placé the funding earmarked for the Black
Repertory Theater into a South Berkeley Arts Reserve until 2 comprehensive report on
their organization can be completed.

- Health/ Family/ Community Services -- $226,404

In this budget, I am requesting we add $226,404 to our budget for health, family, and
community services. This funding will improve detox services, help protect families

Page 111




Page 92 of 102

‘Mayor Bates Revised Budget Proposal o ' 4.

"~ from domestic violence, help feed seniors, and keep the Ed Roberts Campus facility
moving towards permit approval.

* Homeless/ Housing Programs -- $111,435
With County and State cuts to front line homeless and housing programs, I am requestmg
that the City Council restore $111,435 to protect these essential services. This funding
will help provide food, clothing, and employment services to our homeless population.
While I am recommending that we restore funding to the Coalition for Alternatives in
Mental Health, I request that the Council direct the City Manager 1o withhold the second
six months of funding pending programmatic and structura] reforms.

* Youth and Education Programs -- $237,500
-In this budget, I am requesting we restore $95,500 in funding to youth and education
programs, including the Berkeley Youth Alternatives, Jubilee, Berkeley Cougars, and the
Flaming Five Drill Team.. In addition, I have set aside $72,000 for the Athletes United
for Peace (or other organijzation) to fund a midnight basketball program. If the Council
-approves this earmark, 1 would ask Athletes United and other organizations to submit
proposals through the relevant Commission and staff review.

_ T am alsn requesting that $70,000 be set aside for a. Youth Services Volunteer Initiative.
In response to a recogumendation from the Youth and Education Summit, we are
developing a centralized conduit for recruiting and matchmg community volunteers with
youth in the community. This position would work hand-in-hand with the Berkeley
Schools Volunteers (BSV), coordinating and matching tutors and mentors with students
in need of one on one academic, social and emotional support. BSV would continue to
coordinate and train volunteers placed via the schools (classrooms and after school). The
BERKELEY CHAMPIONS FOR KIbs would focus effort on volunteers who want to-work in
community-based programs, such as libraries, recreation centers, community-based after
school programs, faith-based organizations, neighborhood associations, etc.

Commission and Manager Review

For all allocation adjustments in excess of $2,500, I request that the Council direct the City
- Manager and the relevant Commissions to review these allocation changes and report back to the
Council with any concerns or recommendations. This review should be completed within 60
days from the budget adoption on June 24th. ‘

If the Manager or Commissions recommend changes, they should be brought to the Council at its
first meeting in September. In the interim. programs may request partial funding (up to a two

month advance) from the City Manager. That interim funding will be provided at his discretion
until the review is complete.

Page 112




Page 93 of 102

Mayor Bates Revised Budget Proposal , ‘ | 5.

State Budget Emergency Ro_sel_'ve

S “TABLE 3: Reserves '
State Budget Emergency Reserve $229,061

1 also recommend setting aside $229,061 in a “State Budget Emergency Reserve” as a buffer -
against possible state budget cuts. If any of this funding remains after the state adopts its budget,

I request that it be transferred to the Housing Trust Fund and allocated as part of the normal
process. ' S

Page 113




ATTACHMENT A: SUMMARY OF PRdPOSED COUNCIL BUDGET ADDITIONS

Page 94 of 102

AMOUNT
" g
_ & > >
> a,é‘b - ‘&t\ o & e 4&1&‘ &
o & K & ¢ & of o & 5 &
3,100 3100
6250 e2e0{ = 00000 ]
250 50
2,500 . .
1,000 _ 000 —_
1,500 1,500 i
5000 000
25,000 2500 25,500 25,0001
10,000 10,000 10,000
- — =Y T City Managar will retun with
50,000 |expandiiure pian.
: Place lunds in South Jorkelay
Ans Reserve panding rapor on
(22‘50'0 ____{22,500)the Theater Group.
105,800
o0 7,000 3900 |
680 nel, 880 '
10,250 10,300 10,250 28,000 28,000 |
10.000 10.300 N?,OOO ] 10&‘
33M4 74 |
,ﬁ * 10.000 10,000 |
450 — 450
40 - 260001 0,000 -
25,000 200
60,000 60,000 - 60,000
5 000 5,000 |°
- e i Rafar o the City Managar tof
000 = lraviaw.
- - [Funding restored in Managar's
66,900 - [recommendation
= Pre heir
annual funding only itthe
organization makes sructural
000 25,000 [and programmalic raforms.
25 > 15 B% lunﬁfn"ﬁ To dTsat Cny
Pgcieation tees increases for
low incoma youth in South
10,000 10,000 {Berkelsy.
T "c—T—'
F-o; 1013

Page 114




Page 95 of 102

Pagn2ol3d °

Wmﬂyl Communlty Services
{Subtotst 3 226404
10,400 s 10400 J-
Amount reduced 10 reflect Save
27,504 27,504 3 18,004 |Salety Nat Raguast.
Current aliccslion matches
1234 orpenization’s request.
unding increase restores mitial
14,550 $ 4,367 |BOSS tunting requesi.
E [Funding contingent on
[coordingtion wilh other housing
{advocacy organizations in
B80SS - Agvocacy 21,433 '3 21,433 |Berkelay.
h - HYC, Resources
Counsetof 5,671 671 |°
Housing Righta, inc ~ AHAP 15,000 15.000 15,000 15,000 |*
[Jobs for Homeless C: = 19,000 19.600 18,000 |©
Sul Clinic 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 |*
" |Provide ha second hah of thair
annual funding only i the
Coalition for Altamatives in Mental {organization makes structural
Healh . 13,560 13,500 13.560 13,500 11,000 $ 11,860 |and programmalic reforms.
ove Unallocated Funds 10
Housing Trust Fund- provide addt’l. HTF il not needed to butter
(tunding 18D 222,01 slate budget cuts this year.
Subtotal s 111,435
A — -
Youth and Education
A - Pri Progranv After school con
am 27,500 27,500 35,000 s 27,500 {°
27,500, —'_F;vdinqnol recommonticd by
BYA - Parlorming Ms 5.000 15,000 - __ |agvisany Commission.
BYA - Twilite 23.800 23.800 23,800 {°
BYA - Parks - Youth employment 20,000 20.000 29,000 |*
Jubilwe ~ Interigith Youth tnitiaty 6.000 6,000 6.000 6,000 $,000 |*
g -~ :~ |Earmark funding pending
approprata review of program
Amietas United tor Pence 72,000 72,000 g 72,000 icaton.
Be Ci 15,000 15,000 15.000 [ 15,000 {*
T armart funding but leave
. . unatiocsted pending prograrn
Youth Services Volentesr initiative 70,000 $ 76,000 |development.
Flaming Five Drill Taam 3,200 $ 3,200 {Pending program develegment.
Youth and lon Sublotal $ 237,500
infrastructure ;
"Sldswajk repalr - rastofe proposed City Managor reports that
reduction . 75,000 - - current budget is suflicient.
Aﬂsler use of Measure B funas
Measure B . to Transponalion Commission
Traitic Circles ($225K) 180 and Man, for review.
* This funding exists In the
budget alroady. Retar 1o
|Manager as 1o whether this
Straot Smans Py Satety Liphts 2,500 3 - lprogramis best ive.

Page 115



Page 96 of 102

C : T
QTHER 1 g
H or request 1o Cily
| Clerk's on-gaing research into
P ublic me Campalgns 50,000 $ 2 jgn refort oplions.
| Program curronlly undar réview
B by Mayor's Permit Task Force.
i Awail ihosa recommendatons
Nai d Omsbuds! 80,000 $ - __jbelore tul am.
ST : . emeni for i
Spring 10 accommaoate
’ |increasad stat! costs due 1o
|irereasa in Counct Mambers Budget 10,000 L s 5,000 |ciseoiiy
PROGRAM FUNDING TOTAL 3 575908 | § 129,600 1% 125'w0 $ 354.364 - $ 235008 565.801 [ § - 1S 28000 (§ 885,939
— 500,000
! 15,000
B 18,000
; - [Maintain reserve to buifer
i - |state buaget impacts. Aner
STATE BUDGET EMERGENCY : stale budget adoption,
FESERVE . : 3 229,061 [transfer to the HTF.

*City Munwper and the relevant Commissions revicw aliocation changes over $2500 and repon back 10 tw Counchl with any coticems or kconumendations.

Pagndat

Page 116




Expenditure Reductions

Citywide
Citywide

Attorney
City Clerk

City Manager
City Manager -
City Manager
City Manager
City Manager
City Manager

Finance -
Finance
Finance -

-Fire
Fire
Fire

‘HHS
. HHS
.. HHS -
HHS
HHS
HHS
HHS
_HHS

Houwsing
Houwsing

Human Resources

Attachment A
EXHIBIT. o ‘

General Fund - Recurring Reductions

Page 97 of 102

. City Manager's

Budget Reduction Proposals
' FY 2004

Contingency "B" List

Reduce Ciywide Facilities Mairt. Costs
Reduce Fleet Costs / No. of Vehicles and Maint. Costs

Reduce Legal Secratary
Eliminate Assistant City Clerk

Delete NewsScan Service

Delete Senior Staff Position

Delete CIP funding in Neigh. Services .
Reduce Unallocated funding - Animal Senices
Delete Sr. Management Analyst

: Berkeley Alliance

Delete 1.0 Assistant Magment Analyst (Customer Servlce)
Delete 1.0 Sr Accountant
Delete 1.0 Programmer Analyst

' Delete Asst. Fire Chief

Delete Fire Inspector - .
Reduce Overtime / Fire Suppression

Director ard Administration - Reduce admin support:
Assoclate Management Analyst position elimination
Public Health - Delete P/T Home Service Aides
Senior Programs - Delete Mini Bus Driver
Reduce 50% Senior Service Assistant

Senior Programs - Restructure Operations

- Employment and Youth - Reduce Youth Services Advisor

Employment Specialist

Reduce Funding for Community Agencies {addtl. 5%)
Eliminate Housing Inspector anc Permit Sgecialist

" Eliminate Professiona! Position (TBD)

1.0

1.00
1.00

1.00

1.00
1.00 -

1.00

1.00
1.00

© 075

1.00

1.50

1.00
0.50
2.20
0.50
0.50

2.00

1.00

< < n<m

<TMTNTT<L

FV

50,000 |.

120,000
75,000
57,362

24,900

153,538
. 50,000

35,000
75,000
80,000

93,296
52,500
84,000

180,000
96,000
100,000

44,245
86,178
81,212
52,622
29,286
164,342
22,034
30,319

139,000
66,005

83,822

170,000

75,000

§7,362

418,438

239,796

376,000

510,238

205,005

83,822

Page 117




- Page 98 of 102

- City Manager's
Budget Reduction Proposals
FY 2004
Contingency "B” List

0

Delete Sr. Management Analyst / Telecommunications K 100 095 100,0
OED ‘ Admin. - Reduce Admin Support Line ltems 58,301
OED : Reduce Ans Grants - 56,250
OED . Civic Arts - Reduce Berkeley Art Center Contract (10%) 4,373
OED South Berkeley - Misc. Prof. Services - 10,875
OED : Econ./Systainable Development - WBAIC ’ 4,000
OED . Econ./Sustainable Development - SBA 10,000
OED Telegraph Avenue Association 4,050
OED Alameda County Economic Development Advnsory Board 2,774 150,623
PRW . Reduce YAP Non-Petsonnel Costs 15,000
PRW Reduce Fee Waivers for Facility Rentals 10,000
PRW Eliminate 1.0 OSII for YAP Program 1.00 F 65,100
PRW Reduce Summer Programs . 56,000
PRW Eliminate 1.0 Asst. Recreation Coordinator 1.00 F 55,000
PRW Delete One Admin. 1.00 F 100,000 301,100
Poiice Eliminate Berkeley Boostars / Guides ' 173,700
Police Eliminate Berkeley Boosters / Escorts 40,500
Police Reduce Owertime : 150,000
Police Special Enforcement Unit . 200 - \" 278,998
Police : Property Crimes Unit ) 1.00 v 139,499 )
. Police School Resource Officers 1.00 \" 139,449 922,196
PRC Reduce Clerical support 0.87 50,440 50,440
CITY-WIDE GENERAL FUND PROPOSALS ) $ 3,660,115
"A” List Reductions b 3,242,697
Cummulative Raductions | $ 6,902,812
- Annual FTE 28.82
- . T Cumulative FTE 44.32
: Sworn FTE 6
Cumulative FTE 6

Page 118




. Page 99 of 102

' COMMUNITY AGENCY ADVANCES

1 Afiordable Housing Assoc.
2 Ala Costa Center
3 AC Homeless Action Ctr.
4 Asian for Jobs Oppor.
5 Bay Area Comm. Resrcs.
-6 Bay Area Hispano Inst.
7TBAORP _ '
8 Berkeley Adult School
9 Berk-Albany Licensed Day Care
10 Berkeley Arts Center Assoc
11 Berkeley Booster Escort
12 Berkeley Booster Guides
13 Berkeley Community Media

14 Berkeley Convention & Visitors ‘Bureau'

15 Berkeley Dispute Resolution Serv.
16 Berk. Ecum. Min. Found.

17 Berk. Food & Housing Proj.

18 Berkeley Place

19 Berk. Youth Alternatives

20 Bonita House

21 Black Repertory Group _
22 Building Opp. For Self-Sufficiency
23 Center for Access & Tech.

24 Center for Ind. Living

25 Christmas in Apnil

26 Coal.for Alter.in Mental Health

27 Comm. Energy Services Corp.

* 28 Dorothy Day House

29 East Bay Asian Youth

30 East Bay Comm.Law Center

31 Easy Does It '

-~ 32 Eden Council for Hope and Opp.

33 Ephesian Child Care Center
34 Family Violence Law Center
35 Family Violence Law Center
36 Fred Finch Youth Center
37 Housing Rights, inc.

38 Inter City Services

39 Japanese America Servs.
40 Jubilee Restoration

41 Lifelong Medical Care

42 Luther Church of the Cross

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
OED
Police
Police .

T

OED

Housing
Housing
Housing

- Housing

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

- Housing
-Housing

Housing

~ Housing
Housing

Housing
Housing
Police

 Housing

Housing
Housing
Housing

" Housing

Housing
Housing

Hdu ng

17,000.

116,803
28,047
27.560

287,500
54,977
40,500

173,585

279,000

228,375
77,700
52,000

489,308

24,826
80,720
25,020
22,500
437,129
6,000
200,040
110,360
75,000
338,097
30,888
293,494
20,800
688,948
184,339
116,096
33.120
39,000
43,250
35,147
141,229
22,050
82,400
280,401

- 15,000

Attachment C

25,553
16,420
21,350
39,000

8,500
29,201 .
14,023
13,780
71,875
9,163

6.750
28,931
65,375
38,063

19,425
13,000

122,327

12,413
20,180
12,510
11,250
94,282
6,000
50,010
19,742
18,750
84,524
15,444
73,374
10,400
172,237
46,085
29,024
16,560
6,500
21,625
17,574
35,307
11,025
20,600
66,350
7,500

Page 119




Page 100 of 102

COMMUNITY AGENCY ADVANCES Attachment C

| o2 ay nee’:
- 43 McGee Ave. Baptist Church - Housing 21,611 10,806
44 Multi Cult. Institute ~ Housing 115,782 28,946
45 New Bridge Foundation Housing : 135,000 33,750
46 New Light Sr. Citizens, Inc. Housing 83,150 20,788
47 Nia House Learning Center Housing 36.471 18,236
48 Northermn Cal. Land Trust Housing 25,000 12,500
49 Options Recovery Services Housing 54,304 13,576
50 Pac. Ctr. for Human Growth Housing 27,000 13,500
51 Resources for Comm. Dev. Housing 141,750 35,438
52 Saint John's Child Care Housing 26,834 13.417
53 Sick Child Care Program Houeing 32,000 16,000
54 South Berk. Comm. Church Housing. 55,000 13,750
55 Stiles Hall S Housing 27,680 13,840
56 Telergraph Avenue Association OED 54,000 9,000
57 Through the Looking Glass Housing 35,000 17,500
58 Tinkers Workshop Housing 20,000 10,000
59 United for Health * Housing 13,374 6,687
60 Women's Daytime Drop in Cr. Housing 87,710 21,928
61 Women's Empioy. Res. Corp. Housing 43,367 21,684
62 Women's Refuge, Inc. Housing 21,060 10,530

‘Subtotal . - : 6,608,052 1,763,878

Agencies Added via Budget Amendments

a) Young Artists Workspace Parks - 25,000 4,166
b) Habitot Parks 28,000 4,666
¢) Community Garden Collaborative Parks 10,000 1,666
_ d) Fresh Choice Ecology Center _ Housing 10,000 1,666
e) Ed Roberts Campus Housing 40,000 6,666
f) Pacific Center for Human Growth Housing - 25,000 4,166
g) West Berkeley Neighborhood Dev. Ctr. OED 25,000 4,166
h) Jobs for Homeless Consortium™ Housing 19,000 - 3,166
) Athletes United for Peace Parks 72,000 12,000
i) Berkeley Cougars Parks 15,000 2,500
Subtotal v 269,000 .- 44,828
Totals 6,877,052 1,808,706

Page 120




Page 101 of 102

RESOLUTION NO. 63,166-N.S.

ALLOCATING ANTICIPATED, ONE-TIME GENERAL FUND REVENUE IN THE
AMOUNT OF $898,564 AND APPROVING ADDITIONAL STAFFING FOR PERMIT
CENTER ACTIV ITY

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the FY 2006 & FY 2007 Biennial Budget on June 28,
2005; and

WHEREAS, Council referred a number of programs to the FY 2006 budget process (Exhibit A)
for continued funding; and

WHEREAS, several non-discretionary costs have arisen (Exhibit A) sinceAJuly 1, 2005 that
require allocation of funds not currently included in the FY 2006 Adopted Budget; and

WHEREAS, General Fund revenues for FY 2006 are proj ected to be $1.08 million more than the
FY 2006 Adopted Budget; and .

WHEREAS, activity at the Permit Service Center has increased and four additional positions are
needed to maintain adequate service levels; and

WHEREAS, the Permit Service Center Fund has a sizeable fund balance that can accommodate
the addition of four new positions at a cost of approximately $500,000. _

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Council of the City of Berkeley allocates
anticipated, one-time General Fund revenue in the amount of $898,564 to provide continued
funding for specific programs and to fund non-discretionary costs that have arisen since July 1,
2005 identified in Exhibit A as amended, and approve additional staffing for Permit Center
activity.

The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Berkeley City Council on December 13, 2005
by the following vote:

Ayes: Counpilmembers Capitelli, Maio, Olds, Worthington, Wozniak and Mayor Bates.
Noes: Councilmember Spring.

Abstain: Councilmembers Anderson and Moore.

Absent: None.

Tom Bates, Mayor

Attest: % Ouio @ Qe—;g

Sara T. Cox, City Clerk

Page 121



Page 102 of 102

FY 2006 and FY 2007 Exhibit A
ommended Budget Augmentations
7 %‘%’ R”:eicm

Re

i

Available New Revenue
Use of Reserve , ' 3 247,000
Revised FY 2006 Revenue Projections ' $ 1,083,261
al Avai : : 26
Homeless & Social Programs
Paratransit Services $ (9,000)
Civic Arts Coordinator $ (24,165)
Pedal Express $ (12,500)
Berkeley Boosters - BART Escorts $ (19,643)
Japanese American Services of the East Bay $ (7,500)
Berkeley Day Time Drop In Center $ (8,856)
BOSS ' $ (31,000)
Veterans Building Unbudgeted Costs for Agencies $ (112,000)
Berkeley Boosters, Berkeley Guides Program $ (10,000)
Subtotal $ - $ (234,664)
Other Program Costs
Police Crime Analyst $ (40,000)
NewsScan $ (9,400)
Lead Abatement Survey & Analysis $ (10,000)
. Subtotal $ - $ (59,400)
Non-discretionary Costs Since 7/1/05 >
Telephone Emergency Response System $ (7,500)
PG&E Street Lights - outstanding bills 3 (247,000)
Hurricane Katrina - estimated non-reimbursable costs $ (100,000)
Increased Fuel Costs (estimated) $ '(250,000)
Subtotal $ (347,000) $ (257,500)
Total Recommended Expenditures: $ (347,000) $ (551,564) '$ (898,564)

12/20/2005 Page 1 Mid-Year Budget Adjustments.xls
Page 122



Page 1 of 66 02a13

" ( | CTYeF

F"Fl
2
E

Office of the Mayor
ACTION CALENDAR
February 13, 2024
(Continued from January 16, 2024)

To: Honorable Members of the City Council

From: Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmember Rashi Kesarwani,
Councilmember Sophie Hahn, and Councilmember Susan Wengraf

Subiject: RFP for Development of West Berkeley Service Center

RECOMMENDATION
Refer to the City Manager to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for the development

of the city-owned West Berkeley Service Center, (1900 Sixth Street), to permit site
acquisition and construction of a 100-percent affordable housing project with the
following key features:
e Space on the ground floor of the building for administrative offices,
community space and supportive services as currently provided by the
City;
e Maximizing the number of units under the existing zoning Mixed Use-
Residential (MU-R) in conjunction with state law AB 1763 (2019);
e A mix of unit sizes, including studios, one-bedroom, and two-bedroom
units;
e Require RFP applicants to include a plan for services provision and
integration for the population(s) they propose to serve;
e A preference for serving seniors and adults with mental health conditions
while maintaining flexibility to serve other populations based on
availability of funding.

The City Manager should also consider the feasibility of the following elements
in the program design:

e Universally designed housing for older adults with a portion of the units
for assisted living and memory care;

e A board and care facility with a minimum of 20 beds including space for
staff and services;

Page 123


NSalwan
Typewritten Text
02a.13


Page 2 of 66

ACTION CALENDAR RFP for Development of West Berkeley Service Center
February 13, 2024 Page 2

e Explore available federal, state, regional, local and private funding
sources to finance the construction of a housing project, including with
the potential target populations.

The issuance of an RFP should be timed to happen soon after funding for the
development has been identified.

BACKGROUND

Berkeley General Plan Policy H-18 encourages the use of city-owned sites, including
parking lots for affordable housing or mixed-use projects: “When appropriate and
feasible, use City-owned or controlled sites for affordable housing and/or mixed-use
residential projects with a substantial portion of affordable units.”

On May 28, 2019, (Attachment #1), the City Council stated the intent for the use of the
West Berkeley Service Center property, 1900 6™ Street, would be used for senior
housing with on-site services consistent with Age Friendly Berkeley Plan
recommendations and maximizing the number of affordable units on site. They further
referred to the City Manager to conduct a basic analysis of the development potential
for the site, including build-out scenarios for a three to seven story building on the site
that would include amenities, supportive social services, and community space.

Staff returned “Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Potential for the West
Berkeley Service Center Site” to Council as a comprehensive Information Report on
the September 7, 2023 City Council Agenda. In the report, staff analyzed Zoning
Designation, State Streamlining Laws and State Density Bonus to provide
considerations for development potential. Current zoning of the site is MU-R. Given
staff assumptions as provided in the report (Attachment #2), it could be possible to
build 190 units in six stories with AB1763. AB1763 (2019) expands State Density
Bonus Laws to housing projects that are 100 percent to low-income households
(excluding manager units) with up to 20 percent of units for moderate-income
households. Also, projects near transit, such as the West Berkeley Service Center site,
are not subject to density limits, may raise height limits by three stories or 33 feet, and
are allowed up to four concessions.

Recommendations for Council action included rezoning the site to C-W and allocating
funding for environmental review, or referral to the City Manager to develop
recommendations to Council that would inform a RFP to develop senior housing on
the site under the current MU-R zoning.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
The population of Berkeley residents 65 and older has steadily increased in recent

years. Projections from multiple sources, including the Alameda County Plan for Older
Adults, show that by 2030 over 20% of Berkeley residents will be over 65. Based on
surveys completed by the Age Friendly Berkeley Initiative (2018) older adults

Page 124



Page 3 of 66

ACTION CALENDAR RFP for Development of West Berkeley Service Center
February 13, 2024 Page 3

increasingly prefer to age in their communities with housing affordability and
availability, along with transit access, noted as major areas of concern, especially for
low-income respondents. Wait lists for affordable senior housing units are as long as
8 years.1

Board and Care facilities operate under the supervision of the Department of Social
Services through a Community Care License and are staffed 24 hours per day, seven
days per week. They provide residential care for seniors and/or people with disabilities
who need assistance in their daily lives including room and board, meals, a supportive
living environment with daily activities for participation and entertainment, and
assistance with personal care. There is a critical lack of Board and Care facilities in
the state. In recent years, the number of licensed board and care facilities, including
Adult Residential Facilities and Residential Care Facilities for the Elderly has been
declining largely due to inadequate funding and rising housing construction costs.2
San Francisco has lost more than a third of its facilities that serve seriously mentally
ill people under the age of 60 which is consistent with what other counties report,
anecdotally, up and down the state.® More housing and mental health resources are
critical to address the needs of our most vulnerable low-income adults who are most
at-risk of homelessness: older adults, persons with disabilities, and persons with
severe mental iliness.

Currently, the City’s Health, Housing and Community Services Department is utilizing
the West Berkeley Service Center to house the West Berkeley Family Wellness Center
that provides services such as Women, Infants and Children’s (WIC) program,
immunization programs, programs offering nursing support, Berkeley Black Infant
Health and free yoga classes. Community Development Block Grant ( (CDBG) funds
have been identified for improvements to the facility and have a five-year requirement
for use, once all the funds are drawn down, without a pro-rata repayment. These
improvements are scheduled to begin during the first quarter of 2024. During that time,
a temporary facility will be needed to accommodate the temporary relocation of these
programs to ensure continuation of services and activities during the construction
period of any new housing project.

It is, currently, uncertain how this proposed development could be funded. The City of
Berkeley Housing Trust Fund and funds from the 2018 Bond Measure O are in short
supply or already dedicated to other projects. However, additional resources may

1 Age Friendly Berkeley Action Plan, 2018: https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-01/Age-
Friendly-Berkeley-Action-Plan.pdf

2White Paper: County Behavioral Health Directors Association, February 28, 2020: Loss of Board and
Care Facilities Is at Crisis Level: https://namisantaclara.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Loss-of-
Board-and-Care-Facilities-is-at-Crisis-Level-2.28.20.pdf

3 San Francisco Chronicle article: SF Board-and-Care homes for Seriously Mentally Ill Shuttering as
Costs Soar, April 16, 2019: https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/SF-board-and-care-homes-
for-seriously-mentally-13766754.php

Page 125


https://namisantaclara.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Loss-of-Board-and-Care-Facilities-is-at-Crisis-Level-2.28.20.pdf
https://namisantaclara.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Loss-of-Board-and-Care-Facilities-is-at-Crisis-Level-2.28.20.pdf

Page 4 of 66

ACTION CALENDAR RFP for Development of West Berkeley Service Center
February 13, 2024 Page 4

become available through a proposed regional housing bond measure* or earmarked
funding. Preparing an RFP that would be ready for issuance at the time resources
have been identified would expedite development of the West Berkeley Service
Center, ensuring critical resources can be provided for the community.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

Staff time required for developing recommendations for an RFP. In addition, a budget
will need to be developed for the temporary relocation of the West Berkeley Family
Wellness Center services and possibly any pro-rata CDBG repayment.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY:
Aligns with environmental sustainability goals by providing housing densification along
transit corridors.

CONTACT PERSON:
Mayor Jesse Arreguin (510) 981-7100

Attachments:

1. May 28, 2019 Council referral: Development of the West Berkeley Service Center,
1900 6™ Street, for Senior Housing with Supportive Services

2. September 7, 2023, Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Potential of
the West Berkeley Service Center Site

4 Bay Area Housing for All website: https://bayareahousingforall.org/

Page 126



Rage-tHaofidi6

CITY ©F u
2
rr'_ﬂ_ ATTACHMENT 1
m
Office oe Mayor
CONSENT CALENDAR
May 28, 2019
To: Members of the City Council

From: Mayor Jesse Arreguin and Councilmembers Kesarwani, Wengraf, and Bartlett

Subject: Development of the West Berkeley Service Center, 1900 6t Street, for Senior
Housing with Supportive Services

RECOMMENDATION

State the intent of the City Council that the West Berkeley Service Center property,
1900 6t Street, will be used for senior housing with on-site services consistent with Age
Friendly Berkeley Plan recommendations, maximizing the number of affordable units.

The Berkeley Way Project, 2012 Berkeley Way, is the City’s top affordable housing
priority. The West Berkeley Service Center, as a City-owned property, to be developed
for affordable housing falls under the “High Priority” on the list of housing initiatives
passed by Council on November 28, 2017. In light of the above, refer to the City
Manager to take the following actions to initiate the process of developing senior
housing at the West Berkeley Service Center:

a. Refer to the City Manager to conduct a basic analysis of the development
potential for the West Berkeley Service Center site including build-out scenarios
for a three-, four-, five-, six- and seven-story building at the site, using Mixed-Use
Residential (MUR), West Berkeley Commercial (C-W), and Multiple-Family
Residential (R-3) Development Standards. Each buildout scenario should reflect
base project conditions, and conditions if a Density Bonus is granted including
waivers and concessions, or if Use Permits are used to modify standards. The
scenarios should also incorporate space on the ground floor for resident
amenities, supportive social services, and community space. The results of the
development scenarios will be presented to the City Council and Planning
Commission.

b. Refer to the Planning Commission to consider any modifications to the
underlying zoning at the West Berkeley Service Center site to maximize the
production of senior housing, including consideration of an overlay zone.

c. Based on recommendations from the Health, Housing and Community Services
Department, the Housing Advisory Commission, Measure O Bond Oversight
Committee, Commission on Aging, and taking into consideration requirements
and restrictions associated with potential funding sources, create

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7100 & TDD: (510) 981-6903 & Fax: (510) 981-7199

23

E-Mail: mayor@cityofberkeley.info Page 127



Pagg4¢ of 44

Process for Considering Proposals to Develop the West Berkeley Senior Center Site March 7, 2019

for Senior Housing

based on more current information, since predevelopment work could proceed
immediately after a contract award.

¢ A Request for Proposals (RFP), as opposed to a Request for Information (RFI),
may be the best tool to use for soliciting development concepts from housing
developers if Council wishes to use this process to award a contract, such as a
Disposition and Development Agreement. An RFl is typically used to collect
information from many potential bidders in anticipation of releasing a request for
bids, to inform the request. An RFP is an excellent tool to use when the City
wants bidders to apply their creative thinking to the proposed project and wants
to award a contract. The RFP can ask the bidders to respond to multiple City
priorities. Since identifying and analyzing options to develop the site will require
an investment of staff time from respondents, developers are more likely to
respond with more fully developed proposals if the process is used to award a
contract.

o As a precursor to developing an RFP, it would help staff to understand Council’'s
priorities for the site, particularly what project components are most important,
such as maximizing the number of affordable units for seniors, providing deeply
affordable units, inclusion of community services space, a memory care facility,
etc. Understanding the ranking of Council priorities will help staff and bidders
evaluate trade-offs and enable more responsive proposals, making the process
more efficient for the City and developer alike.

CONTACT PERSONS

Timothy Burroughs, Director, Planning and Development Department, 510-981-7437
Kelly Wallace, Interim Director, Health, Housing and Community Services Department,
510-981-5107

Page 128



Page 129

DESIGN INSPIRATION

BOARD & BATTEN BOARD & BATTEN
NATURAL COLOR TINTED

METAL ROOFING WALL SCONCE

MR i v R vra YA

CEMENT BOARD CEMENT BOARD CONTEMPORARY BARN STORE FRONT

SRR -
WINDOW PATTERN

6th Street Senior Affordable Housing Bgerkeley, California Perspective View 1

mmm ARCHITECTURE :
AND PLANNING WM

Project No.: 21804-P01 : 05.18.2018 M

m



Page 8 of 66 .

. CITY °F

| ATTACHMENT 2
Office of the City Manager

September 7, 2023

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: (’OWK. Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Re: Referral Response: Anélysis of the Development Potential of the West
Berkeley Service Center Site :

- SUMMARY
In 2019, the City Council referred to the Clty Manager to conduct an analysns of the
development potential of the West Berkeley Service Center (WBSC) site for senior
housing and related support services. This memorandum analyzes a range of
buildout scenarios under various zoning and permitting options, including State
Density Bonus Law, and presents options for Council action.

BACKGROUND

In 2016, the City Council adopted a referral to identify City-owned properties that
have the potential to be used for affordable housing sites (Attachment 1). In 2017,
staff identified the West Berkeley Service Center (WBSC) at 1900 Sixth Street,
which currently houses a variety of social services, as one of several sites that met
selected criteria for housing development suitability (included in Attachment 2)." In-
2019, the City Council adopted a referral that asked the City Manager to further
analyze the development potential options for the WBSC to achieve Council goals
for that site (Attachment 2).

SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA

The approximately 32,550 square-foot parcel is located at the southwest corner of
Hearst Avenue and Sixth Street (Figure 1). It currently serves as the location of the
West Berkeley Family Center, operated by the Health, Housing, and Community
Services Department’s Public Health Division (HHCS/PHD). At the site, HHCS/PHD
currently offers a variety of public health and social services for low-income Berkeley

" 1The 2017 staff report identified six city-owned properties and grouped them into three categories based
on how they met the following housing suitability criteria: 1) located within zones allowing multifamily
development; 2) larger than 15,000 square feet; 3) not protected as parks or open space under Measure
L, the Berkeley Public Parks and Open Space Preservation Ordinance; 4) whether there were existing
active City uses on the site. The West Berkeley Service Center was in “Group 2" because it met the first
three criteria but it does have active City uses on site.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 e Tel: (510) 981-7000 e TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@berkeleyca.gov Website: https://berkeleyca.qov/ .

Page 130



Page 9 of 66

September 7, 2023
Re: Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Potential of the West Berkeley Service Center Site

residents, such as the Women, Infant, and Children (WIC) program, Black Infant
Health, immunization clinics and services, food and diaper distribution, and public
health emergency preparedness. Additionally, there are current plans to create a
community garden and co-locate various social, public health, and educational
services at the site until future development initiatives can be realized. Public transit .
accessibility is plentiful, with several high-frequency AC Transit routes and Amtrak
located within half a mile. In addition, the 4th Street shopping corridor and

community health care facilities are nearby. Adjacent uses on the block consist of a
range of commercial uses, including office, retail, personal services and exercise
studio in one and two story buildings.

The parce‘l is in the West Berkeley Plan area as part of a transition area between the
Fourth Street retail district and the residential area to the east. It is zoned for Mixed-

Use Residential (MU-R) (Figure 2) and has a General Plan land use classification of
Mixed Use (MU) (Figure 3).

Page 2 R . ~ Page 131



Page 10 of 66

September 7, 2023
Re: Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Potential of the West Berkeley Service Center Site

Figure 1: Aerial of Project Site

Page 3

Page 132



Page 11 of 66

September 7, 2023 I . A v
Re: Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Potential of the West Berkeley Service Center Site

West Berkele Service Center and Adjacent Properties

| ; \__/""/b(mqmm

oning -

Figure 2 Z

Page 4

Page 133



Page 12 of 66

September 7, 2023 .
Re: Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Potential of the West Berkeley Service Center Site

Figure 3: General 'Plan' Land Use Designa.tio‘n.- West Berkeley Service Center and

ANALYSIS OF ZONING OPTIONS : v

Consistent with the Council's referral, staff analyzed options to maximize residential
density, including affordable senior units, to maintain existing social services,} and to
introduce supportive housing uses. . - ,

Page 5
Page 134



Page 13 of 66

September 7, 2023
Re: Referral Response Analysis of the Development Potential of the West Berkeley Service Center Site

Staff analysis considered the impacts of the foIIowmg varlables on development
potential:
o Zonmg Designation. Maintaining the existing MU-R zoning, amendlng the
zoning designation to West Berkeley Commercial (C-W) or Mult|ple -Family -
“Residential (R-3), or establishing an overlay district. -
o State Streamlining Laws. The relevance of state laws such as SB 35 or AB.
. 2162 that allow for streamlined, ministerial approval. -
o State Density Bonus. The use of the Density Bonus Law to increase aIIowed
floor area or building envelope

 The Council referral dlrected staff to evaluate the development potential for a project
containing senior housing with ground-floor resident amenities, supportive social
services, and community space. Depending on the type of senior housing desired,
the project could include the following (which require different zoning permits):

¢ A Mixed-Use Residential pro;ect contalnlng dwelllng unlts lnCIdental
' residential amenities, community center space, and offices for supportive

- social services. This would require a Use Permit with a public hearing

; (UP(PH)) in the MU-R, C-W and R-3 districts.

e A Senior Congregate Housing prOJect containing.group Ilvmg
accommodations occupied by persons 60 years or older who live in sleeping
rooms without kitchen facilities, which contains congregate bath and/or
dining facilities. This would requwe a UP(PH) in. the MU-R, C-W and R-3
districts.

e A Community Care Facility, consnstlng of a state-licensed facnllty for non-.

- medical care and supervision of elderly persons, is allowed with a Zoning
Certificate in the C-W district, and a Use Permit in the R-3 district.
Construction of new community care facilities is allowed with a-Use Permit
in the MU-R district, pursuant to changes recently adopted by the C|ty .
Council in July that allgn the zoning code W|th State law reqmrements

Regardless of the type of senior housing developed, the project would be required to
comply with the development standards of the applicable zoning district. Table 1
below lists the development standards for each potentlal zoning district under
conSIderatlon

The R-3 zone provides the most restrictive development envelope. Changing the
site’s zoning to R-3 would requiring changing the General Plan land use designation
of the site from Mixed Use to the lower density Medium Density Residential

- designation. This change may be inconsistent with the objective of optimizing the -
site’s development potential for senior housing.

Page 8 - Page 135



September 7, 2023

Re: Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Poténtial of the West

Table 1. Permit Requirements and Development Standards '

Page 14 of 66

Berkeley Service Center Site

per dwelling | 4 250 sq. ft N/A N/A
Lot area, Min. Por GLA

: | resident N/A N/A 350 sq. ft..
FAR, Max. 15 3.0 N/A
Building Height 35 ft. 50 ft. 35 ft.
Height, Max. Stories 3 4 3

' Front 5ft. 0 ft. 15 ft.
Rear 0 ft. 0ft. . 15 ft.

o ‘ ‘ 4 ft. (1st-2nd
Setbacks, Interior Side - Oft. 0 ft. stories)
Min. L 6 ft. (3" story)

10 ft.* 20 ft 6 ft. (15 story)
Street Side | Across from 3 8 ft. (2" story)
re;;gﬁir::t;al Across frqm R-1(A) 10 ft. ( 3rd story)
i ; . 8 ft. (15t story)
Building Separation, Min. 0ft 0 ft. 12 ft. (2" story)
» L Bl 16 ft. (3 story)
| : _ ‘ 150 sq. ft 40 sq. ft. - 200 sq. ft.
Usabl_e open space per ( dwelli.ng. (dwe’lling_ units) | (dwelling units) v
_dwellmg unit, Min. units) No(énll_rxg)um 90 5q. ft. (GLA'S)
' 50% (One or
- - : two-story -
Lot Coverage, Max. 100% 100% building)
' B Ecn al ' 45% (Three-
_story building)

 Staff also considered an overlay zone, which is typically applied over multiple
underlying zoning districts in order to establish additional regulations that serve a
particular public purpose (e.g., Hillside Overlay, Civic Center District). An overlay
zone typically modifies development standards and administrative processes, rather
than allowed land uses. Given these limitations, staff do not recommend rezoning to

R-3 nor creating an overlay zone.

Page 7
Page 136



‘Page 15 of 66

September 7,2023
Re: Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Potential of the West Berkeley Service Center Site

REFINING OPTIONS

State Streamlining Law
California has passed Iaws that allow certaln affordable housing projects to undergo
streamlined ministerial processes subject only to objective development standards.
Use of these laws increases development certainty while reducing project timelines,
both of which lower costs and ultimately support the production of affordable units.
As shown in Table 2 on the following page, the State streamlining laws relevant to
the project are SB 35 (2017) and AB 2162 (2018). 2

‘Given the state requirements for affordability Ievels, workforce benefits, and

additional supportive housing requirements, SB 35 is the most likely streamlining

mechanism to be used. SB 35 has lower affordability requirements and no

~ supportive housing requirement compared to AB 2162, which requires maintaining
services to formerly homeless residents and partnership with a service provider. For

these reasons, staff's analysis assumes that the developer would likely opt to meet

SB 35 requirements to achieve streamllnlng

Density Bonus Law

For housmg development projects that provnde a certain percentage of affordable
~ units or senior housing, the California Density Bonus Law?® requires cities to grant a
density increase over “the otherwise maximum allowable gross residential density”
for the zoning district and the-General Plan. In addition to a bonus in number of
units, State Density Bonus Law provides for incentives and concessions to reduce
the cost of providing affordable housing, and/or waivers to development standards
(e:g., open space requirements, height limits, setbacks, parking requirements) to

achieve the densities allowed by the law. .

The amount of the density bonus and the number of incentives or concessions.
granted generally increases with project affordability levels. At the affordability level
required by SB 35 for ministerial approval in Berkeley (currently 50 percent of units
_for low-income households), a project can receive a 50 percent densrty bonus and .
three incentives.or concessions.

In addition, AB 1763 (2019) expands State Densﬂy Bonus Law to housmg pro;ects
that are 100 percent to lower-income households (excluding manager units) with up
to 20 percent of units for moderate-income households. Projects near transit, such
as the West Berkeley Service Center site, are not subject to density limits, may raise
height limits by three stories or 33 feet, and are allowed u'p to four concessions.

2 Based on staff's analysns the site is not eligible for streamlining under the provisions of AB 2011
3 Government Code Section 65915.

https://leginfo. legrslature ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=6591 5&lawCode=GOV

'Page 8 : Page 137



Page 16 of 66

September 7,2023 '
Re: Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Potential of the West Berkeley Serwce Center Site

- Table 2. Applicable State Ministerial Approval Laws for Affordable Housmg

‘Housihg Tybeﬂ

Develo pments

Requirements

Residential and mixed-use projects with | 100% affordable housing projects where a
at least 50% affordable housing least 25% of units (or 12 units, whichever
= is greater) are set aside for supportive
housing (housing for formerly homeless
residents)
'| Additional | N/A Onsite supportive services aimed at

| transitioning residents to regular life and

housing, units with bathrooms and private
cooking facilities, developer supporttve
services plan

Workforce
Requirements

if governi’nent project: The project must

pay prevailing wages

If project has at least 75 units and is not
100% affordable: The project must use
skilled and trained workforce -

N/A

Tribal
Consultation

Required

Not required

Time Limitto .

Up to 150 units: 60 calendar days

30days -~

Determine ' Over 150 units: 90 calendar days

'Eligibility , ' ‘

Time Limitto | Up to 150 units: 90 calendar days Up to 50 units: 60 days
Review and Over 150 units; 180 calendar days ‘| Over 50 units: 120 days
Acton

Application

Development Potential

The maximum development potential of the site depends on a number of factors that
a developer would take into consideration when designing a project. Staff made a

set of assumptions in order to illustrate the relative difference in development
potential under the MU-R and C-W zoning district standards, as well as the
magnitude of change allowed with State Density Bonus law under SB 35 (50 percent
bonus) or unlimited bonus under AB 1763.* Specifically, staff assumed an average
unit size of 550 square feet and 20 percent common area® in both the base and
density bonus projects, and 85 percent lot coverage in the density bonus project.

4The City Council's referral specmed affordable senior housing, thus staff did not consider a scenario
allowed under density bonus law for senior housing that does not include affordability requirements.

5 Staff reviewed the average unit size of five recent affordable senior housing projects approved or
constructed in the region and found the average unit size to be approxnmately 550 square feet, con3|st|ng
of studios, 1- and 2-bedroom units.
6 Residential floor area not part of dwelling unit, such as common space, circulation (e.g., hallways).

vPage 9

Page 1'38‘



‘Page 17 of 66

September.7, 2023
Re: Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Potential of the West Berkeley Service Center Site

As shown in Table 3 below, State Density Bonus Law allows significantly more units
to be built than would otherwise be allowed in the base project. This is especially
true for a 100 percent affordable project. With a zoning designation of MU-R, the |
base project could contain up to 26 units, as the maximum density is limited to one
dwelling unit per 1,250 square feet of lot area. Applying a 50 percent density bonus
to the base project to facilitate SB 35 streamlining, up to 39 units would be allowed.
AB 1763 does not limit the project density, so the limiting factor would be the
additional three stories allowed above the maximum of three stories, for a total of up
- to six stories allowed on the site. Given staff assumptions for unit size and lot
coverage, it could be possible to build 190 units in six stories with AB 1763. With a
zoning designation of C-W, the base project could contain 105 units, potentially
increasing to approximately 150 units in six stories with a 50 percent density bonus,
and potentially around 230 units in seven stories with an AB 1763 density bonus.

Tavb‘le 3. West Berkele 'S\er'yic'e Center Example Develo mentﬂ'ngnarios‘ |

.|Base project B 0% ' 26 units, 3 stories 105 units, 4 storiés

‘ 50% density bonus |'50% (Required | 39 units, 4 stories 150 units, 6 stories -

for SB35
_ streamlining) ,
No density limit + 3- | 100% 190 units, 6 stories 230 units, 7 stories
story height increase
(AB 1763)

Table 3 shows that the development potential of the site is greater when subject to
'the C-W district standards than the MU-R standards under the base and density
bonus project conditions. However, because a project under AB 1763 would not be
subject to a density standard, a 100 percent affordable project with MU-R zoning
results in a development potential that is similar to that which can be achieved under
C-W standards. The expanded baseline building envelope allowed in the C-W
district provides for a further increase in the number of potential units under AB
1763. Ultimately, the number of units, building envelope and amount of affordable
housing depends on a number of factors, such as the availability of affordable
housing subsidy and overall economic feasibility. Recently developed affordable
housing projects have tended to include fewer than 100 units.

Page 10 ~ ‘ Page 139



Page 18 of 66

September 7, 2023
Re: Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Potential of the West Berkeley Service Center Site

Zoning Map and General Plan Amendment
The build-out scenarios presented above indicate that a zoning map amendment
from MU-R to C-W would maximize production of affordable housing at the site. In
addition, the C-W district would allow new construction of community care facilities
with a Zoning Certificate while MU-R would require a Use Permit. This action would
require a General Plan amendment to change the land use designation from Mixed
Use-Residential (MU) to Avenue Commercial (AC). The associated environmental
review process would consist of preparing an addendum to the Housing Element
EIR, as the site has been identified as a sixth cycle Housing Opportunity Site.”

Fiscal Impacts
Staff estimates that it would take approximately three to six months for staff to work
with a consultant to prepare required environmental review documents, which would
include required technical studies and tribal consultation. This effort is estimated to
cost approximately $60,000, excluding any additional City contributions from the
Housing Trust Fund program that would likely be needed for a 100% affordable
housing project (beyond state and federal tax credits) or staff time to manage the
rezoning and environmental review. The amendments and resolution would be
considered by the Planning Commission, followed by the City Council for approval
and adoption.

NEXT STEPS

The City Council can consider whether to proceed with rezoning the site to C-W and
allocate funding for the environmental review, or refer to the City Manager to develop
recommendations to Council that would inform a Request For Proposals (RFP) to
develop senior housing on the site under the current zoning (MU-R). The RFP would
include specifications for the desired amount of housing on site, unit sizes, level of
affordability, as well as integration with amenities and services. :

Attachments:
1. Council Referral: Analyzing AII City- Owned Properties for Potential for Housing
Development (2016)
2. Council Referral: Development of the West Berkeley Service Center, 1900 6t
Street, for Senior Housing with Supportive Services (2019)
¢ Also Includes Referral Response: Analysis of City-Owned Property for
Potential for Housing Development (2017)

7 The'lot area is approximately 32,500 square feet.
dix C-25. It was not included in the fifth cycle housing element, so AB 1397 does not apply.

Page 11 | Page 140



Page 19 of 66

September 7, 2023
Re: Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Potential of the West Berkeley Service Center Site

cc. LaTanya Bellow, Deputy City Manager
Anne Cardwell, Deputy City Manager
Jenny Wong, City Auditor '
Farimah Brown, City Attorney
Mark Numainville, City Clerk
Matthai Chakko, Assistant to the City Manager
Jordan Klein, Planning and Development Director ,
Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing and Community Services Director

13 '
Pege Page 141



Page 20 of 66

Attachment 1

, CITY oF

Susan Wengraf
Councilmember Dlstrlct 6

CONSENT CALENDAR -
April 5, 2016

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Councn
From: Councilmember Susan Wengraf

Subject: Analyzmg All City-Owned Properties for Potentlal for Housing Development

RECOMMENDATION ' .

Request that the City Manager explore the opportunity for the City of Berkeley to build
housing on city-owned property: conduct an inventory of city owned properties and
return to- City Council as soon as possible with an evaluation and analysis of those
properties that are appropriate for the development of affordable housing. ‘

- BACKGROUND

Across the state of California, urban centers are experiencing a crisis in housing .
availability at all levels of affordability. The crisis is very severe in the Bay Area. Lack of
funds and subsidies from the state and federal government has exacerbated the
obstacles to developing housing at all levels of affordability. In addition, the scarcity and
the high cost of land in the Bay Area and in Berkeley, specifically, is an enormous

barrier to producing affordable housing. Berkeley needs to optimize its limited resources
now and look to partner with housing deveIOpers to build housing on city-owned land.

The City of Berkeley has a unique opportunity. The two senior centers, "North", on MLK
and Hearst, and "South" on Ellis and Ashby and the Service Center on 6t Street are all
in need of 3|gn|f|cant renovation. Now i is the time to evaluate these properties to-

sites prior to spendlng m|II|ons of dollars on the current structures.

All City owned properties should be explored and evaluated for their potential as S|tes
for housing development.

“In addition, the Berkeley Unified School District owns property that has the potential to
be developed as housing. The City of Berkeley should work closely with the BUSD to
encourage them to move forward with their own analysis of potential housmg sites that
are currently under- utilized. :

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7160 e TDD: (510) 981-6903 o Fax (510) 981-7166
E-Mail: swengraf@cityofberkeley.info

Page 142



. Page 21 of 66

]
/

This severe housing crisis calls for all publicly owned land to be evaluated and
considered.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Staff time

CONTACT: Councilmember Susan Wengraf Council District 6  510-981-7160

‘Page 143



Page 22 of 66
Page 1 of 47

Attachment 3

(  CTYer R
2
n
—
m

Office of the Mayor ‘ ,

‘ CONSENT CALENDAR
May 28, 2019
To: Members of the City Council

From: Mayor Jesse Arreguin a‘nd Councilmembers Kesarwani, Wengraf, and Bartlett

Subject: Development of the West Berkeley Service Center, 1900 6™ Street, for Senior
' Housing with Supportive Services .

RECOMMENDATION

- State the intent of the City Council that the West Berkeley Service Center property,

1900 6t Street, will be used for senior housing with on-site services consistent with Age
Friendly Berkeley Plan recommendations, maximizing the number of affordable units.

The Berkeley Way Project, 2012 Berkeley Way, is the City’s top affordable housing
priority. The West Berkeley Service Center, as a City-owned property, to be developed
for affordable housing falls under the “High Priority” on the list of housing initiatives
passed by Council on November 28, 2017. In light of the above, refer to the City
Manager to take the following actions to initiate the process of developing senior
housing at the West Berkeley Service Center: '

a. Refer to the City Manager to conduct a basic analysrs of the development
potential for the West Berkeley Service Center site including build-out scenarios
for a three-, four-, five-, six- and seven-story building at the site, using Mixed-Use

'Residential (MUR), West Berkeley Commercial (C-W), and Multiple-Family
Residential (R-3) Developmient Standards. Each buildout scenario should reflect
base project conditions, and conditions if a Density Bonus is granted including
waivers and concessions, or if Use Permits are used to modify standards. The’
scenarios should also incorporate space on the ground floor for resident
amenities, supportive social services, and community space. The results of the
development scenarios will be presented to the City Council and Planning
Commlssmn

- b. Refer to the Planning Commission to consider any modifications to the
- underlying zoning at the West Berkeley Service Center site to maximize the
production of senior housing, including consideration of an overlay zone.

c. Based on recommendations from the Health, Housing and Community Services
Department, the Housing Advisory Commission, Measure O Bond Oversight
Committee, Commission on Aging, and taking into consideration requirements
and restrictions associated with potential funding sources, create

2180 Mllwa Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7100 & TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax:(510) 981 -7199
, ‘ . E-Mail: mayor@cityofberkeley.info _ Pa ge 144



Page 23 of 66
Page 2 of 47

West Berkeley Service Center (1900 Sixth Street) Site Analysts , CONSENT CALENDAR
‘ . May 28, 2019

recommendations to Council regarding levels of affordability, unit sizes, ‘on-site
services and other features to be included in a senior housing and social services
development, including senior living housing types. These recommeridations will
be presented to the City Councnl to inform the issuance of an RFP. »

POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

On April 25, 2019, the Land Use, Housing and Economic Development Committee
adopted the following action: M/S/C (Droste/Hahn) to send the |tem to the full Council
wnth a Posmve Recommendatlon Vote: All Ayes

BACKGROUND

The population of Berkeley resndents 65 years and older has steadily increased in
recent years. In 2017, older adults were estimated to make up 13.5% of our community
— an increase of approximately 2% from the 2010 Census (11.7%) and -approximately
3% from the 2000 Census (10.2%). Recent pro;ectlons from multiple sources, including
" the Alameda County Plan for Older Adults, show that by 2030 one in five residents
(20.5%) in Berkeley will be over 65, nearly doubling the current population. Advances in
medicine and the spike of ‘baby boomers’ born after World War Il have resulted in a
late-twentieth century demographic phenomenon, popularly referred to as the 'silver
tsunami’, that cities across the country are similarly anticipating.

Based on surveys completed by AARP (2012) and the Age Friendly Berkeley Initiative
(2018) we know that older adults increasingly prefer to age in their communities, which
tells us we need a continuum of housing options for this growing population, in tandem
with services. We also know that housing affordability and availability, along with transit
access, are major areas of concern, especially for low-income respondents. In 2014,
23% of Berkeley residents 60 years and older were living under 200% of the Federal
Poverty Level, according to the American Community Survey. As of July 2018, there
were 738 dedicated affordable units for seniors, with a waitlist of 6-8 years. Amidst the
current affordability crisis, low- and fixed-income seniors are struggllng just to stay
housed, let alone receive the care they require.

In an effort to respond to current and future needs, the Berkeley Age Friendly
Continuum was formed out of conversations between residents and those providing and
working in aging services across the city. The goal of this work is to strengthen Berkeley
as a place to age, and ensure implementation of an integrated, person-centered,
replicable, continuum of supports and services for older adults and those with
disabilities as they navigate transitions of aging. This effort is now supported by the City
of Berkeley, Kaiser, Sutter and AARP, and is heavily informed by the Age Friendly
Cities and Communities effort led by the World Health Organization. Their three-year
Action Plan will soon be released, focusing on how we can move forward aging
standards, and ensure ours is a livable community where all generations thrive.

Page2

Page 145



Page 24 of 66
Page 3 of 47

West Berkeley Service Center (1900 Sixth Street) Site Analysis : CONSENT CALENDAR -
- : ‘ o ‘May 28, 2019 -

While the initial work of the Age Friendly Continuum has been focused on conducting a
comprehensive needs assessment, setting priorities, articulating an organizational
structure, and developing a 3-year plan, their longer term goal has always included
piloting a senior housing and services facility that could be a model for the future of
aging in place in Berkeley. One of the recommendations from their soon to be released
Age Friendly Berkeley Action Plan under Housing and Economic Security, is to “develop
a continuum of affordable, accessible housing options for older adults to age in thelr
community regardless of their health or financial status”.

In Apnl 2016 the City Council passed a referral to |dent|fy City owned propemes that
have the potential to be used for affordable housing sites. An information report with the
referral response was presented in February 2017, with the West Berkeley Service
- Center (WBSC) identified as a potential site for future development. In May 2017,
Council then passed a budget referral for a feasibility study for the construction of
affordable senior housing, specifically mentioning the WBSC along with the North and
South Berkeley Senior Centers. Located at 1900 6t Street, the WBSCisan
approximately 31,000 square foot parcel situated in a Mixed Used Residential (MUR)
zone. Public transit accessibility is plentiful, with several high-frequency AC Transit
routes and Amtrak located within half a mile. In addition, the 4" Street shopping
corridor, and community health care facilities are nearby. The site is currently home to
several tenants that provide a variety of services, including the City of Berkeley Aging
Services, the Black Infant Health Program, Public Health Nurses and the Meals on
- Wheels program. It is also covering services provided by the North Berkeley Senior

- Center (NBSC) for the next 18-24 months until renovations at the NBSC are completed.

Initial plans were to keep the WBSC under the scope of the Measure T1 process.
Measure T1, passed by Berkeley voters in 2016, is a $100 million bond for rebuilding
and renovating the City’s aging infrastructure, |ncIud|ng City owned facilities. Yet what
~ this site needs is beyond an infrastructure upgrade, and its history as a hub for senior
services presents an opportunity. West Berkeley has an extremely limited number of
affordable housing units for seniors, despite being in a location that is easily accessible
to various medical and aging services. And thanks to the passage of Measure O, a

- $135 million dollar housing bond, combined with other funding opportunities, it could
‘now be possible to fund the development of a senior housing and services facility
modeled after the work of Age Friendly Berkeley, that becomes the gold standard for
aging in place in our community, and the region.

Such a development would be consistent with the West Berkeley Plan, which calls for
the residential development of MUR zones to facilitate the activation of such blocks
while also maintaining a high level of services for the diverse population of West
Berkeley. Additionally, the Plan calls for the development of housing, which provides on-
site supportive services, as an explicit goal: However, to fully understand the
possibilities of potential development of the site, the Planning Commission will need to
consider several zoning options to find the optlmal conditions.

Page 3 | Page 146



Page 25 of 66
Page 4 of 47

West Berkeley Service Center (1900 Sixth Street) Site Analysis CONSENT CALENDAR
’ - May 28, 2019

After any rezoning is approved and recom‘mendations on the develo‘pmen't program are
made by relevant City Commissions and the Council, the next step is to issue an RFP
- for development of the WBSC. We recommend consideration of the following criteria:

Focuses on universally designed, affordable housing for older adults

~ Incorporates the latest in technology and aging '
Functions both as services linked to housing and as a community hub of activity
Reserves a portion of the units for assisted living and memory care
Consistency with the recommendations of the Age Frlendly Berkeley Initiative
MaX|m|ze sustalnab|l|ty and energy efr iciency

Any proposed development could have access to various forms of funding, including but
not limited to Measure O (which explicitly mentions senior housing), new markets and
low-income tax credits, local/regional/state funding such as U1, A1, and Prop 63/MHSA,
along with private foundations.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION '
With Berkeley’s senior population expected to skyrocket over the next decade, steps
must be made to increase housing and services. There is currently a lack of senior
housing in Northwest Berkeley, despite being in close proximity to various healthcare,
shopping, and transit options. Affordable housing is particularly limited with wait lists for
some senior housing projects between 6-8 years. There is also a need for a
neighborhood hub for access to information and activities for older people in the area,
along with meeting rooms and event space.

In 2017, Council voted to look into the feasibility of developing housing at Berkeley's
senior centers, as recommended by the community. There are limitations to providing
services at the North and South Berkeley Senior Centers due to their current R-2A
residential zoning, and site constraints exist at the North Center due to the proximity of
the BART tunnel. The development of WBSC for senior housing and services is
consistent with both zoning regulations and the West Berkeley Plan. Sucha
development is also con5|stent with the Age Friendly Continuum.

Developing the former West Berkeley Senior Center into senior housing and services
would uphold and honor the legacy of elder advocates who championed the creation of
the Center to serve the needs of the West Berkeley Community, and would be
consistent with its long-standing use.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Staff time to conduct the analysis of development potential at the West Berkeley Service
Center site, prepare reports for Council and Planning Commission discussion, and to
work with City Commissions to create recommendations on the development program
for a senior housing project. According to the staff memo dated March 7, 2019 “Process
for Considering Proposals to Develop the West Berkeley Senior Center Site for Senior

Page 4
Page 147



Page 26 of 66
“Page 5 of 47

West Berkeley Service Center (1900 Sixth Street) Site Analysis ‘ - CONSENT CALENDAR

May 28, 2019

Housing’, city staff estimate that the analysis of development potential will take
-approximately 40-60 hours of staff time.

- ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

1.

2.

3.

Not applicable.

CONTACT PERSON R

Mayor Jesse Arreguin = 510-981-7100
- Councilmember Rashi Kesarawni 510-981-7110

Councilmember Susan Wengraf 510-981-7160

Councilmember Ben Bartlett : 510-981-7130

Attachments:

Age Friendly Initiative, HHCS Presentation, Clty Council Worksession on July-17,
2018

Referral Response: Analysis of Clty—Owned Property for Potential Housing
Development, February 14, 2017

Budget Referral: Feasibility Study For The Construction Of Affordable Senior
Housing, May 16; 2017

Staff Report to the Land Use, Housing, an Economic Development Commlttee

‘Process for Considering Proposals to Develop the West Berkeley Senior Center

Site for Senior Housing, March 7, 2019

Page 5 Page 148



Page 27 of 66

Page 6 of 490
Worksession Item
Office of ’kh City Manager
WORKSESSION
July 17,2018
To: | Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager :

Submitted by. Paul Buddenhagen, Director, Health, Housing &‘Community Services

Subject: Berkeley Age Friendly Initiative

SUMMARY '

At the request of City Council, the Health, Housing and Community Services -
Department is providing an overview and update on the Age Friendly Berkeley initiative.
Helping Berkeley's.older adults remain in Berkeley and live long, healthy and fulfilled
lives is the goal of the Age-Friendly Berkeley initiative. It's a collaborative effort between
the City of Berkeley, Lifelong Medical Care, the Center for Independent Living, and
Ashby Village. This report provides information on the key findings from a community
survey that was conducted in March and April 2018 to help plan the work. This report
also provides highlights from informational interviews that were conducted with City staff
from various Departments to identify projects that City Departments have completed, or
are considering, that consider the needs of older adults as they age in Berkeley.

The community survey and the informational interviews are strategies used to inform
the development of the City of Berkeley Aging Friendly City Plan. This Plan will include
recommended actions to achieve the goal of creating a livable community for all
Berkeley residents, and will be submitted to the World Health Organization in November
2018. This report provides Council with information to inform the discussion on better
serving our seniors. :

The community survey gathered input from Berkeley community members age 50 and
over. The purpose of the survey was to identify their priorities as they age.in the '
Berkeley community. Survey results indicate that residents prioritize affordable senior
housing, transportation services, and outdoor spaces that are walkable. '

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Many cities are experiencing rapid increases in the proportion of people aged 60 and
over. In Berkeley, the population over age 65 is expected to nearly double from 12% in
2010 to 21% in 2030.

The World Health Organization (WHO) recognizes that older people are a resource for
their families, communities and economies in supportive living environments. Older

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000  TDD: (510) 981-6903 & Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

Page 149



Page 28 of 66
Page Z of 40

Aging Services Division :
Health. Housing and Community Services Department ' . WORKSESSION
: July 17, 2018

people in particular often require supportive and enabling living environments to
compensate for physical and social changes associated with aging. Thus, in order to
retain a vibrant and enriching population of older adults, cities must provide the
structures and services to support their wellbeing and productlwty Making cities more
age-friendly is a necessary and logical response to promote the wellbeing and
contributions of older urban residents and keep cities thriving (Global Age- Frlendly
Cities: A Guide, WHO, 2007).

The WHO has developed an active aging framework that outlines how cities can

improve opportunities for health, participation and security in order to enhance quality of

life for elders as they age. In an age-friendly city, policies, services, settings and
-structures support and enable people to age actively. Active and healthy aging depends

on a variety of influences or determinants that surround individuals, families and

nations. These determinants are reflected in the eight-domain, or topic areas, identified

by the AARP in previous research with older people on the characteristics of elderly-

friendly commumtles :

Outdoor Spaces

Transportation

Housing

Social Participation

Respect & Social Inclusion

Civic Participation & Employment
Communication & Participation
- Community-and Health Services

PNDOR RN

Berkeley must complete an Aging Friendly Plan to be recognized by the WHO as an
Age-Friendly City. To develop this Plan, public input was gathered from Berkeley’
community members through a community survey developed and implemented in
partnership with AARP. The survey was distributed by mail to AARP members in
Berkeley. Hard copies of the survey were also made available at the senior ceniters,
Jlibraries, and partner agencies such as churches and senior housing facilities. Funding
for the development and analysis of the community survey was prowded by a grant from
the Pilgrimage Foundation.

AGING SERVICES DIVISION

The City of Berkeley's Aging Services Division aims to promote a dignified and healthy
quality of life for older adults by offering connections to community, services &
resources through two vibrant senior centers (North Berkeley Senior Center and South
Berkeley Senior Center) and a multi-resource center (West Berkeley Service Center).
Our programs touch the lives of older adults each year by serving as a resource for
recreation, group meals, health & wellness education and other supportive services for
adults 55 and older.

Page 2 , | Page 150



Page 29 of 66
Page 8 of 40

Aging Services Division
Health. Housing and Community Services Department WORKSESSION
: July 17, 2018

At our senior centers, staff provide local resources and provide individualized
assistance to seniors and caregivers. Classes provided through the Berkeley Adult
School, and other enrichment activities, are scheduled daily at the Centers.

Lunchtime dining for senior center members is provided at a reasonable price (often
free) at both senior centers; approximately 200 members are fed each day (over 40,000
meals per year).

Our Social Services staff provides consultation, referral, and case management for
seniors in distress. Services include, but are not limited to, tfransportation, housing, food
accessibility, access to healthcare, and legal assistance.

The Division’s Meals on Wheels staff and volunteers provides approximately 60,000
home-delivered, well balanced meals to homebound seniors, 60 years of age or
older in Berkeley, Albany and Emeryville.

Berkeley senior centers provide transportation and access to recreational and
educational activities in the community. Our paratransit services assist Berkeley
residents with disabilities, and those 70 years of age or older, by providing taxi scrip and
van voucher programs that enhance access to things seniors need and want. In FY17,
over 13,400 taxi rides were provided to taxi scrip users, and over 1,200 van vouchers
were used.

Finally, the Aging Services Division provides many opportunities for volunteers to
support seniors, and thereby remain engaged in our community. Each year, hundreds of
volunteers support the activities and services provided at the North and South Berkeley
Senior Centers and help to deliver thousands of meals for the Meals on Wheels
program.

SURVEY RESULTS

Respondent Characteristics

A total of 1416 surveys from Berkeley adults age 50 and over were received and
analyzed in April 2018. 30% of the respondents are between the ages of 50-64, 57%
between ages 65-79, and 13% age 80 or more. 73% of those surveyed are female.

Approximately 66% of the respondents indicated a post-college level of education.

Page 3
Page 151



Page 30 of 66
Page @ of 40

Aging Services Division
Health. Housing and Community Services Department WORKSESSION
July 17,2018

RESPONDENTS BY LEVEL OF EDUCATION

e Sohioesd o

—ar Post-high

wokn 2%

~" " school or voc

VA
/.//y,-/ training - no
S degree, 4%
2-year college
degree or
vocational

Certificate, 6%

Post college _/

studies and/or

 degree,66% | pedaoz

Approximately 60% of the survey respondents reported an income of $60,000 or more
in the previous year.

Income of Respondents n=1309

. 40%

- | | l I |
: |
B m = B N

Below $1202(D00 to S4BE0DAD to $32.60D0 - $3I3DOD0 to $EEDO0 to $OHAWO00 or more |

- A majority of the survey respondents indicated that they live in single family homes.
One-third of the respondents indicated living in multi-unit housing complexes.

Page 4 v Page 152



Page 31 of 66
Fogppe 0 of ANV

'Aging Services Division
Health. Housing and Communlty Serwces Department

Type of Housing Lived In

Other, 0%

No Regular — __...Senjor Housing,
Home, 2% ~ 2%
_Multi-unit
building,

" Cottage/Inlaw,

Single Family ___ 2%

Home, 64%

‘ Shared, 1%

Key Survey Findings

n=1423

WORKSESSION
July 17,2018

The community survey included various questions that address each domain. As
mentioned previously, survey respondents highlighted concerns and priorities under the
housing, transportation, and outdoor spaces domain areas. These fi ndlngs are

summarized below, by domam area:

Housmg

The majority of the survey respondents in each income group indicated that Berkeley
was an “Excellent” or “Good” city to age in. However, over 30% of respondents
reporting an income of $32,000 or below in the prev10us year indicated that Berkeley is

a “Not so good/poor” place to age.

Page 5

Page 153



Page 32 of 66
Muape Bl off Uy

. Aging Services Division . '
Health. Housing and Community Services Department . . WORKSESSION
v . ’ ' ‘ July 17,2018

-~ How Respondents Rate Berkeley as a Place to Age
' by Income Group '

Ralay $16,000 $16,000 to $32,0082,000 to $60,00850,000 to $90,000 590 000+
000
p= W Excellent/Good ®OK  m Not So Good/Poor n=1236 .

70%

. 50%
40%
30%
20%
10% -

0%

When asked about main reasons for their rating of Berkeley as a place to age,
respondents indicated that they appreciated the availability of low-income and senior
housing in the City. However, respondents also pointed out that the availability of such
housing was low, and that housing and property tax costs are too high. These reasons,
along with mentlons of gentrification and-homelessness, support respondents |nd|cat|on
of Berkeley as a “Not so good/poor” place to age.

It is important to note that those survey respondents in the $16,000-$32,000 income
bracket rate Berkeley the lowest for aging. As income increases, the number of
respondents indicating that Berkeley is an “Excellent/Good” place to age also increases.
The chart above highlights the income disparities that exist in Berkeley; as mentioned in
- the Health Status Report, the environments and neighborhoods in which people live,
work, learn, and raise their families impact their access to resources such as effectlve
health care, and ultlmately affect their overall quallty of life.

Additionally, survey respondents were asked about factors that would influence their
decision to move out of Berkeley. Over 60% of respondents identified their need for
housing to live independently, lowering the cost of living overall, and needlng aless
expensive home, as thelr top three influencing factors

Outdoor Spaces

Word clouds were created to illustrate the most frequently mentioned positive reasons
from those survey respondents who reported the City of Berkeley to be an "Excellent" or
"Good" place to age (55% overall). :

Page 8 : - Page 154



Page 33 of 66

FRegpe T2off UV
* Aging Services Division y
Health. Housing and Community Services Department ‘ WORKSESSION®
' - July 17,2018
Bulturalmgemurs - nnhwtlas
o S_enmr NMESse 7 . o e

"e"sl'ﬂggnf[panSItwa Ika hl e
esnuchS

Word clouds were also created to illustrate the most frequently mentioned negative
reasons from those survey respondents who reported the City of Berkeley to be a be
"Not So Good" or "Poor" place to age (11% overall):

- Crime

I ra nS It medendm%m%ggcfﬁscmlc%
Sldewalks o _Nehgabyiorciy B HOUSINESURRLY - "“:!i\!:‘:m e
Sh::snms;‘;:ne'leﬁg Hous'ng r;h;:l'smg ' t
CostOfLiving

While respondents acknowledge that the City of Berkeley is an accessible community
that is resource and activity-rich, they also identified affordable housing, transportatlon
services, and safety as S|gn|f|cant needs in the Berkeley community.

Transportation

Respondents were asked how they get around for things like shopping, visiting the
doctor, running errands or socializing. While the majority drive themselves, a large
percentage rely on walking, and half report using public transit. Fewer than 30% use a
taxi or ride service, but they may not know about the transportation and paratransit
services that the City, and other City partners, offer.

Survey respondents were also asked about the importance of certein traffic resources:

Page 7 -

Page 155



Page 34 of 66 -
Fuggpe B3 off T K

Aging Services Division , :
Health. Housing and Community Services Department . WORKSESSION
. July 17, 2018

Traffic Resources that are n=1361-1423

Very Important or Somewhat Important for Seniors

Driver's ed/refres e e ——————————————————

AffEPUAEAE public m’
Saf glkl ki ‘.
afe public parkin
Au%lo/ws%a ¢

QLA
* servicellfdolder
- adrdteaRReRsNé
publidifRRERSEops

safe/well-lit

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% .80% 90% 100% 110% !

Transportation is a high priority for older adults with nearly all wanting more transit
enhancements. Approximately 100% state that the following are very important: Public
transportation stops are safe and well lit, public transportatlon is affordable, and special
transportation for seniors. :

Kev Interview Fmqus

in addition to the community survey, a total of 18 |nformat|onal interviews W|th Clty staff
from 9 City Departments were conducted. Data on projects that have been completed
and are currently being plannedlpursued that address relevant older adult issues and

" concerns was collected. The following list summarizes these projects by domam area.

Housmg '
Projects/Elements currently in place
« Senior and disabled home loan rehab program long term, low interest loans to
- fix houses of low income seniors so they can age in place.
« Short term rental application support/workshops through Finance Department
«. Housing Assistance is available through the Berkeley Housing Authority, Center
for Independent Living, ECHO housing (fair house counseling), NID (housing
counseling Agency focused on foreclosure counseling) and-the Unity Councn
(foreclosure workshops)
» 738 dedicated, affordable senior housing units in Berkeley, but with wait Ilsts of
6-8 years : :

Projects in process with Age Friendly Elements :
« Disability Commission and Planning Commission considering amendments to
ADU's - goals is to increase housing stock that is accessible.
« Expansion of City Planning’s housing safety program with |ntent to proactlvely
' protect low-income housing stock.

Page 8 . Page 156



Page 35 of 66
Rage Bloff AV

Aging Services Division '
Health. Housmg and Community Services Depar’tment WORKSESSION
, : July 17,2018

Outdoor Spaces
Projects/Elements currently in place
« Recreational programs through the Parks & Rec department now offering more
adult classes: painting, yoga, aquatics, Tai Chi, etc.
» 52 Parks as well as trails and community gardens are available
« Sidewalks, curb cuts, street lighting, benches, & traffic calming dewces are well
developed in most of the city
+ New developments & redevelopments, mcIudmg businesses & housing
developments, are required to build or remodel according to ADA standards

Projects in process with A ge Friendly Elements :
« Parks & Rec Department considering adding paid classes and programs
targeting the older adult population
« City Planning Department using “Crime Prevention through Envrronmental
Design” to address safety issues, uncomfortable spaces, dark alleys, etc.
» Measure T1 holding public hearings; goal to improve existing mfrastructure and
facilities .

Transportation
- Projects/Elements currently in place '
« Strategic Transportation Plan strives to enable equal access for Berkeley
community members of any age, background, and ability to move throughout City
« Paratransit, senior shuttle, and taxi scrlp services available through City’s Aging
Services D|V|S|on

Pro;ects in process with Age Frrendly Elements '
"« Planning, Public Works Departments developing master pedestrian plan in
commercial areas; safety, walkability, lighting, etc.

« Planning, Public Works Departments reviewing sidewalks in poor condition,
which have been an issue for people with disabilities and eIders who are
challenged by broken sidewalks .

» Aging Services transportation serwces to |mplement moblhty management and
travel training for senlors

POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION

The recommendations listed below were developed by the Age Friendly Berkeley
collaborative. These recommendations align with both the key findings from the
community survey and the City staff informational interviews.

_ Housmg '
« Incorporate universal design into new bUIIdIng codes
« Support efforts to overturn policy that allows people to raise the rent to market
when someone in a rent-controlled space moves out
« Create a publicly accessible, understandable database where seniors can see
rental opportunities rather than the need to call each establishment |nd|V|duaI|y

Page 9
‘ Pege 157



Page 36 of 66
Page 18 of 40 °

Aging Services Division ' _ ‘
Health. Housing and Communlty Servrces Department _ : WORKSESSION
. - : : July 17,2018

_» Allow & promote a mix of uses in buildings and neighborhoods through zoning
. codes and planning tools to provide access to necessary services (grocery
stores, pharmacies, etc.) with multiple transportation options in nelghborhoods
e Work W|th additional personnel and leadership outside government agéncies to
help coordinate housmg needs along a continuum, from shared housingto
assisted living

Outdoor Spaces
¢ Include input from older adults while developing the master pedestrian plan for
input about cleanliness, wayfinding, safety, walkability, etc.
o Improve park bathrooms and facilities in general for the older population
» Create safe routes to common destinations (e.g., community centers, libraries)

- Transportation ' '

« Advance the affordablllty, availability, rellablllty, frequency, and travel
destinations for public transit

¢ Allocate additional funding to improve transportation infrastructure (benches
shelters, traffic signals, and pavement on pedestrian sidewalks

« Extend educational programs to help |nd|v1duals learn about public transit options

The City’s Aging Ser\’/ices Division remains committed to promoting quality services and
. resources to encourage active aging for Berkeley's older adults. The Division is also
committed to working with partners to create sustainable age-friendly elements in the
Berkeley community that enable access to resources which support a full and healthy
life for everyone. As our older adult population increases, it is important for the city to
continue to focus on their needs, and provide accessible and affordable opportumtles
for them to parhcnpate actively in our community.

BACKGROUND '

To become a member of the World Health Network, the City completed an appllcatlon

that demonstrated Berkeley’s commitment to older adults. Through the City’s dedicated

. services to older adults, its robust non-profit sector, and innovative planning, the City
“demonstrated Berkeley's commitment to the older adult community and was accepted

into the World Health Network in November 2016.

+

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAI NABILITY :
There are no environmental sustalnablllty impacts as part of this report.

CONTACT PERSON :
Tanya Bustamante Aglng Services Manager HHCS, (510) 981-5178

Page 10 o | Page 158



Page 37 of 66

Mg 150ff207
f  CITYeF o> 2 1

= _
—

m

Office of th City Manager ’
' INFORMATION CALENDAR
February 14, 2017
~ To: N Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: OOWK Dee Wllllams-RldIey, City Manager
Submitted by: Paul Buddenhagen, Dlrector Health, Housing and Community Services

Subject: Referral Response: Analysis of Clty-Owned Property for Potential for
- Housing Development

SUMMARY

On April 5, 2016 City Council requested an inventory of City-owned propertles in order
“to evaluate their potential for affordable housing development. In the past, the City has

sold (for example, for Oxford Plaza and Harper Crossing) and leased (in the case of

William Byron Rumford Senior Plaza) City-owned property to support affordable

housing. . .

The City owns 119 properties scattered throughout Berkeley. (In many cases, these
properties are made up of multiple legal parcels.) Staff reviewed the inventory and
gssessed each site's development potential, based on criteria prioritizing sites that are
mostly likely to accommodate a multifamily rental project and most competitive for
affordable housing funding. HHCS staff reviewed the sites’ zoning designation, square
footage, current use, and whether or not properties were protected as parks or open

- space under Measure L, the Berkeley Public Parks and Open Space Preservation
Ordinance. Six properties were identified citywide that met the basic criteria. One is the
Berkeley Way parking lot, currently the subject of an agreement with BRIDGE Housing
related to its development as affordable housing. The other five all had other significant
challenges to development. All would require more review before taking any further ‘
action. ‘

Staff did not review properties for the potential to sell. Oakland’s housing plan, Oaklahd
at Home, recommended selling City-owned properties not suitable for affordable
housing development and placing 30% of the proceeds in a housing trust fund.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
This report responds to a referral that originally appeared on the Apr|I 5, 2016 Council
agenda and was sponsored by Councilmember Wengraf. v

For this project, HHCS staff started with a detailed list of City-owned parcéls that had
been compiled by the Public Works Department from multiple sources, and updated it
with information from the Berkeley Municipal Code as well as internal records. The

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 » TDD: (510) 981-6903 » Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://iwww.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

Page 159



Page 38 of 66
Rape 127 off 207

Referral Response: Analysis of City-Owned Property V , INFORMATION CALENDAR
for Potential for Housing Development : February 14, 2017

complete list is attached (see Attachment 3). Itis the most comprehensive list that has
been compiled to date. :

Initial Assessment: Selected Properties

HHCS staff identified six propertles that met basic criteria for housing development

suitability and grouped them in three categories, based on the criteria briefly descrlbed

above, and described in depth in the Background section of this report. The following
describes the six properties which best met the criteria identified. None of these sites

* were identified as housing opportunlty srtes in the Housing Element, primarily because.

of existing City uses and zoning constraints. The City already has an agreement with

BRIDGE Housing for the development of Berkeley Way, and the other five have

. significant challenges to development. These sites are also listed in Attachment 1.

Group 1. Two propertle's met all basic criteria. They are: 1) located within zones
allowing multifamily development; 2).larger than 15,000 square feet; 3) not protected
under Measure L; and 4) have no existing structures

o Berkeley Wav Parkmg Lot (2012 Berkeley Way):
The City and BRIDGE Housing have a Disposition and Development Agreement
for a project on this site that will incorporate affordable housing, permanent
supportive housing, transitional housing, homeless services, and replacement
public parking. On September 27, 2016, City Council awarded $835,897 in
Housing Trust Funds to support additional predevelopment activities, including
architectural work, environmental studies, and planning fees..

» Elmwood Parking Lot (2642 Russell Street)

Five City-owned parcels could be merged to create a 27,000 square foot lot. The
parcels currently form a narrow parking lot situated between a row of shops

- facing College Avenue, and a residential neighborhood composed primarily of 1-
2 story single family homes and small multifamily buildings. This parking lot
supports the EImwood commercial area. At a minimum, this site would need to
be rezoned to support multifamily housing development at a large enough scale

* to make affordable housmg feaS|bIe

While the square footage of the parcel initially seemed promising, several of the

. adjacent residential buildings are situated on the lot lines, and the businesses
use the City’s property for trash pickup and delivery access. Setbacks would
likely be required on one if not both sides. In addition, the lot's irregular shape
and proximity to existing commercial and residential uses would constrain its
footprint and height to the point at which an affordable development may be
infeasible, particularly with replacement parking for the commercial district.
Combined, these limitations are likely to make affordable housing development
infeasible at this time.

Page2 : o Page 160



. Page 39 of 66
Moy 1B aff 297

Referral Response: Analysis of City-Owned Property : INFORMATION CALENDAR
for Potential for Housing Development , February 14, 2017

Group 2. Two additional properties are 1) located within zones allowing muitifamily
development; 2) larger than 15,000 square feet; and 3) not protected under Measure L;
but they have active City uses. A third property, Center Street Garage, also met these
criteria but was not considered because it is currently under construction.

o West Berkeley Service Center (1900 Sixth Street). The West Berkeley
Service Center is located on a parcel that is 31,000 square feet, in an area that is
a mix of commercial, industrial, and residential. Some of the parking spots are
currently being used for City vehicles. The neighboring buildings are 1-2 stories
tall, but 4-5 story buildings are located one block away along University Avenue.
Though the existing zoning (MUR - Mixed Use Residential) permits muitifamily
development, changing the zoning could help maximize the site’s development
potential. Demolishing and replacing the service center, currently used for senior
social services, the Black Infant Health Program, Public Health Nurses and the
Meais on Wheels program, would add 5|gn|f|cantly to the cost of housmg
development at the site. .

» Telegraph-Channin Gara e and Shops (2425 Channing Wa
This six-story parking garage also includes retail spaces on the ground floor. Built
in the late 1960s, the garage provides parking for the stores and restaurants
along Telegraph Avenue near the UC Berkeley campus. Conceivably, the site
could be redeveloped to include replacement commercial spaces and parkmg
with housing over lt

However since the structure is a key resource for local businesses, the costs of
temporary commercial relocation during construction, and the costs of replacing

- parking and commercial spaces would make development very costly and could
be infeasible in combination with affordable housing. In order to also add new
residential units, the replacement structure would likely need to be several stories
taller than the current structure, which is already among the tallest buildings in
the neighborhood. These issues present significant challenges to using the site
for affordable housing in the foreseeable future. :

Group 3. These properties are both larger than 15,000 square feet and vacant, but
would require zoning changes before multifamily housing could be constructed and
have constraints from Measure L. The North Bowling Green is protected from

" development under Measure L, and would require a vote of the people to change its
designation and make it legal to develop. The Santa Fe Right of Way requires further
analysis to determine Measure L's applicability. Unlike other parcels protected under
Measure L, both of these properties are fenced off from the public and not in active use.

o North Bowling Green (1324 Allston Way)
Within the Corp Yard, along Allston Way, the North Bowllng Green is a vacant lot

of approximately 21,000 square feet that is not actively used by the City. The site

Page 3 Page 161



Page 40 of 66
Rupe D off297

Referral Response: Analysis of City—Owhed Property : ‘ INFORMATION CALENDAR
for Potential for Housing Development February 14, 2017

was used as a lawn bowling green starting in 1929, but has not been maintained
as such since 2008. This site, along with the South Bowling Green and
clubhouse, is leased to the Berkeley Lawn Bowling Club, though Parks is
negotiating a new lease that will not include the North Bowling Green. The site .
contains elevated levels of pesticides and metals, and the contaminated soil
would need to be excavated or encapsulated prior to active use or development,
which does not rule out affordable housing development but would add to the
cost. The entire Corp Yard site is within an R-2 zone, so the North Bowling Green
would need to be split from the Corp Yard parcel and rezoned to allow for
multifamily housing. The 150-unit Strawberry Creek Lodge (affordable senior

~ housing) is located within a block of the vacant site, though the immediately

~ adjacent residential units are single-family homes.

- SantaFe nght of Way ‘

' The City owns six vacant, non-contlguous parcels that were part of the right of
way for the former Santa Fe Railroad. The lots cut through the middle of blocks
at a diagonal, and are separated by several streets: Ward, Derby, Carleton,
Parker and Blake. Collectively, the parcels comprise approximately 75,000
square feet of undeveloped land. The parcels are zoned R-1 and R-2, which do
not permit multifamily construction. The neighborhood is primarily single family
homes with a few 2-story multifamily buildings. Although it could be possible to

“combine these sites into a single scattered site project, it would be difficult to
achieve the density required to make a scattered site project large enough to be
competitive for tax credit and other affordable housing funding.

BACKGROUND

The initial data collection resulted in a list of 229 individual parcels, which was reduced
~ to 119 after staff analysis. Several Berkeley Housing Authority and BUSD properties
associated with Berkeley 75, former public housing, were removed from consideration,
and adjacent parcels were combined into single entries to better assess their
development potential. Staff then researched each property for specific data, |nclud|ng
zoning and property square footage. :

From the list of 119 parcels, some City-owned properties were excluded from further
analysis because they were not available or clearly not suitable for development as
housing. Sites not considered for future housing development included City offices at
Center and Milvia, street segments, sidewalks, fire and police facilities, and sites leased
to eXIstlng affordable housing projects.

The City owns approximately one acre of air rights to develop over the western parking
lot at Ashby BART, which is zoned C-SA. The site was not included in this report
because it is being analyzed as part of the Adeline Corridor planning process. The City
does not own air rights at North Berkeley BART.

Page 4 | | ' Page 162



Page 41 of 66
Mg 2D of {207

Referral Response:. Analysis of City-Owned Property INFORMATION CALENDAR
for Potential for Housing Development February 14, 2017

- Methodology and Criteria

The remaining 92 properties were then ranked based on a set of criteria established to
identify the sites with the greatest development potential (and fewest development
barriers). The following criteria were used:

Zoning ,

Given the City of Berkeley's general plan and municipal code, multi-family housing can
only be built within certain zones'. Properties outside these zones were ranked lower
since they would require zoning changes in order to be suitable for higher density
development.

Size of parcel/ability to support 50+ units of housing

Staff prioritized sites that can accommodate 50+ units of housing for affordable housing
development. In this analysis, we looked at sites of 15,000 square feet as having the
greatest potential, and gave consideration to sites over 10,000 square feet. Sites
smaller than this are unsuitable for affordable muitifamily housing development
because:

o Even with greatly reduced or donated land, affordable housing development
requires public funding. There are limited funding sources for affordable housing,
-and most multifamily housing developers pursue Low Income Housing Tax
Credits as a significant source. Tax credit funding is highly competitive, and non-
tax credit projects can be difficult to finance. California intends to start
incentivizing larger developments by awarding higher points to projects with 50 or
more units. Staff estimated that sites under 15,000 square feet would not allow
for the density required to meet the 50-unit minimum for a competitive project.
Sites between 10,000 and 15,000 were included but ranked lower, as they could
be combined for a scattered S|te project.

» The long length of time required for obtaining financing for Harper Crossing (41
units) and Grayson Street Apartments (23 units) are probably at least partially
related to their small size. Smaller projects are generally less competitive for
housing funds because of their higher per unit costs and, in the case of the
Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities program, due to their smaller
impact on reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

e Similarly, Oakland’s housing plan recommended using sites that can
accommodate 50+ units for affordable housing, and selling the others for revenue
to support housing.

e One local affordable housing developer, when asked about minimum size, said
“we've found that in higher-density areas (like Berkeley) sites should be at least
15,000 sq ft. We will look at smaller sites if there are special circumstances but
as a rule of thumb it is hard to create a feasible multifamily rental project on a site

1 Zones that allow multifamily housing are R-3, R4, R-5, C-1, C-N, C-E, C-NS, C-SA, C-
~ T, C-SO, C-W, C-DMU, and MU-R

Page > Page 163



Page 42 of 66

FRegpe 31 of 1207
Referral Response: Analysis of City-Owned Property : ~ INFORMATION CALENDAR
_ for Potential for Housing Development February 14, 2017

- under that size.” Another emphasized the need to look at the development
~ capacity, citing a project on 13,000 square foot plot with 62 one-bedrooms,
feasible only because it has 6 stories (typically not possible in Berkeley).

Parks and open spaces, restricted by Measure L

In 1986, Berkeley residents passed Measure L, the Berkeley Public Parks and Open
Space Preservation Ordinance, ensuring that all existing City open space would be
preserved (not developed). Measure L requires a vote of the people to use or to develop
a public open space or park for any purpose other than public parks or open space,
unless a State of Emergency has been declared. In this context, the Homeless Shelter
Crisis declared by City Council in 2016 does not qualify as a State of Emergency, and
would not supersede Measure L. Staff consulted with Parks to confirm that 23
properties larger than 10,000 square feet are restricted under Measure L. Staff did not .
ask Parks to review the following properties in hiliside zones due to topographical
constraints on development: Grotto Rock Park, Indian Rock Park, Remillard Park,
Cragmont Park, and Great Stone Face Park.

Current Use

Berkeley is largely built out, and most City-owned properties have buildings and active
uses. Staff prioritized properties that do not have any structures, followed by properties
that are active City facilities, and finally properties leased to non-City entities. Staff did
not review the 21 leases noted in the property inventory, and did not assess the
development potential of the sites once the leases expire, as that was beyond the scope
of the current analysis.

Properties Less Suitable for Development
The remaining 113 properties were considered less suitable for development because
they did not meet enough of the priority criteria. More than half of the remaining
properties were eliminated because they fell below the threshold of 10,000 square feet
(49 properties) or because they are actively used open space or parks and are
protected under Measure L (22 properties, excluding the Santa Fe ROW), Other
properties were eliminated because of their current use, including a number of City
. facilities on lots larger than 15,000 square feet. Attachment 2 includes a list of every
City-owned property over 15,000 square feet in area.

'ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Any site would require environmental analysis to assess its suitability for development,
and identify contaminants or issues needing remediation.

POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION

Staff will continue to work with BRIDGE Housmg and the Berkeley Food and Housing
Project on the redevelopment of the Berkeley Way Parking Lot. Staff plan to report
back to City Council with a recommendation on the disposition of two former

Page 6 Page 164



Page 43 of 66
Magye 22 off207 .

Referral Response: Analysis of City-Owned Property o INFORMATION CALENDAR
- for Potential for Housing Development o February 14, 2017

Redevelopment Agency properties the City owns on 5% Street. Staff welcome any
additional information that could further update the property information shown in
Attachment 3.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION

Fiscal impacts of future action will depend on the course of action identified.
Developing new affordable housing on City-owned land will require additional City
funding contributions.

CONTACT PERSON
Jenny Wyant Communlty Development Pro;ect Coordinator, HHCS, 510- 981-5228

Attachments

1; Selected Property Llst

2. City Properties Larger Than 15,000 SF

3. Inventory of City Properties .

4. Original Referral Report from April 5, 2016

Page 7

Page 165



Page 44 of 66 j

Selected Property List -
Priority , Current
| Bl F
Group Name (Address) Zoning | LotSF Use mage Qg S
1 Berkeley Way Parking Lot - |c-DMU 40,945 Parking
(2012 Berkeley Way) Buffer ! Lot
] Elmwood Parking Lot , Parking
1 (2642 Russell,;5 parcels) CE 27,374 Lot
Telegraph.—Chénning Garage and Shops . . Parking
2 - - :
(2425 Channing Way) cT - 32,685 Garage 189,867
West Berkeley Service Center City
2 |(1900sixth st) MUR | 31020 | Gility
’ North Bowling Green City
3 - . - .
(portion of City Corp Yard, 1324 Allston) R-2 21,000 Facility 46,604
Santa Fe Right of Way
3 -1/R-2
{Ward, Derby, Carleton, and Blake, 6 parcels) R-1/R 75,086 ROW

Page 166



Page 45 of 66
e Bloff207

Attachment 2:
AII City-Owned Properties Larger Than 15,000 SF

City Facmtles

Berkeley Fire Station Number 5 (2680 Shattuck Ave)
Berkeley Fire Station Number 6 (999 Cedar St)
Berkeley Fire Warehouse (1011 Folger Ave)

‘Berkeley Police Department / Old City Hall (2100 / 2134 MLK Jr, Way)

Berkeley Public Library — Central Branch (2090 Kittredge St)
Berkeley Public Library-North Branch (1170 The Alameda)
Berkeley Transfer Station (1201 Second St)

City Corp Yard (1326 Allston Way)

City Office Building (1947 Center St.)

Civic Center Building (2180 Milvia St)

Fire Department Station No.2 (2029 Berkeley Way)
Firehouse Number 7 (3000 Shasta Ave)

North Berkeley Senior Center (1901 Hearst Ave)

North Bowling Green (part of City Corp Yard, 1324 Allston)
South Berkeley Senior Center (2939 Ellis St)

West Berkeley Service Center (1900 Sixth St)

EX|st|ng Affordable Housing

Oceanview Garden Apartments (1816 Sixth St)
University Avenue Cooperative Homes Apartments (Addison at Sacramento)
William Byron Rumford Senior Plaza (3012 Sacramento St)

Leased Properties

- Berkeley Black Répertory Group Theater (3201 Adeline St)

Berkeley Recycling Center (668 Gilman St)
Nia House Learning Center (2234 Ninth St)

~Veterans Memorial Building (1931 Center St)

Women'’s Daytime Drop-In Center (2218 Acton St)

Parking Lots/Garages

Berkeley Way Parking Lot (2012 Berkeley Way)

Center Street Garage (2025 Center St) '

Elmwood Parking Lot (2642 Russell)

Oxford Plaza Parking Garage (2165 Kittredge)

Telegraph -Channing Garage and Shops (2425 Channlng Way)

Page 167



Page 46 of 66

Page 28 of 27

Parks and Open Space

Aquatic Park* (80 Bolivar Dr)

Berkeley Way Mini Park (1294 Berkeley Way)

Cedar Rose Park* (1300 Rose St)

Codornices Park and Berkeley Rose Garden (1201 Euclid Ave)
Community Garden (1308 Bancroft Way)

Cragmont Rock Park (960 Regal Rd)

. Dorothy Bolte Park (540 Spruce St)

George Florence Park (2121 Tenth St)
Glendale- La Loma Park (1310 La Loma Ave)
Great Stoneface park (1930 Thousand Qaks Blvd)

- Greg Brown Park (1907 Harmon St)

Grotto Rock Park,(879 Santa Barbara Rd)

Grove Park (1730 Oregon St)

Harrison Park (1100 Fourth St)

Hillside Open Space on Euclid Ave

Indian Rock Park (950 Indian Rock Ave)

James Kenney Park* (1720 Eighth St)

John Hinkel Park (41 Somerset Pl)

Live Oak Park* (1301 Shattuck Ave)

Marina*/Cesar Chavez Park (11 Spinnaker Way)

MLK Jr. Civic Center Park (2151 Martin Luther King JrWay

Ohlone Park (1701 Hearst Ave)
'Remillard Park (80 Poppy Ln) .

San Pablo Park (2800 Park St) |
Strawberry Creek Park (1260 Allston Way)
Terrace View Park (1421 Queens Rd) '
Virginia-McGee Totland (1644 Virginia St)
Willard Park (2730 Hillegass Ave)

*A portion of the property is leased to a local organization.

Other

Santa Fe Right of Way (approx. 1400 Carleton)

Sidewalk and Road (Ashby between Harper and MLK Jr. Way)
Roundabout (Parkside Dr) :

Sojourner. Truth Court (former Santa Fe ROW)

West St (between Lincoln and Delaware)

Page 168



Page 47 of 66

Page.2%.9f 87

Inventory of City Properties
Name {Address) Zaning Lot SF Current Notes Image APN Bldg SF Leased? Tenant End vua“
Use : Term
Former RDA
1631 5th Street \ MUR 5,525 |Other property. Vacant 057 211701100
lot. -
Former RDA
MULI/ . property. .
Sth Sf O
1654 Sth Street MUR 5,300 |Other  [Vacant, singte- 057 211602300
family home,
. R 2 parcels,
. . . |Former RDA 057 209901400
1817-1819 Fourth Street C-W 12,500 |Other properties: 057 208901500 10,070
Leased for retail,
63rd Street Mini Park '
- 8
(1615 63rd St) R-2A ,}DO Park 052 152201100
i
Abandoned Rail ROW 053 163300300
50 )
(1018 Ashby Ave) Moy 13,450 |ROW |2 parcels 053 163300400
. Potential
Abandoned Rall ROW MULI/ C- extension of
(between Helnz and Ashby, at Ninth) W 11,855 |ROW Emeryville 053 165200300
Gregnway?
At Berkeley-
[Abandoned Rail ROW MUL 743 [Row Emeryville City 052 151201002
(near 920 Flogr) . Line along .
Greenway.
Ann Chéndler Public Health Center: cw . 14,700 City 056 196600100
(830 University Ave) Facility

Page 169



Page 48 of 66 | -
N Paaﬁaﬁng a7

1 : y of City Properties’ . N
Name (Address) Zoning Lot SF Current Notes . tmage APN Bldg SF Leased? " Tenant End Leasa
: Use . : . : Term
060 251300101 N
Alon 054 177100100
MM ,s : 060 250700101
MULI/C- ﬁ ;::;3;3(2) Bay Area Outreach
AquaticPark B it 739,878 |Park 12 parcels 054 175200201 Ves, a partion |RECreation Program;| .y o051
(80 Balivar Dr) Buffer/R- R Waterside
. 054 177200100
2A/No 054 177100200 Workshop
m:,[ri, 060 252700101
avalane 056 194900601
056 194800300
Zoning N
_ not
BART ROW found, in
(Adeline at Alcatraz) between 5,553 |ROW 052 153200600
' C-SA/ R-
2A
BART ROW C-N/ R- I
{Gilman to Neilson) 1A/ R-2 7,350 (Other 050 239207502
1
Bateman Mall
{3027 Colby St) R-2A/ R-3 9,501 (Park 052 157405906
Becky Temko Tot Park :
- |{2423 Roosevelt Ave) - [R2 8,760 [Park . 055 130701100
scattered site
Berkeley 75 : . affordable . Berkeley 75 Housing
(1521 Alcatraz Ave, A,B,C,0} R-3 7150 Jleased |, g 052 152000800 Yes Partners LP - /o 2/1/2084
R lated California
. development
, {scattered site
ley 7 ) - :
Ffég: :‘Vu:t sty R-2 6,750 |Leased :':::“:::"e 054 173001400 ves s::::: Z: Housing | - 5 /1/2083
development
: . scattered site
Berkeley 75 ! ‘ fforda > Berkeley 75 Housing|
(1812 AB,CFairview St) R-2A 6,500 |Leased housing 052 153001800 Yes partners LP 5/12/2083
development

Pag‘e 1 70



= : Page 49 of 66
' Page. 28.of &7

Inventor\i of City Properties

5
Name (Address) Zaning Lot SF Current Nates Image APN Bldg SF Leased? Tenant End Lease
Use . ) : Term
scattered site .
Berkeley 75 . affordable . Berkeley 75 Houslng :
(2231, 2231A, 22318, 2235 Eighth 5t) R-1A 6,500 leased 1}, sing  |Ps6197001507 ves partners LP 5/12/2083
developmient
scattered site '
Berkeley 75 affardable Berkeley 75 Housing
(3016 Harper St A, B) R-2A 4,893 |Leased housing 053 160200600 Yes Partners LP 5/12/2083|
development o
Berkeley Adult Day Health Center ' :
(1850 Alcatraz Ave) C-SA 9,404 |Other 052 152702401 4,425
052 152902100 )
B;;:;':Z BI'I“"S':)E”E'E“”V Group Theater | ¢, 17,097 |Leased |3 parcets 052 152902200 8,000 [Ves :'ra:: Repertory 5/30/2023
{ eline 052 152502300 P -
Berkeley Fire Statlon Number 1 - City '
- 10,260 056 193901502 5,260
(2442 Elghth 5t) R-1A ) Facility
Berkeley Fire Station Number 2 C-DMU City N
057 205100301 13,685
(2029 Berkeley Way) Buffer 23577 |caciiny : g
Berkeley Fire Station Number 3 . City
R-2 9,359 052 156702601 5,100
{2710 Russell St) ! Facility
Berkeley Fire Station Number 4 R-1H/ R- 12,623 City 061 257302600 54 az'
(1900 Marin Ave) 1A Facllity

Page 171



Page 50 of 66 _ -
Page. £8.0f 27

. R ) " Inventory of City Properties "
Name (Address) Zoning Lot SF Currant Notes Image APN 8ldg SF ,Léased?v Tenant End Lease
Use . Term
Berkeley Fire Station Number 5° City
(2680 Shattuck Ave] C-SA ) 17,300 Facility 055 181900301 . 9302
Berkeley Flre Station Number 6 City . :
(999 Cedar St} R-1A 26,000 Facllity 059 231201200 B,346
from BMC.
RealQuest Pro
Berkeley Fire Station Number 7 R-1H 120377 City ianndﬂltz(;lgtstl\t:t 1063 316001305
3000 Shasta A ’ Faclli
( asta Ave} acility EBMUD Is owner 063 3;6003700
of larger parcel,
not City.
Berkeley Fire Warehouse City
(2011 Folger Ave) MULI 24,425 Facllty 053 163403000 8,021
Building
[Opportunities for !‘
: s . Self Sufficiency )
Berkeley Police Department / Old City Hall City {BOSS) - McKinley
R-2
2100 / 2134 MLK Jr. Way) 144,480 Faclity ) 057 201701601 . 122,783 |Yes ouse; County of 6/30/2013
: Alameda; Berkeley
Unified School
District
Berkeley Public Library - Central Branch C-DMU 25,141 City
(2090 Kittredge St) Corridor ’ Facility 057 202801701 75,000
Berkeley Public Library - Clsremont Branch Clry 052 1573015bo
. R-2A 11,652 . ' ’
(2940 Benvenue Ave) ' 52 |eaciiny - [2Preels 052 157301700 7434
.
C-DMV
Berkeley Public Librai Ci
(2081 B:ncroft Waw"' Buffer/ 14,133 Fat;"tv 057 202800500 30,000
Corridor .

Page 172



Page 51 6f 66
Page 30.of 87

Inventory of City Properties
Name {Address) Zoning Lot SF Current Notes Image APN Bldg SF Leased? Tenant End Lease
Use Term
Berkeley Public Library-North B_ranch City .
(117(1 The Alameda) R-1 17,668 Facility 061 260503500 10,591
Berkeley Public Llﬁrarv-South Branch Chty
(1901 Russell 5t) R-2A ) 13,444 Facility 053 1679501601 5,250 ,
"|Berkeley Public Library-West Branch City
(2125 University Ave) c1 12,000 Facility 057 208501100 9400
Community
?:g;‘:;y ““;""“g Center M 48,150 |Leased 060 236200110 22,595 |Ves Conservation Center| 8/31/1991
man St) e
060 238200102
060 238200303
Ble;g:l:v Tra;;fer Station M 76,531 :::It\;“ 5 parcels 060 236200109 51,615
(1202 Second 5t) aility 060 236200111
060 236200108 '
Berkeley Way Mini Park 24/ C+1 18,733 [park  [Bme 057 208102300 960
(1294 Berkeley Way)
Berkeley Way Parking Lot C-DMU 40,945 Parking 057 205302201
(2012 Berkeley Way) Buffer ! Lot
Building
(Opportunities for
BOSS: Harrlson House/ Sankofa house MuL 6,486 |Leased  [HCs Leased 060 238300102 Ves Self Sufficlency | 10/33/2013
(711/ 701 Harrison) R (BOSS) - Harrison )
House

‘Page 173



Page 52 of 66 ‘ .

Pa!l_?ac*rﬁ.&f a7

Inventory of City Properties . .
Name (Address) Zoning Lot SF Cumrant Notes ' Image . APN Bldg SF Leased? Tenant End Lease
Use Term
060 241605800
060 241607700 °
059 228601900
. 059 228600203
f;a'ﬁ; :3:: :t ‘;'k R-2 175,727 Park - |o parcels 059 229302001 Ves,a partion |Ala Costa Center  [No End Date
. 060 242309600
059 228600103
058 213801500
059 228600104
Center Street Garage C-DMU Parking
(2025 Center St} Core 34,267 Garage 057 202302003 175,500
City Corp Yard . )
City : Berkeley Lawn §
{1326 Aliston Way) R-Z 250,072 Facility 05.6 199301501 46,604 |Yes Bowling 12/31/2014
City of Berkeley Animal Shalter . ' New Cingular
(1 Bolivar Drj C-wW 7 8,874 |Leased 060 252100201 Yes Wireless No End Date
, International
City Office Building © jce-bMu City Computer Science
(1947 Center 5t} ) Buffer 18,750 Facifity 057 202200600 116,142 |Ves {institute; Rising Sun 4/30/2013
’ Energy Center
Civie Center Building C-DMU City
{2180 Milia St} Buffer 38808 |- ity 057 202100100 77,145
060 246800101
Codornices Park and Berkeley Rose Garden 060 246800102
- &
(1201 Euclid Ave) R-1H 70,240 |Park 4 parcels 060 246800103
060 246500300
Colby St. Next to R- ’
(between Ashby and Webster) 3 13,603 [Other BMC 052 157308706

Page 174



- Page 53 of 66
i Paﬂﬁaﬁﬁnﬂ a7

Inventory of City Properties
=
Name {Address) Zoning Lot SF Current Notes Image APN BldgSF |  Leased? Tenant End Leasa
Use Term
Open
Community Basketball Court R-1 11,886 space 058 213903108
Communhity Garden Open
(1308 Bancroft Way) R-2 38,526 space former rail ROW 056 192203402
Contra Costa Rock Park
(869 Contra Costa Ave) R-1H 7,456 |Park 061 257605600
Cragmont Rock Park 063 297500900
{90 Regal Rd) R-1H ‘ 136,458 |Park 2 parcels 063 297501000
Dorothy Boite Park 062 293202001
(540 Spruce St) R-1H 50,516 |Park 062 293502301
052 156800300,
052 156800501,
Elmwood Parking Lot Parking 052 156800601,
(2642 Russell St) CE 73740 6 parcels 052 156800700,
052 156800801,
052 156800401
Epehsian's Children's Center {Epehsian's
(1907 Harmon St) R-2A 3,000 [Leased 052 152901100 Yes Children's Center No End Date
Fountain Walk C-N(H)/ R
k 57100200
{st Hopkins and El Dorado) 1H 9,678 |Other 061 257100

Page 175



Page 54 of 66 .
Page,38.0f 27 o |

Inventory of City Properties
Name (Address) Zoning Lot SF Current Nates Image APN Bldg SF Leased? Tenant End Lease
Use Term
d ini Park
Sioﬂﬁ’;xﬂ A:;) R-1H 9,925 [Park 062 292002300
George Florence Park (2121 Tenth St) R-1A 21,600 [Park 056 197701300
060 246904300
060 246505500
Glendale- La L Park
llsroal:m?“:r;) l R-1H 129,092 |Park 5 parcels 060 246904200
060 246306101
064 423201100
Great Stone Face park
{1930 Thousand Oaks Blvd) R-1H 30,471 |Park 062 292000100
Greg Brown Park 052 152502601
(1907 Harmon St) R-2A 20,046 fPark 2 parcels 052 152901002
Grizzly Peak Park
{50 Whitaker Ave) R-1H 10,692 [Park BMC 063 298304900
Grotto Rock Park
(879 Santa Barbara Rd) R-1H 16,867 [Park 061 258204500
Grove Park | . 053 167600101
(1730 Oregon St} R-2/R-2A 121,794 |Park 3 parcels 053 167800101
- 053 167800102

Page 176



Page 55 of 66 .
Page 39.0f 87

Inventory of City Properties

Pt
<
Name (Address) Zoning Lot SF urrent Notes Image APN Bldg SF Leased? End Lease
Use . Term
satellite
" Affordable
Harper Crassin R-2A/ C-
(31:2 MLK Jr. V?Iav) sA / 14,585 |Other Housing 052 155101302
Assoclates
development
060 238300102
Harrison Park 060 238300200
(1100 Fourth 5t) MUL! 280,341 |Park 4 parcels 060 238300300 9,644
060 238300400
Haskell-Mabel Mini Park - .
(1255 Haskell st) R-2A 2,658 |Park 053 162600601
Hillside Open Space on Euclid Ave " |open - steep slope.
{near 660 Euelid Ave) F1H 2081 |coace  [ear 660 Fuctd. 063 295601701
Indian Rock Park . 061 257802100
(950 Indian Rock Ave) R-IH 89,714 |Park 2 parcels 061 258401600
K 4
:i;‘z%‘ Ei::::‘;;“k R-1A 159,948 [Leased 058 212200100 Yes, a partion [BAHIA 5/15/2012
061 257900200
:::Z:::resle:?\l:e) R-1H 180,127 |Park 3 parcels 061 257300100
061 259803300
Live Oak Park R-2H/ R- 060 245503805
{1301 Shattuck Ave) 2AH 224,036 |Leased 060 245601500 Yes Theater First INC 1/31/2023

Page 177



Page 56 of 66 ' -

Page A9 of 87

Inventory of City Properties - -
. End leasa
Name (Address) Zoning Lot SF Currant Notes Image APN 8ldg SF Leased? Tenant d
Use . i Term
(L:t‘";;'ff;:‘;mi“” Path T 2,900 [Park D50 238501000
Iﬁerkelev yacht Club;
Berkeley marine
Center; Berkeley -
1000 oy e
Marina/Casar Chavez Park No Zoning 060 254000201 . N '
; 1/205!
{11 Spinnaker Way) available 191,060,089 [Leased 060 252800701 _ 2529 Yes, a portion :::/I:n‘;::-es- skates 12/31/2058
. 060 253400103 !
Restaurant; Hs
Lordships; Bait Shop-|
oung Kim;
Doubletree
Mental Health Adult Clinic C ey
(2640 MLK Jr Way) : R-2A | 12,33 iy ‘ 054 181100300 11,194
o R-3/ C- -
MLK Ir. Civic Center Park .
(2151 Martin Luther King Ir Way) DMU 121,548 |Park 057 202100200 -
Buffer
Mortar Rock Park X? Next to )
(201 Indiian Rock Ave) R-1H 5,174 fPark 061 258305100
Nia House Learning Center Nia House Learning
(2234 Ninth St} R-1A . 1‘9,855 Leased (056 197000801 7,760 |Yes Center 8/1/205?
North Berkeley Senior Center City
(1501 Hearst Ave) R-2A 32,803 |cacliy 057 205701202
North Bowling Green . . City
(portion of City Corp Yard, 1324 Allston) R-2 + 21,000 Facllity P56 199301501 . 46,604

Page 178



Page 57 of 66
Page A%.of 87

" Inventory of City Properties

-
Name {Address) Zoning Lot SF Current Notes Image APN Bldg SF Leased? Tenant End Lease
Use . Term
?sask::;klngo Ave) R-1H 9,894 |Park 064 424200100
Oak Ridge Steps
(between E| Camino Real and Oak Ridge) “‘".' 1,408 [ROW 064 424301400
Oceanview
Garden
Apartments. .
Oceanview Garden Apartments 057 209801202
(1816 Sixth 5t) MUR 115,476 |Other Former RDA 058 211801007
property, 2 non-
parcels,
057 206702801
057 206600601
057 206503100
057 206400702
Ohlone Park | e 057 205601501
{1701 Hearst Ave) R—2/‘ R-2A 300,981 [Park - [10Parcels . 457 206700700
058 215002001
060 241403102
060 241707602
060 241101802
Only the open
Open Space R-2, space Is In
( 1100 ke i) adjacent 5,200 [other  [Barkeley. 060 241000200
to C-W Buildings are in
Albany.
Open Space Open adjacent to 060 .
: 3 240906902
(Santa Fe Ave at Alhany border) -2 1,925 Space BART ROW
Open Space on California
i k 056 200500300
{entrance to 1600 Addison condos) R-2 3,322 fPark
ﬁm:ff CR:) R-1H 4,427 |Other 064 424701600
v

Page 179



Page 58 of 66

Inventory of City Properties s
Name (Address) Zoning Lot SF Currant Notes Image. APN Bldg SF Leased? Tenant End Leasa
Use Term
Open Space ' Open
(Sutter St at Eunice 5t} R-1H 7579 Space 061 256600600
Open Space Open
(Tamalpais Rd) R-1H L760 o nce 060 247303800
Open Space Open
(Twain Ave near Sterling Ave) R-1H 3271 (o oace 063 298400805
¢ .
|2 parcels. City
owns a portion .
Oxford Plaza Parking Garage C-DMU 46,633 Parking-  |of the site - 057 211800100 46,202
(2165 Kittredge) Core ’ Garage |parking garage. 057 211900200 !
Parcel listed as 0
square feet.
Parking Lot ' - Children's First
(Adeline and Alcatraz) C-SA 5,831 |Leased 052 152801504 - |Yes Wiedical Group No End Date
Presentation Park )
(2199 California st) R2 2,493 |Park 056 200500200
Prince Street Mini Park
(1631 Prince St) R-2A 6,750 [Park 053 160601000
Remillard Park . 063 297601201
(80 Pappy Ln) ‘|R-1H 83,734 |Park 3 parcels 063 297601100
063 297601203

Page 180



Page 59 of 66
Page A8 of 87

Inventory of City Properties
Name (Address) Zoning Lot SF Current Notes image APN BldgSF |  Leased? Tenant End Lease
. Use . Term

Roundabout Open
(Parkside Drive) R-1H 16,767 o oce 064 420404200
San Pablo Park
{2800 Park st) R-1 518,647 [Park 053 166500100

054 179302700

054 178303500
Santa Fe Right of Way - - 054 17830360
(approx. 1400 Carleton) R-1/R2 75,086 |ROW 6 parcels 054 179402800

’ 054 173502000
054 179002800 .
N
Sidewalk and Road R-2A/ C-
(Ashby between Harper and MLK Jr. Way)  [SA 16,500 |Other 053 160100402
‘ kY
Sidewalk : .
(Le Conte Ave at La Loma Ave) R-2AH 2'957> Other 058 220400100
Small Parcel .
(Ashby Ave, between Harper and Elfls) R-2A 222 (Other 053 160200401
oy and Heoist Raa. 1,620 other 057 205101602
Sojourner Truth Court R-3/R-1/ includes some
2

(former Santa Fe ROW) C-SA 36,110 [ROW open space 054 173702000

Page 181



Page 60 of 66

Page.AR.of 27

Inventory of City Properties

’ \ End Lease
Name (Address) Zoning Lot SF Current Notes Image APN Bldg SF Leased? Tenant
Use . Term
N 053 160302100
5;‘"2 :ﬁ"‘:"v Senior Center R-2A " 21,690 Sz“ 3 parcels 053 160302200
(2939 Ellis St) aclity 053 160302300
Spiral gardans P ' Spiral Gardens 6/30/2008
(2850 Sacramento st) R-1/ C-SA 12,423 [Leased 053 166903000 Yes Community Garden /3072
: 056 195000700
(S:;Z‘gk:g;'x: ';"k R-2/ R-2A 147,999 |Park 3 parcels 056 199100200
Y 056 199000403
Telegraph-Channing Garage and Shops Parking
(2425 Channing Way) ) C-T 32,685 Garage 055 187500601 189,867
I:;;‘a u"'e:‘;’s";;')‘ R-1H 39,724 [park 060 248504601
I::::s;fr:ltman) R-1A 7,438 [Other 060 241701500
056 199600401
: : Resources for 056 139602401
University Avenue Cooperative Homes . Community 3:2 ::ZSOIDDU '
Apartments R-4 50,842 |Leased  {Development 056 199600900 “ |Yes UACH, LP 11/15/2080
(Addison at Sacramento) . ‘ ::::;ableOIEd 056 159600200
8 pr 056 199602800
056 199600300 - |
ﬁullding
Opportunities for
Self-Suffictency
N (BOSS); Dorathy Day
House; Option
" Recovery Services;
Vete M fal Build’ C-DMU '
(m;ac":m:r':;' 2 Buiidine offer 24,819 [Leased 057202202000 * | 33,254 [ves Berkeley Food and [Mo to mo
Housing Project;
Berkeley place;
[Americany Legion
Post 7; Disabled
. American Vets, The
. Ecology Center

- Page 182



: 8 Page 61 of 66
Page Afef87 :

Inventory of City Properties

-
Cui v .
Name (Address) Zoning Lot SF rent | Notes Image APN BldgSF | - Léased? Tenant End Leasa
Use ¢§: . Term
Virginia:McGee Totland . -«
(lsaawgmla st) R-2 16,248 |Park 058 215700100
West Berkeley Service Center City
(1900 Sixth St) MUR 31020 |- ey 057 209700201
In- ’ 058 213602400
West St. ot and Defaware] between | © 33,048 |Other :M:r-ce]s 058213701800
e oware) R-2/R-1 parces 058 213501900
Willard Park '
(2730 Hillegass Ave) R2 . . 111,000 fPark 054 171102700
South Berkeley
Resources for Cmty Housing Dev
- C i - Corp - William Byron
ggr;";::x:?s?"m Plaza c-sA 76,666 [Leased  |Development 053161401800 47,424 Rumford Sr. Plaza |  8/26/2070
! : affardable ’ (Resources for
housing project [Community
Development}
‘Women's Day Time Drop-in Center R Women's Day Time
(2213 Byron S1) R-2 4,3‘00 Leased 056 198403000 . 3,173 |Yes Drop-in Center 12/24/2023
'Women's Daytime Drop-In Center Adjacent to City . Women's Daytime :
- 9300600 18/2018
(2218 Acton St} R-2 21,085 |Leased Corp Yard 056 1993 R 594 |Yes Drop In Center 2418/

Page 183



Page 62 of 66

Page 26 of 27
Attachment 4
f { CITY ©F

Susan Wegraf
Councilmember District 6

CONSENT CALENDAR

April 5, 2016
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From:  Councilmember Susan Wengraf

Subject: - Analyzing All City-Owned Properties for‘Potent‘iaI for Housing Development

RECOMMENDATION

Request that the City Manager explore the opportunlty for the City of Berkeley to build
housing on city-owned property: conduct an inventory of city owned properties and
return to City Council as soon as possible with an evaluation and analysis of those
properties that are appropriate for the development of affordable housing.

BACKGROUND

Across the state of California, urban centers are experiencing a crisis.in housing
availability at all levels of affordability. The crisis is very severe in the Bay Area. Lack of
funds and subsidies from the state and federal government has exacerbated the
obstacles to developing housing at all levels of affordability. In addition, the scarcity and
the high cost of land in the Bay Area and in Berkeley, specifically, is an enormous
barrier to producing affordable housing. Berkeley needs to optimize its limited resources
now and look to partner with housing developers to build housing on city-owned land.. .

The City of Berkeley has a unique opportunity. The two senior centers, "North", on MLK .
and Hearst, and "South” on Ellis and Ashby and the Service Center on 6t Street are all
in need of significant renovation. Now is the time to evaluate these propertles to
determine if it is feasible to create a mixed-use, housing/community center on these
sites prior to spending millions of dollars on: the current structures.

All City owned propertles should be explored and evaluated for thelr potential as sites
for housing development.

In addition, the Berkeley Unified School District owns property that has the potential to
be developed as housing. The City of Berkeley should work closely with the BUSD to
encourage them to move forward with their own analysis of potential housing sites that
are currently under- utilized.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7160 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7166
E-Mail: swengraf@cityofberkeley.infq

Page 184



Page 63 of 66

Page 22 of 27
Attachment 4

This severe housing crisis calls for all publicly owned land to be evaluated and
considered. , : '

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Staff time

CONTACT: CoUnciImembér Susan Wengraf Council District 6 510-981-7160

Page 185



Page 64 of 66
PRggeid of 47

' / fflT‘T‘ o : 37

Susan Wengraf
Councilmember District 6

: CONSENT CALENDAR
May 16, 2017

To: . Honorable Mayor and Member of the City Council

From: Councilmembers Susan Wengraf,.Kate Harrison, Linda Maio and Ben Bartlett

Subject: Budget Referral: Feasibility Study for the Construction of Affordable Senior
Housing .

RECOMMENDATION:

Refer to the budget referral process a feasibility study that evaluates the financial
requirements and analyzes the site/context yield of the construction of affordable
housing for seniors on the sites of North Berkeley Senior Center, West Berkeley Service
Center and South Berkeley Senior Center. '

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
$100,000

BACKGROUND: ‘

The demographic for people over 65 is increasing in Berkeley. By 2030, the population
of residents over 65 will be more than 26,000. The number one concern expressed by
seniors is their ability to be able to stay housed in Berkeley, as they get older.

Berkeley has an opportunity to provide affordable senior housing by building over the
senior or service centers. Since the city owns the land, a public/private partnership for
the construction and management is an excellent possibility.

As the city moves forward with planning the expenditures from Measure T1, we should
be sure that resources used on improving our current facilities do not pre-empt the
possibility of future development at these three sites.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
No adverse effect on the environment.

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Susan Wengraf Council District6  510-981-7160

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7160 & TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7166
E-Mail: swengraf@cityofberkeley.info

Page 186



Page 65 of 66
Page 46 of 47

/  CITYeR

o9
5
fr

M
m

A

Planning and Development Department :

“Health, Housing and Community Services Department

March 7, 2019

To: ~ Honorable Members of the Land Use, Housing, and Economic
' Development Committee ~
From: Timothy Burroughs, Director, Planning and Development Department
Kelly Wallace, Interim Director, Health, Housing and Community Services
, Department ' ‘ '
-Subject: Process for Considering Proposals to Develop the West Berkeley Senior

~ Center Site for Senior Housing /

SUMMARY : ‘

The Committee is considering a referral that would direct the City Manager to issue a
Request for Proposals (RFP) for the development of the West Berkeley Service Center
site (located at 1900 Sixth Street) into a senior housing and services project, consistent
with Age Friendly Berkeley recommendations. The Committee discussed this item at its
February 20, 2019 meeting and requested that staff come to the March 7, 2019
Committee meeting with additional information. ~

Specifically, the Committee requested an estimate of the staff time required to conduct
a basic analysis of the development potential for the West Berkeley Service Center site.
The Committee also requested input from staff on the appropriate procurement process
for soliciting ideas and proposals from housing developers for potential future
development of the site. ' . ' ' . :

STAFF TIME NEEDED: : . :

‘Land Use staff recommend that the analysis of development potential at the site include
build-out scenarios for a three-, four-, five- and six-story building at the site, using
Mixed-Use Residential (MUR), West Berkeley Commercial (C-W), and Multiple-Family
Residential (R-3) Development Standards. Each buildout scenario should reflect base
project conditions, and conditions if Density Bonus waivers and concessions are
requested, or if Use Permits are used to modify Development Standards. The proposed
analysis would take approximately 40-60 hours of staff time.

PROCUREMENT PROCESS:
Staff recommends that Council consider:

o Complete any rezoning before issuing an RFP. If the zoning changes for the site
are not yet settled, this may inhibit the number of interested developers. This
sequence would also avoid the duplicate time and expense of designing two
projects (one responding to the current zoning, one responding to the revised

- zoning). Completing this process first will also mean that the RFP responses are

[l PR — e S4B . -t . T

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 98‘]-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 187



Page 66 6f 66
Page 47 of 47

Process for Considering Proposals to Develop the West Berkeley Senior Center Site March 7,2019
for Senior Housing ‘

based on more current information, since predevelopment work could proceed
immediately after a contract award.

* A Request for Proposals (RFP), as opposed to a Request for Information (RFD),
may be the best tool to use for soliciting development concepts from housing
developers if Council wishes to use this process to award a contract, such as a
Disposition and Development Agreement. An RF| is typically used to collect
information from many potential bidders in anticipation of releasing a request for
bids, to inform the request. An RFP is an excellent tool to use when the City
wants bidders to apply their creative thinking to the proposed project and wants
to award a contract.. The RFP-can ask the bidders to respond to multiple City
priorities. Since identifying and analyzing options to develop the site will require
an investment of staff time from respondents, developers are more likely to
respond with more fully developed proposals if the process is used to award a
contract.

= As a precursor to developing an RFP, it would help staff to understand Council's
priorities for the site, particularly what project components are most important,
such.as maximizing the number of affordable units for seniors, providing deeply
affordable units, inclusion of community services space, a memory care facility,
etc. Understanding the ranking of Council priorities will help staff and bidders
evaluate trade-offs and enable more responsive proposals, making the process
more efficient for the City and developer ahke :

CONTACT PERSONS ’
Timothy Burroughs, Director, Planning and Development Department, 510-981-7437
Kelly Wallace, Interim Director, Health Housing and Communlty Services Department,

510-981- 5107

Page 188



Page 1 of 27 02a14

BerkELEY C1TY COUNCILMEMBER
ERRY T APLAN ‘| BEN BARTLETT

A DISTRICT 2

CONSENT CALENDAR
Feb. 13, 2024

To:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Councilmember Taplin, Councilmember Bartlett (co-author)

Subject: Incentives for Equitable and Affordable Middle Housing

RECOMMENDATION
1. Refer to the City Manager and the Planning Commission to study and return to
Council potential amendments to the Berkeley Municipal Code and General Plan
to further the City of Berkeley’s goals for affirmatively furthering fair housing with
additional incentives for affordability and ownership opportunities, including first-
time homebuyers and households inheriting properties from relatives, in “Middle
Housing” zoning categories. At a minimum, consider:

a. A local density bonus for on-site affordable housing for Middle Housing,
including additional dwelling units, Floor Area Ratio, lot coverage, reduced
or waived fees, and ministerial approval for projects with on-site deed-
restricted units affordable to Low- and Moderate-Income households, and
incentives for first-time homebuyer opportunities. Consider regulating
maximum buildable width and/or depth to disincentivize higher-cost
dwelling units.

b. A density bonus for additional Accessory Dwelling Units in exchange for
the inclusion of deed-restricted ADUs on-site affordable to Low- and
Moderate-Income households. To the extent feasible, incorporate scope of
study with Council’s referral to develop an Efficiency Unit Ordinance.

c. A density bonus for Middle Housing residential projects in which an owner-
occupier receives a minimum of in-kind compensation for the parcel with
on-site ownership unit(s) in the project. Consider standard form
agreements and other technical assistance.

d. Pre-approved designs for bonus-compliant projects.

e. Seek to leverage consistency and compatibility with state and regional
resources including the Bay Area Housing Finance Authority (BAHFA),
MTC/ABAG, AC Boost, and the CA Dream For All program.

2. Refer to the Fiscal Year 25/26 biennial budget process $250,000 for technical
assistance.

Page 189


NSalwan
Typewritten Text
02a.14


Page 2 of 27

Incentives for Equitable and Affordable Middle Housing Feb. 13, 2024

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
$250,000 or $125,000 per fiscal year, equivalent of one (1) FTE Senior Planner
positions.

Berkeley’s 2023 Housing Element Update, Program 30: Accessory Dwelling Units,
includes the following provision: “Providing one dedicated ADU planner to respond to
guestions and offering office hours and other educational programs for those interested
in creating ADUSs.”

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Developing incentives for affordable and equitable Middle Housing is a Strategic Plan
Priority Project, advancing our goal to create affordable housing and housing support
service for our most vulnerable community members.

Berkeley made insufficient progress on meeting its state-mandated Regional Housing
Need Allocation (RHNA) goals for low- and moderate-income housing in the 2014-2022
RHNA cycle. As recently as the city’s 2020 Housing Pipeline Report, the city had only
fulfilled 23% of its moderate-income RHNA goals, 21% of its RHNA goals for Very-Low
Income households, and a mere 4% for Low-Income households. Berkeley’s next
RHNA cycle mandates roughly 3 times as many units as the previous cycle’s total of
2,959 units across all income tiers.!

As of February 17, 2023, the City of Berkeley’s Housing Element Update contains
Policy H-6, Low Income Homebuyers, under Goal A: Housing Affordability: “Support
efforts that provide opportunities for successful home ownership.”

The Element also contains Policy H-29, Middle Housing, under Goal E: Affirmatively
Furthering Fair Housing: “Promote and facilitate a mix of dwelling types and sizes,
particularly infill middle housing in high resource neighborhoods.”

Further, the Element includes Policy H-32, under Goal F: Mitigate Governmental
Constraints: “Provide incentives where feasible to offset or reduce the costs of
affordable housing development, including density bonuses and flexibility in site
development standards.”

Leveraging both policy frameworks together can more directly mitigate spatial
inequalities stemming from local and regional histories of systemic racism and
segregation. With rising land costs and varying lot sizes, opportunity site planning for
subsidized affordable housing in Berkeley has tended to concentrate along commercial
corridors. However, including incentives for additional affordability in Middle Housing
could enable greater geographic equity in affordable housing distribution, with no public
subsidy needed to break ground.

1 https://abag.ca.gov/sites/default/files/draft rhna allocation presentation to exec bd jan 21.pdf

Page 190


https://abag.ca.gov/sites/default/files/draft_rhna_allocation_presentation_to_exec_bd_jan_21.pdf

Page 3 of 27

Incentives for Equitable and Affordable Middle Housing Feb. 13, 2024

BACKGROUND

The City of Portland, Oregon adopted its Residential Infill Project (RIP), a package of
middle housing zoning reforms, in August of 2020. Portland’s residential zones now
generally permit four dwelling units per parcel, with a Deeper Affordability density bonus
for on-site affordable housing. This reform was strongly supported by Oregon’s
affordable housing builders, including Habitat For Humanity, which is able to provide
more first-time homeownership opportunities to lower-income households in Portland
thanks to the additional density and economies of scale.? A City of Portland staff report
summarized: “These new housing types will complement existing neighborhoods.
Smaller in size, they provide more choices for first-time homebuyers, downsizing empty-
nesters and middle-wage earners... Conversely, without allowing additional housing
types to occur in single-dwelling neighborhoods, one conclusion is certain: When homes
are demolished or when vacant sites are developed, the resulting redevelopment will
result in only one house (likely large and expensive), when options for two, three or four
households could have been built in its stead.™

Letting nonprofit developers build bigger is the same as
cutting a big check for affordable housing — except it's free.

563,338 ' . ; :

$563, Public subsidy required per
home
to create permanently affordable homes
for buyers earning at or below 60% of
Portland's area median income

$203,686
$145,753 $53,992

‘//.J_-\

//_‘. ‘J'.
< ./;, L -

o
o

affordable affordable affordable affordable
oneplex fourplex sixplex eightplex
(3-bedroom units) (3-bedroom units) (some smaller units)

Source: Habitat for Humanity Portland/Metro East, Portland Community Reinvestment Initiatives, Proud Ground. Compiled by Neil Heller,

Data visualization from Sightline Institute

2 Andersen, M. (2020). Do Portland’s low-density zones need a deeper affordability option? Sightline
Institute. Retrieved from https://www.sightline.org/2020/01/10/do-portlands-low-density-zones-need-a-
deeper-affordability-option/

3 https://www.portland.gov/bps/rip/documents/exhibit-b-volume-1-staff-report/download

Page 191


https://www.sightline.org/2020/01/10/do-portlands-low-density-zones-need-a-deeper-affordability-option/
https://www.sightline.org/2020/01/10/do-portlands-low-density-zones-need-a-deeper-affordability-option/
https://www.portland.gov/bps/rip/documents/exhibit-b-volume-1-staff-report/download

Page 4 of 27

Incentives for Equitable and Affordable Middle Housing Feb. 13, 2024

“The same building envelope accommodates one, two, four, and eight units.” Opticos Design

The City of San Diego was able to incentivize affordable housing production through a
residential density bonus by enabling additional Accessory Dwelling Units in exchange
for deed-restricted affordable units, subject to state ADU streamlining provisions under
AB-68. Citywide, the bonus allows one additional market-rate ADU in addition to one
deed-restricted affordable ADU, with deed restriction periods varying by level of income
restriction. Additionally, in Transit Priority areas, the ADU Bonus waives the upper limit
on ADUs per project so long as each additional pair of units maintains the 1:1
affordability ratio.

The UC Berkeley Terner Center for Housing Innovation reports that San Diego’s ADU
Bonus has permitted 295 deed-restricted affordable ADUs since its passage in 2020,
roughly double the amount of ADUs permitted as a “base” project under state law.* San
Diego’s ADU Bonus is similar to other “Backyard Infill” programs like the Portland RIP in
that it “activates existing space by allowing lower density parcels to increase the number
of homes without significantly impacting existing neighborhoods and structures™—
reducing a housing development’s potential disruption of “neighborhood character.”

4 Alameldin, M. & Underriner, Q. San Diego’s Success in Spurring Missing Middle Housing: The
Accessory Dwelling Unit Bonus Program. UC Berkeley Terner Center for Housing Innovation. Retrieved
from https://ternercenter.berkeley.edu/research-and-policy/san-diego-adu-bonus-program/

Page 192


https://ternercenter.berkeley.edu/research-and-policy/san-diego-adu-bonus-program/

# ADUs Permitted

Page 5 of 27

Incentives for Equitable and Affordable Middle Housing Feb. 13, 2024
350~ 350~
300- % 300-
253 =X
250~ S 250-
200- g 200-
T
150- £ 150
=
5]
100~ ™ 100-
ol
50~ % 50-
0- I o- i [
® Base ADUs (allowed by state law) Deed-Restricted ADUs 2018-2021
® Bonus ADUs Deed-Restricted ADUs Jan 2021-Nov 2022

Deed Restricted Bonus ADUs

San Diego ADU Bonus Data. Alameldin & Underriner (2023).

In addition to affordable rental housing, expanding first-time homeownership
opportunities is critical for affirmatively furthering fair housing.

The racial wealth gap in the United States is primarily driven by inequitable access to
homeownership, stemming from systemic exclusion in land use as well as
discrimination in lending and appraisals.® Subsidies for both supply and demand
channels have been historically insufficient while support for American asset wealth
primarily in white communities has been more robust and resilient. This has widened
the racial wealth gap between white and Black households, and ultimately proved
incompatible with universal housing security.

By way of example, the Great Recession of 2008/9 effected a significant transfer of
wealth from lower-income Black homeowners® targeted with predatory subprime loans

5 Ray, R. et al. (2021). Homeownership, racial segregation, and policy solutions to racial wealth equity.
Brookings Institution. Retrieved from https://www.brookings.edu/essay/homeownership-racial-
segregation-and-policies-for-racial-wealth-equity/

6 White, G.B. (2015). The Recession’s Racial Slant. The Atlantic. Retrieved from
https://www.theatlantic.com/business/archive/2015/06/black-recession-housing-race/396725/

Page 193


https://www.brookings.edu/essay/homeownership-racial-segregation-and-policies-for-racial-wealth-equity/
https://www.brookings.edu/essay/homeownership-racial-segregation-and-policies-for-racial-wealth-equity/
https://www.theatlantic.com/business/archive/2015/06/black-recession-housing-race/396725/

Page 6 of 27

Incentives for Equitable and Affordable Middle Housing Feb. 13, 2024

to private equity firms’ buying up large portfolios of "distressed" properties before the

economy recovered. This historical pattern of usury and community displacement has
further excluded people of color from the fruits of economic recovery and deepens the
racial wealth gap.

The California state legislature has recognized the importance of first-time homebuyers
in its broader efforts to redress and repair the harms of historically racist institutions,
most recently by establishing the CA Dream For All program to provide down payment
assistance for first-time homebuyers statewide.

HOMEOWNERSHIP RATE BY RACE

=]
Black Hispani

Source: Pew Research Center, 2017

7 Warren, E. & Fife, C. (2020). Families see a looming catastrophe. Private equity firms see dollar signs. The
Washington Post. Retrieved from https://www.washingtonpost.com/opinions/2020/08/06/nation-is-facing-
housing-crisis-private-equity-firms-just-see-dollar-signs/

Page 194


https://www.washingtonpost.com/opinions/2020/08/06/nation-is-facing-housing-crisis-private-equity-firms-just-see-dollar-signs/
https://www.washingtonpost.com/opinions/2020/08/06/nation-is-facing-housing-crisis-private-equity-firms-just-see-dollar-signs/

Page 7 of 27

Incentives for Equitable and Affordable Middle Housing

HOUSING VALUES BY RACE

—&— White —&— Black

i
$15 O,OEEJ__,,.JJ'
& —

$161,814

$129,170

$202,180

Source: Institute on Assets and Social Policy, 2014

THETOP 0.01% OF HIGH EARNERS RECEIVE MORE HOMEOWNERSHIP

TAX BENEFITS THANTHE BOTTOM 20% OF EARNERS

preretneeeeteRenaeNe

Top 0.01%
$17,000

Bottom 20%

$3

Source: from Upside Down to Right-Side Up, 2014

Feb. 13, 2024

How the racial wealth gap manifests in homeownership: The homeownership rate for white Americans
was 29% higher than for Black Americans in 2017. White homeowners also have higher property values

on average, and the highest-earning homeowners receive the lion’s share of tax benefits.

However, high housing costs in Berkeley have significantly limited the efficacy of
homeownership assistance programs. AC Boost, Alameda County’s Down Payment
Assistance loan program, limits its maximum loan amount to $160k-$210k for a 0-3%
down payment. In AC Boost’s first and second funding cycles, out of 17 Berkeley

Page 195



Page 8 of 27

Incentives for Equitable and Affordable Middle Housing Feb. 13, 2024

residents who submitted complete applications, 3 have purchased homes in
neighboring cities, but not in Berkeley.?

Because condominiums offer significantly more affordable prices for first-time
homebuyers compared to single-family homes, the Berkeley City Council recently
updated its Affordable Housing Mitigation Fee to eliminate the discrepancy between
ownership and rental units that disincentivized condo construction.

Encouraging equitable condominium ownership models can strengthen the City’s efforts
to reduce displacement and promote community-based generational wealth-building
and accommodating growing families in historically disadvantaged areas. Neighbors
adjacent to new development often anecdotally report that they fear the pressure to “sell
out” to highly capitalized institutional investors, or otherwise lament the erosion of
familiar community bonds. Thus, one policy mechanism for consideration is incentivizing
a “land for housing” or “flats-for-land” swap in which an owner-occupier can cash in part
of their home equity without displacement by receiving condominium units on-site as
partial compensation from a developer for their property.

Modern flats-for-land exchanges emerged as equity financing in lieu of a public housing
program in postwar Greece, after two world wars and a civil war left the state without
resources and banks without credit lines to build housing for a rapidly growing urban
population. Under the antiparochi system, homeowners in Athens, Thessaloniki, and
other cities sold their land to developers with partial compensation provided with a deed
to one or several units in the resulting polikatoikia apartment buildings. This increased
housing available for migrants and refugees as well as employment opportunities in the
construction sector. Research has found that the “flats-for-land” model enabled
substantially increased housing supply and GDP per capita in postwar Greece.®

ang) —

oo

Antiparochi illustration1®

8 https://berkeleyca.govi/sites/default/files/documents/2022-11-
03%201tem%2026%20Budget%20Referral%20Down%20Payment%20Assistance.pdf

9 petris, P., et al. (2020). The "flats-for-land" system in Greece: An idiosyncratic equity financing
mechanism in the post-War period, The Journal of European Economic History, ISSN 2499-8281,
Associazione Bancaria Italiana, Roma, Vol. 49, Iss. 2, pp. 175-202. Retrieved from
https://www.econstor.eu/bitstream/10419/231559/1/49-2020-2-175-202.pdf

10 CoHab Athens. Antiparochi. Retrieved from https://cohabathens.org/portfolio/antiparochi-land-for-flat/

Page 196


https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-11-03%20Item%2026%20Budget%20Referral%20Down%20Payment%20Assistance.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-11-03%20Item%2026%20Budget%20Referral%20Down%20Payment%20Assistance.pdf
https://www.econstor.eu/bitstream/10419/231559/1/49-2020-2-175-202.pdf
https://cohabathens.org/portfolio/antiparochi-land-for-flat/

Page 9 of 27

Incentives for Equitable and Affordable Middle Housing Feb. 13, 2024

While statewide construction defect reform*! would likely be needed to further increase
the scale of condominium construction in California, the City of Berkeley could study
incentives and provide technical assistance for similar exchanges.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

In an analysis of 252 California Cities, Durst (2021) finds that “each additional affordable
housing incentive is associated with a 0.37 percentage point decrease in the share of
workers who commute more than 30 minutes.”1?

AC Boost’s down payment assistance fund includes incentives to reduce Vehicle Miles
Traveled (VMT) while mitigating displacement by encouraging home purchases close to
jobs and public transit. According to Wheeler et al (2018), the urban core of the San
Francisco Bay Area (including Berkeley) contains some of the lowest carbon emissions
per capita in California, making urban infill housing a key policy lever for cities to reduce
carbon footprints by reducing VMT per capita.l® Preventing displacement from Berkeley
also prevents increased emissions from households who otherwise may be priced out to
areas with higher per capita emissions.

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Taplin Council District 2  510-981-7120
Councilmember Bartlett  Council District 3  510-981-7130

ATTACHMENTS

1. City of Portland Ordinance 190093, Adopted August 12, 2020

2. Build Small Coalition Letter Re: Residential Infill Project 2.0 (4/14/2022)

3. City of San Diego Staff Report - Housing Legislation Code Update to the Municipal
Code and Local Coastal Program (9/9/2020)

11 parolek, D. (2020). Missing middle housing: Thinking big and building small to respond to today’s
housing crisis. Island Press.

12 purst, N. J. (2021). Residential Land Use Regulation and the Spatial Mismatch between Housing and
Employment Opportunities in California Cities. UC Berkeley Terner Center for Housing Innovation.
Retrieved from
http://californialanduse.org/download/Durst%20Residential%20Land%20Use%20Requlation%202020.pdf
13 Wheeler, S. M., Jones, C. M., & Kammen, D. M. (2018). Carbon footprint planning: quantifying local
and state mitigation opportunities for 700 California cities. Urban Planning, 3(2), 35-51.

Page 197


http://californialanduse.org/download/Durst%20Residential%20Land%20Use%20Regulation%202020.pdf

Page 10 of 27

ORDINANCE No. 190093 As Amended

Amend the Comprehensive Plan, Comprehensive Plan Map, Zoning Map, Title 33 Planning and
Zoning, and Title 30 Affordable Housing, to revise the Single-Dwelling Residential designations
and base zones. (Ordinance; amend Code Title 33, Title 30 and amend the Portland Comprehensive
Plan and zoning maps)

The City of Portland Ordains:
Section 1. The Council finds:
General Findings

Portland is expected to grow by more than 100,000 households by the year 2035.

2. The cost of housing in Portland is rising. The average cost of rent in Portland increased
by 5 percent or more between 2012 and 2016, and by 2 percent in 2017. Between 2011
and 2018, the median home sale price citywide rose 60 percent — or more than
$150,000. As of 2018, the median home sale price exceeded $475,000 in more than half
the neighborhoods in the city. In order to afford the median price home in Portland today,
families must earn 130% to 160% of the median family income.

3. Inaddition, the city’s history of racially discriminatory decision-making and public
policies have contributed to today’s racial disparities in homeownership rates and wealth
attainment and has resulted in geographic racial segregation in Portland.

4. For these reasons, the ability for many households to gain entry into many of the city’s
single-dwelling neighborhoods is increasingly out of reach.

5. At the same time, the city is becoming more diverse, the overall population is aging, and
the number of people per household is getting smaller.

6. The Comprehensive Plan includes policies directed toward encouraging more housing
choices to accommodate a wider diversity of family sizes, incomes and ages (Policy
4.15); encourage development and preservation of small resource-efficient and affordable
single-family homes in all areas of the city (Policy 4.18); expanding housing choice in all
of Portland’s neighborhoods (Policy 5.4); encouraging middle housing—multi-unit or
clustered residential buildings that provide relatively smaller, less expensive units (Policy
5.6); and encouraging a variety of ownership opportunities and choices (Policy 5.43).

7. Nearly half of the city’s land area is zoned for single-dwelling residential development,
however, apartments are the predominant housing type being built in Portland—74
percent of all units built in 2016.

8. Portland’s single-dwelling zoning currently allows up to two dwelling units per lot—one
house and one accessory dwelling unit, or in some cases, a duplex on a corner. And yet,
due to the high cost of land, the size of dwelling units continues to increase, and the price
of the units is higher than most Portlanders can afford.

9. In 2015, the Bureau of Planning and Sustainability began the Residential Infill Project
with the goal of responding to these trends and changing demographics. Then-Mayor
Charlie Hales appointed a Stakeholder Advisory Committee (SAC) to assist the Bureau
of Planning and Sustainability in developing a plan to amend the city’s single-dwelling

Page 198



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.
21.

22,

Page 11 of 27 190093

zoning code to alleviate the rising cost of housing and reduce the size of new houses. The
SAC met 14 times between September 2015 and October 2016.

The Residential Infill Project Concept Plan was released for public review on June 15,
2016. City Council held public hearings on the concept plan in November 2016 and
passed Resolution No. 37252 on December 7, 2016 endorsing the concepts in the plan.

The Residential Infill Project Proposed Draft was released for public review on April 2,
2018.

On April 2, 2018 notice of the proposed draft was mailed to the Department of Land
Conservation and Development in compliance with the post-acknowledgement review
process required by OAR 660-18-020.

On April 4, April 9, and April 11, 2018 notice of the proposed draft was mailed to all
property owners potentially affected by proposed zoning map and code changes as
required by ORS 227.186.

On May 8, 2018 and May 15, 2018, the Planning and Sustainability Commission held
public hearings on the proposed draft. In addition, the Commission held 2 briefings and 9
work sessions before voting to forward the Residential Infill Project to City Council on
March 12, 2019.

The Residential Infill Project Recommended Draft was released for public review on
August 2, 2019.

On October 9, 2019 a revised notice of the recommended draft was mailed to the
Department of Land Conservation and Development in compliance with the post-
acknowledgement review process required by OAR 660-18-045.

On December 12, 2019 notice of the January 15, 2020 and January 16, 2020 City Council
public hearings was mailed to those who presented oral and written testimony at the
Planning and Sustainability Commission public hearing. In addition, the City emailed
notice of the hearing to its Residential Infill Project email list.

The Residential Infill Project amendments allow up to six dwelling units per lot (based on
lot sizes and affordability level) in the R7, R5 and R2.5 zones, and allows the units to be
arranged in multiple configurations including a single structure with up to six dwelling
units or a combination of a primary and accessory structure.

The amendments provide opportunities for a wider variety of housing options and can
reduce the cost of a single unit by roughly half the cost of a single new house.

The amendments encourage additional regulated affordable housing units.

The amendments also include a cap on house size by limiting the amount of floor area
allowed per lot in the R7, R5 and R2.5 zones. The cap is intended to ensure that:

e Additional development in these zones is compatible with existing development;
and

e Additional dwelling units are affordable to a wider cross-section of Portland
residents because smaller dwelling units are often less expensive than larger units.

The Residential Infill Project also rezones approximately 7,000 lots from R5 to R2.5. The
rezoned lots are narrow, platted lots—generally 2,500 square feet in size—that are
substandard for the R5 zones. The rezoning is intended to increase opportunities for

Page 199



Page 12 of 27 190093

homeownership as dwelling units on these lots are generally smaller and therefore less
expensive.

23. The amendments also help the city to comply with the following:

e House Bill 2001, which the Oregon State Legislature passed on August 8, 2019, and
requires cities with a population greater than 10,000 to allow duplexes on any lot
zoned for single-family dwellings; and

e Senate Bill 534, which the Oregon State Legislature passed on July 23, 2019, and
requires local governments to allow single-family dwellings on residential lots
platted and zoned for such uses.

24. The Findings of Fact Report, attached as Exhibit A, includes additional findings
demonstrating consistency with the Statewide Planning Goals, Metro Urban Growth
Management Functional Plan, and the City of Portland 2035 Comprehensive Plan.

25. The amendments to Title 30 are necessary to extend the Deeper Housing Affordability
FAR Density Program to the single-dwelling zones to support the Affordable Fourplexes
and Multi-dwelling Structures Residential Infill Option.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council directs:
a. Adopt amended Exhibit A, dated July 2020, as additional findings.

b. Amend the Portland Comprehensive Plan as shown in Exhibit B, Residential Infill
Project As-Amended Draft, dated July 2020.

c. Adopt the commentary in Exhibit B, Residential Infill Project As-Amended Draft,
dated July 2020, as legislative intent and further findings.

d. Amend Title 33, Planning and Zoning, of the Municipal Code of the City of Portland,
as shown in Exhibit B, Residential Infill Project As-Amended Draft, dated July 2020,
but excluding the amendments to Section 33.110.212 (When Primary Structures are
Allowed), Chapter 33.675 (Lot Consolidation), Chapter 33.676 (Lot Confirmation),
and the amendments to the lot-related and lot line-related definitions in 33.910
(Definitions).

e. Amend Section 33.110.212 (When Primary Structures are Allowed), Chapter 33.675
(Lot Consolidation), Chapter 33.676 (Lot Confirmation), and the lot-related and lot
line-related definitions in Chapter 33.910 (Definitions) as shown in Exhibit B,
Residential Infill Project As-Amended Draft, dated July 2020.

f. Amend the Portland Comprehensive Plan Map as shown on Exhibit C.
g. Amend the official Zoning Map as shown on Exhibits D and E.

h. Amend Title 30, Affordable Housing Preservation and Portland Renter Protections, of
the Municipal Code of the City of Portland, as shown in Exhibit B, Residential Infill
Project, As-Amended Draft, dated July 2020.

Section 2. Directives b, d, f, g, and h shall be in full force and effect on August 1, 2021.
Directives a, ¢, and e shall be in full force and effect 30 days after final passage by City Council.

Section 3. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, diagram or drawing contained in
this ordinance, or the map, report, inventory, analysis, or document it adopts or amends, is held

Page 200



Page 13 of 27 190093

to be deficient, invalid or unconstitutional, that shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions. The Council declares that it would have adopted the map, report, inventory, analysis, or
document each section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, diagram and drawing thereof,
regardless of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, phrases,
diagrams or drawings contained in this Ordinance, may be found to be deficient, invalid or
unconstitutional.

Passed by the Council: August 12, 2020 Mary Hull Caballero
Auditor of the City of Portland

Mayor Ted Wheeler By

Prepared by: Morgan Tracy

Date Prepared: December 12, 2019 Deputy

Page 201



0409 _14g 28

430 AKX 4% P51 648 654
Agenda No.

ORDmﬁ?CE NO. 190093 As Amended
itie

Amend the Comprehensive Plan. Comprehensive Plan Map. Zoning Map. Title 33 Planning and Zoning. and Title 30
Affordable Housing. to revise the Single-Dwelling Residential designations and base zones. (Ordinance; amend Code Title
33. and Title- 30 and Portland Comprehensive Plan and zoning maps)

INTRODUCED BY
Commissioner/Auditor;
Mayor Wheeler

CLERK USE: DATE FiLep_ JAN 07 2019

_ COMMISSIONER APPROVAL

Mayor—Finance & Administration - Wheelef/ 4

y, Mary Hull Caballero
l)/ Auditor of the City of Portland

Position 1/Utilities - Fritz

Position 2/Works - '

Position 3/Affairs - Hardesty

By: J,a//&/k/\

Y Deputy

Position 4/Safety - Eudaly

ACTION TAKEN:

BUREAU APPROVAL

J AN 1 5 2020 Continued to January 16, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. Time Certain

Bureau: Planning and Sustainability

J AN 1 6 20 Zﬂ Continued to January 29, 2020 at 2:00 pm Time Certain

Bureau Head: Andrea DurQin {.
)

Prepared by: Morgan Tracy
Date Prepared: 12/12/19

J AN 2 9 202[} Continued to February 12, 2020 at 2:00 pm Time Certain

Impact Statement
Completed = Amends Budget O

FEB12202) CONTINUEDTO 1y1ny o000 2P0
Time CeeTAnN

Portland Policy Document
If “Yes” requires City Policy paragraph stated
in document.

Yes O No X

fAR 12 2020 Rescheduled to date to be determined

June 3, 2020 Continued to June 11, 2020 at 2:40 p.m. Time Certain
June 11, 2020 Rescheduled to June 18, 2020 at 2 p.m. Time Certain

City Auditor Office Approval:

required for Code Ordinances

June 18, 2020 Continued to July 9, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. Time Certain

City Attorney Approval:
required for contract, code, easement,
franchise, comp plan, charter 1/FC—

July 9, 2020 Continued to August 5, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. Time Certain
As Amended

Council Meeting Date January 185,
2020

August 5, 2020 Passed to Second Reading August 12, 2020 at 9:45
a.m. Time Certain As Amended

= L

AGENDA FOUR-FIFTHS AGENDA COMMISSIONERS VOTED
AS FOLLOWS:

TIME CERTAIN X SR .
Start time: 2:00 pm

. 1. Fritz 1. Fritz X
Total amount of time needed: 3 hours
(for presentation, testimony and discussion) 2 2 Vacaal
CONSENT OJ 3. Hardesty 3. Hardesty X
REGULAR O 4. Eudaly 4. Eudaly
Total amount of time needed: Wheeler Wheeler X
(for presentation, testimony and discussion)

Page 202




Page 15 of 27

Members of the Build Small Coalition
Re: Residential Infill Project 2.0

April 14, 2022

Dear Mr. Mayor and Portland City Commissioners,

Firstly, everyone who has worked on RIP1 and/or RIP2 should be proud: Portland has exhibited
extraordinary leadership, spurring reforms statewide and around the country. Since RIP1
passage, many cities and multiple other states have introduced legislation (re)legalizing
“missing” middle housing types. We specifically wish to thank both BPS and the utility bureaus
in advance for their continued work to help with the collective goal of making middle housing
development a reality.

While we understand the more limited scope of RIP2 relative to the HB 2001 deadline, we
encourage this Council to consider whether we are poised to deliver on the promises of RIP1 and
address our ongoing housing crisis. We must do everything in our power to both prevent the
housing shortage from becoming more acute, while doing all we can to open up below-market
rental and homeownership opportunities in ALL our neighborhoods.

We have gained new information since RIP1 went into effect, and we should apply those lessons
with this update. A few minor changes should be considered to improve rules and incentives, with
a laser focus on affordable housing production. The recommendations below are focused on the
viability of recently-legalized middle housing options, and on improving performance of rules and
incentives for regulated-affordable homes:

Summary of key changes for affordability:

e Achieve FAR (home size) parity and improve viability of four-plexes,
e C(reate feasible development paths for affordable 5- to 6-plexes, and
o Fully implement SB 458 to remove barriers for affordable, fee-simple attached homes.

1. Graduate FAR for four-plexes: allow up to 0.8 FAR (from 0.7)
a. Maintain bonus of additional 0.1 FAR (to 0.9) if regulated affordable

Narrative: Floor Area Ratio (or “living area”) in single-dwelling zones is currently graduated
according to the number of homes, giving +0.1 FAR for duplexes above single-detached homes, and
an additional +0.1 FAR for triplexes and above. Permitting an additional +0.1 FAR for four-plexes
above triplexes would greatly increase feasibility of more 2- and 3-bedroom, family sized homes.
Four-plexes carry some additional benefits with them: Unlike duplexes and triplexes, four-plexes
must meet Fair Housing Act requirements for accessibility of ground-floor homes. Land and fixed
costs are also shared among more units, further lowering price per home. While we appreciate that
one goal of the FAR limits is to keep plex units relatively small and inexpensive, the lack of FAR for
four-plexes may have the unintended consequence of making other redevelopment options, such as

Page 203



Page 16 of 27

a comparatively expensive single- detached home, more compelling than a plex of any type: As of
February 8, permits under RIP1 had only yielded 16 four-plexes compared with 80 single-detached
homes with no ADUs.

2. Ensure that development standards for qualifying five-to-six-unit projects meeting
affordability standards are feasible - both stacked and side-by-side. To qualify a project must
must be either:

® 50% or more homes at 60% MFI rental/ 80% MFI ownership, or
® 100% of units at 100% MFI ownership, permanently up to 120% MFI

Create standards for affordable two-story side-by-side “townhome-style” plexes.
This would yield some three-bedroom but mostly two-bedroom homes:
i. 1.2 FAR
ii. 65% lot coverage
iii. 5 foot front setbacks (5 foot setbacks all round)
iv. 48 sf outdoor space per unit, overlapping with setbacks,

”

Create standards for affordable three-story, smaller footprint “townhome-style
plexes. This would yield up to six three-bedroom homes:
i. 1.4 FAR
ii. 60% lot coverage
iii. 10 foot front setback
iv. Unchanged outdoor space, and

Improve standards for affordable five-to-six-plex stacked flats (only development
type allowed currently). This would yield more affordable three-bedroom homes:
i Increase FAR to 1.4 (currently 1.2)
ii. Other standards remain unchanged

Narrative: We should be tailoring our code to maximize affordable rental and first-time
homeownership opportunities, and to accommodate differences in physical ability and household
size. These standards will allow flexibility, on a standard lot, for nonprofit organizations working to
meet community-specific needs and preferences - whether they be one’s own front door in a
townhome or a fully physically accessible stacked flat. Portland did a potentially revolutionary thing
in legalizing up to six homes with an aggressive affordability requirement. To realize its full benefit,
and to serve as many income-qualifying households as we can, we must ensure that development
standards are suitable and flexible. Portland must also invest in lasting affordability, or our efforts
will be lost too soon given the market trends. This is especially important to Portland’s stated
commitments to equity and to addressing the racial disparity gap in homeownership.

3. Create a path for affordable attached homes, mirroring the development standards in
#2(a)&(b) per historical PSC Amendment 5. For only those attached home projects that meet
the affordability requirements identified for five-to-six-plexes:

a.

b.
C.
d.

Adjust minimum lot sizes for each attached house to 800 sf
Increase allowed density to match minimum lot sizes,
Reduce minimum lot depth to 50 feet, and

Incorporate any other small adjustments to match #2(a)&(b).

Page 204



Page 17 of 27

Narrative: In addition to the innovative “deeper affordability bonus” for five- and six-plexes, we
recommend permitting analogous five to six unit attached home projects that meet the same
affordability levels. These projects are most likely to occur on corner lots where each home can
meet street frontage requirements, creating opportunities for first-time homeownership and having
one’s own front door - priorities explicitly expressed by community members accessing these
homes. This suggestion, together with #2 above and #4 below, also helps fulfill the stated goals of
historical PSC Amendment 5, creating a fee-simple path for affordable five-to-six home projects.
The concept was supported by the PSC, who directed staff to keep working on it.

4. Fully implement SB 458 to permit expedited Middle Housing Land Divisions (MHLDs) for all
attached house projects, including both market-rate and affordable (per the development
standards proposed in #2 above).

Narrative: SB 458 clearly requires that townhouses be eligible for middle housing expedited land
divisions, in addition to duplexes, triplexes, four-plexes and cottage clusters. Springfield, Eugene,
and many other cities are proposing to make townhouses eligible for middle housing land divisions,
regardless of the fact that townhouses can already use the existing subdivision and partition
process. Implementing the expedited process for a townhouse project consisting of up to six units
on an existing lot would be significant in reducing time and costs for townhouse creation. The
express intent of SB 458 is to allow a path to facilitate easier land divisions for middle housing
types, and HB 2001 clearly defines a townhouse as middle housing. In the midst of a housing crisis,
why wouldn’t we do everything that we can to facilitate more efficient paths for affordable
homeownership where feasible?

Attached homes in Portland are also known as “Townhouse Projects” according to the State. To
guote OAR 660-046-0020 "“Townhouse Project” means one or more townhouse structures
constructed, or proposed to be constructed, together with the development site where the land
has been divided, or is proposed to be divided, to reflect the Townhouse property lines and any
commonly owned property."

Summary of additional code improvements:

Adjust ADU size allowances for fairness to smaller homes and for visitability,
Adjust cottage cluster standards for better site layout and flexibility,

Improve strategies to preserve existing homes while adding new ones,

Allow for shared stormwater and single tap into main for sewer and water, and
Calculate lot coverage based on pre-dedication lot size.

5. Adjustments to ADU size for visitability and fairness for smaller homes:
a. Allow a visitable (or fully accessible) ADU up to 900 sf of living area,
b. Calculate ADU size from combined duplex living area, not larger of two, and
c. Improve “ADU fairness” by allowing up to 800 sf or up to size of the primary house.

Narrative: While the new “detached duplex” option creates a valuable new path for fee simple
homeownership, it doesn’t eclipse the need to refine ADU standards, providing flexibility to meet
different needs: (a) Given the extra sf needed for a visitable ADU, increasing the size to 900 sf will
ensure that other spaces in the home are not impacted by the visitable requirement. The 900 sf
building size also complements the PSC’s amendment allowing a 900 sf footprint for accessory

Page 205



Page 18 of 27

structures. Together, this makes a two bedroom, one-story, fully accessible ADU much more feasible.
(b) There are many smaller duplexes throughout Portland with potential to add an ADU. We
propose that the livable sf of the duplex (both units combined) be used to calculate the maximum
size of the ADU in order to increase preservation of existing homes. This will ensure that an ADU is
in proportion to the combined existing duplex structure. (c) In order not to penalize owners of
smaller homes, make maximum ADU size 800 sf or that of the primary home, whichever is smaller.
This is still smaller than many jurisdictions (e.g. Seattle (1,000 sf), San Diego (1,200 sf), and Corvallis
(900 sf or 85% of primary, whichever is less)) but can still accommodate two bedrooms. If not
possible, then increase ADU size up to 85% of the main house (vs.75% allowed currently) or 800 sf.

6. Adjust “cottage cluster” standards for better site flexibility, and label “cluster housing” for
greater accuracy per statewide middle housing definitions:
a. Allow up to 50% of cottages to be attached
b. Set maximum number of units relative to site size (instead of blanket 16 unit cap)
c. Allow small clusters (four or fewer) on lots under 5,000 sf

Narrative: a) Allowing some cottages to be attached allows for much greater flexibility in layout and
design, including considerations such as terrain, local context, large tree preservation, and more. b)
While we understand the regulatory complexities surrounding density, a blanket cap makes less
sense than a graduated approach proportional to site area. c) Finally, allowing tiny cottage clusters
on smaller lots echoes recently-reduced minimum lot sizes for other middle housing types.

7. Improve strategies to preserve existing homes by building behind them.
a. Allow attached duplexes and triplexes to be built behind the existing house.

8. Allow for shared stormwater and private sewer lateral with multiple connections (single tap
into main) for sewer & water.

Narrative: Allowing for a shared private sewer lateral with a single connection to the main within an
easement, with each middle housing unit tapping into the shared lateral, avoids the expense (and
lack of street frontage) that would be associated with individual laterals/connections for each unit.
Many attached- and courtyard-style homes being built now already do this.

9. Calculate lot coverage based on pre-dedication lot size to match how FAR is calculated.

Thank you for your ongoing work and dedication to housing our full community, affordably.
Signed, (continued on next page)

Preston Korst, Habitat for Humanity

Diane Linn, Proud Ground Community Land Trust

Douglas MacLeod and Madeline Kovacs, UrbanRoost Development LLC
Alexis Biddle, 1000 Friends of Oregon

Elizabeth Decker, JET Planning

Kol Peterson, Accessory Dwelling Strategies

Eric Thompson, Oregon Homeworks

Page 206



Page 19 of 27

Neil Heller, Neighborhood Workshop

Shane Boland, Owen Gabbert LLC

Jill Cropp, Studio Cropp Architecture

Annie Fryman, Abodu

Sean Heyworth and Mike Mitchoff, Portland Houseworks
John Miller, BackHome ADU

Garlynn Woodsong, Woodsong Associates

Dirk Knudsen, Dirk Knudsen Real Estate

Joe Wykowski, Community Vision

Page 207



Page 20 of 27

The City of San Diego

Staff Report

DATE ISSUED: 9/9/2020

TO: City Council

FROM: Planning

SUBJECT: Housing Legislation Code Update to the Municipal Code and Local Coastal Program
Primary Kelley Stanco Phone: (619) 236-6545

Contact:

Secondary Contact: Brian Schoenfisch Phone: (619) 533-6457

Council District(s): Citywide

OVERVIEW:

The Housing Legislation Code Update Package addresses California State housing law requirements,
including a number of bills passed at the end of 2019. These include changes to State density bonus,
housing for the homeless, and accessory dwelling unit laws, along with other miscellaneous housing laws.
The Housing Legislation Code Package will provide amendments to the City’s Municipal Code and Local
Coastal Program that are required to implement and comply with State law, as well as additional
amendments tailored to address local needs.

PROPOSED ACTIONS:
Approve the proposed Housing Legislation Code Update to the Municipal Code and Local Coastal Program.

DISCUSSION OF ITEM:

The Land Development Code (LDC) provides the City's regulations for the development and use of property
within the City of San Diego and provides information on zoning, subdivisions, grading and other related
land use activities. The LDC is updated regularly through comprehensive updates that promote in-fill
development and streamline the permitting process, and through single-issue or topic-specific updates as
needed.

The California state legislature passed a number of land use and housing laws in 2019 that became effective
January 1, 2020. These laws primarily address accessory dwelling units, affordable housing, and supportive
housing for the homeless, as well as requirements to preserve dwelling units and “protected dwelling units”
affordable to very low- and low-income households. Local implementation of these laws is mandatory and
amending the LDC to reflect the requirements of these laws will provide clarity for staff, applicants, decision-
makers and the public at large. Additionally, while reviewing the applicable state laws and drafting the
proposed LDC amendments, staff identified some areas where the LDC is no longer in conformance with
the latest state law provisions and the Housing Legislation Code Update package addresses those issues.
Lastly, where permitted, the package also includes adaptations and incentives to address local housing
needs.

Page 1 of 8
Page 208



Page 21 of 27

The Housing Legislation Code Update Package is grouped into four issue areas: Housing for the Homeless,
Affordable Housing Regulations, Accessory Dwelling Units and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units, and
Miscellaneous Housing Items. A brief summary of the proposed amendments is provided below.

l. Housing for the Homeless
The following LDC amendments address items related to housing for the homeless:

e Low Barrier Navigation Centers

Assembly Bill (AB) 101, passed in 2019, requires local jurisdictions to permit Low Barrier
Navigation Centers that connect individuals experiencing homelessness with transitional
housing by-right in mixed-use and commercial zones that permit multi-family. The Housing
Legislation Code Update Package would amend the LDC to define Low Barrier Navigation
Centers as a new Separately Regulated Residential Use and permit them, by-right, as a
Limited Use in all zones required by AB 101.

e Emergency Shelters

Senate Bill 2, passed in 2007, requires local jurisdictions to identify a zone or zones where
emergency shelters are allowed by-right without a conditional use or other discretionary
permit. The zones which permitted emergency shelters as a by-right use were located
primarily within the Midway-Pacific Highway Community, which was rezoned with the
recent comprehensive update to the Community Plan. The Housing Legislation Code
Update Package would amend the Community Commercial (CC) base zone tables to permit
emergency shelters by-right as a Limited Use in all CC zones in order to provide adequate
capacity in compliance with SB 2.

e Transitional Housing and Permanent Supportive Housing

AB 2162, passed in 2018, requires local jurisdictions to permit Transitional Housing
Facilities (THF) and Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) by-right in all zones that permit
multi-family development. The City implemented the requirements of AB 2162 in 2019 with
the 12t Update to the LDC, Phase 1; however, staff has subsequently identified several
zones that were inadvertently excluded. The Housing Legislation Code Update Package
would amend the RM Base Zone Use Table to permit THF in the RM-5-12 zone; the
Industrial Base Zone Use Table to permit THF by-right as a Limited Use in the IP-3-1 base
zone and clarify that THF and PSH are subject to the requirements of footnote 15 related
to residential development; and the Mixed-Use Base Zone Use Table to permit THF and
PSH by-right as Limited Uses.

1. Affordable Housing Regulations (AHR)
The following LDC amendments address items related to the City’s Affordable Housing Regulations:

e Density Bonus for 100% Affordable Projects (Pre-Density Bonus)

AB 1763, passed in 2019, requires local jurisdictions to provide a new density bonus
program that grants a density bonus of 80% outside of Transit Priority Areas (TPAs) and
an unlimited bonus within TPAs to projects that construct at least 100% of the pre-density
bonus units as affordable to very low income and low income households, except that 20%
may be reserved for moderate income households. Eligible projects are also required to
receive 4 incentives and within TPAs, 3 additional stories or 33’ in height. Waivers are not
permitted with this program. The Housing Legislation Code Update Package would amend
Page 2 of 8

Page 209



Page 22 of 27

the City’s Affordable Housing Regulations to provide this required incentive, with a local
adaptation to allow 5 incentives as opposed to 4 in accordance with the City’'s more
permissive allowances for incentives.

Density Bonus for 100% Affordable Projects (Total Project)

This proposed amendment is not mandated by state law; rather, this amendment is a local
adaptation of AB 1763 intended to provide a similar bonus to projects within TPAs that are
fully affordable to very low, low, and moderate income households. The Housing
Legislation Code Update Package would amend the City's Affordable Housing Regulations
to provide an unlimited density bonus, 5 incentives, and an additional 3 stories or 33 feet
to projects within TPAs that provide 100% of the total pre-density bonus and post-density
bonus units as affordable to very low, low, and moderate income households in any
combination.

Density Bonus for Lower Income Student Housing

SB 1227, passed in 2017, requires a local jurisdiction to provide a density bonus of 35%
to projects that provide 20% of the pre-density bonus units as affordable to lower income
students, as defined by the bill. The Housing Legislation Code Update Package would
amend the City’s Affordable Housing Regulations to provide this required incentive, with a
local adaptation to allow 2 incentives where none are provided by state law in accordance
with the City’s more permissive allowances for incentives.

Micro Unit Density Bonus

This proposed amendment is not mandated by state law; rather, this amendment provides
regulatory relief for an existing City density bonus program for micro units, which must
average no more than 600 square feet with no dwelling unit exceeding 800 square feet.
The Housing Legislation Code Update Package would amend the City’s Affordable Housing
Regulations to eliminate the requirement that micro unit density bonus projects comply
with height and setback requirements, and would allow use of the program within the
Downtown Community Planning Area once a project either maximizes the use of other
bonus programs or earns a 3.0 FAR through other bonus programs, whichever is less,
ensuring that other FAR Bonus programs specific to Downtown continue to be utilized.

Density Bonus on FAR-Based Density Sites

This proposed amendment is not mandated by a modification to state law; rather, it is a
correction to the City’s regulations to clarify how density bonuses are calculated within
zones where the density is controlled by floor area ratio, including Downtown and the
recently adopted mixed-use base zones. The Housing Legislation Code Update Package
would amend the City’'s Affordable Housing Regulations to clarify the method by which
density bonuses are calculated for FAR-based density zones where the adopted land use
plan includes an allowable density range in dwelling units per acre (i.e. the mixed use
zones) and those that include only a maximum FAR (i.e. Downtown). Additionally, the
amendments will clarify that incentives cannot be used to increase floor area ratio in such
zones, which would result in an additional density bonus.

Within Downtown, the proposed amendments would change how affordable housing
density bonuses are calculated, since Downtown only regulates intensity through FAR limits
and not dwelling units/acre. Currently, such bonuses are based on the Base Maximum FAR
permitted in Figure H of the Centre City Planned District Ordinance (CCPDO). Under the

Page 3 of 8

Page 210



Page 23 of 27

proposed change, the density bonus would be calculated based on the actual project’s FAR
up to the Maximum FAR permitted in Figure L of the CCPDO. For instance, if a project with
a Base Maximum FAR of 6.0 earned an additional 4.0 FAR from other FAR bonus programs
provided Downtown to achieve a total 10.0 FAR, then the bonus for affordable housing
would be added on top of the 10.0 FAR rather than the 6.0 FAR. This can result in the
production of additional affordable and market rate units, as illustrated in this table utilizing
the Affordable Housing Regulations:

FAR UNITS AFFORDABLE
UNITS

EXISTING REGULATIONS
BASE MAXIMUM FAR 6.0 180
MAXIMUM FAR 10.0 300
AHR BONUS (60%) 3.6 108

TOTAL 13.6 408 27
PROPOSED REGULATIONS
MAXIMUM FAR 10.0 300
AHR BONUS (60%) 6.0 180

TOTAL 16.0 480 45

e Miscellaneous AHR Clean-Up ltems

The Housing Legislation Code Update Package would amend the City’s Affordable Housing
Regulations to provide additional clean-up items to ensure compliance with state density
bonus law, including minor language edits and updates to the parking table.

1. Accessory Dwelling Units and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units

The following LDC amendments address items related to Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) and
Junior Accessory Dwelling Units (JADUS):

e Replacement of the Companion Unit, Junior Unit and Movable Tiny Homes Regulations
with New Accessory Dwelling Unit and Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit Regulations in Order
to Implement New State ADU and JADU Legislation

Several bills were passed at the end of 2019 which addressed ADUs and JADUs, including
AB 68, AB 587, AB 881, and SB 13. In addition to providing increased allowances for ADUs
in conjunction with multiple dwelling unit development, prohibiting the requirement of
replacement parking when garages or carports are converted to ADUs or JADUSs,
prohibiting the rental of ADUs and JADUs for less than 31 days, and requiring local
jurisdictions to permit at least 1 ADU on a premises regardless of maximum lot coverage,
maximum floor area ratio, or minimum opens space requirements, the state legislation also
required local ADU and JADU ordinances to be reviewed by the California Department of
Housing and Community Development (HCD) for consistency with the state regulations. In
order to best align our local regulations with state regulations, the Housing Legislation
Code Update Package proposes to strike the existing “Companion Unit, Junior Unit and
Movable Tiny Houses” regulations in Section 141.0302 in their entirety, and replace them
with new “Accessory Dwelling Unit and Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit Regulations that
fully comply with and exceed the requirements of state law. As part of this overhaul of the
existing regulations, the local defined terms “companion unit” and “junior unit” will be

Page 4 of 8

Page 211



Page 24 of 27

replaced with “Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)” and “Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit
(JADU)”, respectively, and their definitions will be aligned with state law. The new
regulations will exceed the requirements of state law in regard to setbacks, by allowing
ADUs to encroach into interior side and rear yard setbacks up to the property line, where
state law allows the City to require a 4-foot setback in these locations. HCD reviewed the
initial draft of the new regulations, and the proposed amendments reflect comments and
edits received by HCD. Lastly, the recently adopted Movable Tiny Houses, which do not
fall within the state ADU laws, will be pulled out and established as their own Separately
Regulated Residential Use.

e Affordable ADU Incentives

AB 671, passed in late 2019, requires local jurisdictions to incentivize the construction of
deed-restricted affordable ADUs, without specific parameters or direction as to what those
incentives should be. The Housing Legislation Code Update Package would include in the
Accessory Dwelling Unit and Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit regulations a new affordable
ADU incentive that would allow the construction of 1 additional ADU for every ADU deed-
restricted to very low, low, or moderate income households for a period of 15 years.
Outside of TPAs the number of bonus ADUs is limited to 1, and within TPAs there is no
limit on the number of bonus ADUs permitted.

e ADU and JADU Parking

State law, specifically Government Code Section 65852.2(d), prohibits the City from
requiring parking for ADUs in any of the following instances:

o within one-half mile walking distance of public transit;

o within a designated historic district;

o when the ADU is part of the proposed or existing primary residence or an
accessory structure (i.e. if it is attached to an existing structure);

0 when on-street parking permits are required but not offered to the occupant of
the ADU;

0 when there is a car share vehicle within one block of the ADU.

If the above don't apply, then State law allows the City to require parking that does not
exceed 1 space per ADU or per bedroom, whichever is less (Gov Code Section
65852.2(a)(1)(D)(x). Due to the highly limited circumstances in which the City is allowed
to require parking, and given the City's desire to encourage both the construction of ADUs
and JADUs and use of alternative mobility options, the Housing Legislation Code Update
Package will exceed the requirements of state ADU and JADU law by simply eliminating
parking requirements for ADUs and JADUs.

v. Miscellaneous Housing Items
The following LDC amendments address miscellaneous housing items:

e Employee Housing (6 or Fewer)

California Health and Safety Code Section 17021.5(b) requires Employee Housing for 6 or
fewer employees to be permitted by-right in all zones that permit single-family. The
Housing Legislation Code Update Package would amend the LDC to permit Employee

Page 5 of 8
Page 212



Page 25 of 27

Housing (6 or Fewer) by-right as a Limited Use in all zones that permit single dwelling
units.

¢ Residential Development Consistent with the Land Use Plan

This proposed amendment is not mandated by state law; rather, this amendment was
identified by staff as a means to provide regulatory relief and streamline the permitting
process. The Housing Legislation Code Update Package would amend the General Rules
for Base Zones to allow residential and residential mixed-use development that exceeds
the allowable density of the base zone but complies with the density identified in the
adopted land use plan to be permitted by-right with a construction permit, rather than
through a Planned Development Permit process. The amendment would allow sites to
develop in accordance with the density planned and mitigated for through the land use
planning process. This streamlining provision also requires clean-up amendments to the
regulations related to Neighborhood Development Permits, Site Development Permits,
Planned Development Permits, and Affordable, In-Fill Development and Sustainable
Buildings.

e Dwelling Unit Protection Regulations

SB 330, known as the Housing Crisis Act of 2019, requires local jurisdictions to ensure that
the number of dwelling units present on a site is not reduced as a result of a single-family,
multi-family, residential mixed-use (with at least 2/3 residential), transitional housing, or
permanent supportive housing project. It further requires that “protected dwelling units”
affordable to very low income and low income households (including both deed-restricted
units and units occupied by such households without a deed-restriction in place) be
replaced with deed-restricted units affordable to very low income and low income
households. The legislation also includes provisions for relocation assistance and right of
first refusal in limited circumstances. The Housing Legislation Code Update Package would
amend the LDC to include a new Division 12 in Chapter 14, Article 3 entitled the “Dwelling
Unit Protection Regulations.” The Dwelling Unit Protection Regulations implement the
dwelling unit and protected dwelling unit replacement provisions of SB 330 precisely, with
no additional regulations or requirements. The new division would sunset on January 1,
2025, consistent with the sunsetting of SB 330.

The Housing Legislation Code Update Package was presented to stakeholder groups that included City staff
in implementing departments, land development professionals, housing advocates, community planning
representatives, and members of the public who participated in the meetings. The actions taken by these
stakeholders and the Planning Commission are as follows:

e Housing Legislation Code Update Package Ad Hoc Working Group: In 2019, in accordance with
Charter Section 43(b), the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and its subcommittee, the Code
Monitoring Team (CMT) were disbanded as a recommending body with a vote presented to decision
makers. Instead, the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) modified its operational framework to
become a monthly Ad Hoc Committee for a one-year period advising the Development Services on
a variety of process improvements. Additionally, members of the former CMT are invited to serve
on project-specific, temporary citizens’ working groups to advise the Planning Department on LDC
updates.

The Housing Legislation Code Update Package Ad Hoc Working Group was formed in early June
2020, and the proposed package of amendments was reviewed at virtual workshops on June 12t

Page 6 of 8

Page 213



Page 26 of 27

and 26%. The working group discussed the items in the Housing Legislation Code Update Package
and provided feedback on the amendment language as presented. Understanding that the majority
of the proposed amendments are mandated by state law, comments were limited and minor and
have been incorporated into the package wherever possible. Consistent with the group’s function
as an Ad Hoc Working Group, no vote or action was taken.

e Community Planners Committee (CPC): On July 28, 2020 the Housing Legislation Code Update
Package was presented to the Community Planners Committee. The CPC voted 19-5-5 to
recommend approval of all proposed amendments with the exception of two: 1.) a proposed
development incentive for multi-family development within transit priority areas on sites less than
0.5 acre (this item has subsequently been withdrawn); and 2.) the elimination of parking
requirements for all ADUs and JADUs. On August 25, 2020 the CPC discussed the elimination of
parking requirements for all ADUs and JADUs and voted 14-8-4 to recommend approval of the
amendment as proposed.

e The Downtown Community Planning Council: On July 15, 2020 the Downtown Community Planning
Council (DCPC) reviewed the Housing Legislation Code Update and tabled discussion of the item
to their August meeting. On August 19, 2020 the DCPC voted 20-0-0 to recommend approval of
the proposed amendments.

e The Planning Commission: On August 27, 2020 the Planning Commission reviewed the Housing
Legislation Code Update to the Municipal Code and Local Coastal Program and recommended that
the City Council adopt the update as presented by a vote of 6-0-1 with Commissioner Austin
recusing. While not part of the motion, a request from Commissioner Whalen that the maximum
size of an Accessory Dwelling Unit be included in the defined term has been incorporated into the
proposed amendments.

The Housing Legislation Code Update Package implements California state housing and land development
laws and includes several local adaptations and provisions that address local needs to streamline housing
construction. The proposed amendments have been reviewed by stakeholders, including CPC and DCPC,
and the Planning Commission, and all recommending bodies have supported adoption of the amendments
as proposed. Therefore, staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Housing Legislation
Code Update to the Municipal Code and Local Coastal Program.

City Strategic Plan Goal(s)/Objective(s):

Goal #3: Create and sustain a resilient and economically prosperous City. Objective #1: Create dynamic
neighborhoods that incorporate mobility, connectivity, and sustainability. Objective #4: Prepare and
respond to climate change. Objective #7: Increase the net supply of affordable housing.

Fiscal Considerations:
None. Costs associated with implementation of this ordinance would be covered by project applicants.

Charter Section 225 Disclosure of Business Interests:
N/A; there is no contract associated with this action.

Environmental Impact:

The CEQA and Environmental Policy Section of the Planning Department has reviewed the Housing
Legislation Code Update amendments and conducted a consistency evaluation pursuant to CEQA Guidelines
Section 15162. Implementation of this project’s actions would not result in new significant direct, indirect,
or cumulative impacts over and above those disclosed in the previously certified Environmental Impact
Report (EIR) for the 2008 General Plan EIR No. 104495/SCH No. 2006091032, certified by the City Council
on March 10, 2008, Resolution No. R-303473; the 2020 Addendum to the 2008 General Plan EIR No.
104495/SCH No. 2006091032 for the General Plan Housing Element Update, certified by the City Council
on June 18, 2020, Resolution No. R-313099; and the following documents, all referred to as the "CAP

Page 7 of 8

Page 214



Page 27 of 27

FEIR": FEIR for the City of San Diego Climate Action Plan (CAP) (EIR No. 4106603/SCH No.
2015021053), certified by the City Council on December 15, 2015 (City Council Resolution R-310176),
and the Addendum to the CAP, certified by the City Council on July 12, 2016 (City Council Resolution R-
310595). The 2008 General Plan EIR and CAP FEIR are both "Program EIRs" prepared in compliance with
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15168.

Previous Council and/or Committee Actions:
This item will be heard at the Land Use and Housing Committee prior to Council.

Key Stakeholders and Community Outreach Efforts:
Key Stakeholders include neighborhood and community planning groups, residents, visitors and property
owners.

Mike Hansen Erik Caldwell

Department Director Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Smart &
Sustainable Communities

Page 8 of 8

Page 215



Page 216



Page 1 of 2 02a15

BEN BARTLETT
VICE MAYOR

CONSENT CALENDAR
FEBRUARY 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Vice Mayor Ben Bartlett
Subject: Arts and Community Storefront Activation
RECOMMENDATION

Creating a plan/strategy to leverage Berkeley’s arts community and cultural resources to
incentivize the occupation of empty storefronts.

CURRENT SITUATION

According to the 2022 Economic Dashboard report by Berkeley’s Office of Economic
Development, the city has experienced an average citywide commercial vacancy rate increase
of 8.4% since 2017 (City of Berkeley, Office of Economic Development, 2022). The same report
records a normal district commercial vacancy rate of 4-8%. In an analysis made by
Berkeleyside, vacancy rates in Berkeley neighborhoods like Downtown, Telegraph, and
University are shown to be experiencing high rates of vacancy, since the peak of the COVID-19
pandemic (Furio, 2023). While commercial properties remain empty they still generate tax
revenue for the city. this has its implications on whether the city sees a reduction in tax income if
the value for these properties increases.

The City of Berkeley is experiencing an ongoing housing crisis characterized by severe
shortages in housing, resulting in substantial increases in the cost of housing (Duane, 2023).
This ongoing shortage in accessible housing, along with the high rates of commercial
vacancies, contribute to a decline in quality of life and present myriad economic and social
challenges for the city.

BACKGROUND

Negative implications for a neighborhood’s economy may arise from an increase in
commercial vacancies. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development asserts that
blight in cities has the ability to “ decrease surrounding property values, erode the health of local
housing markets, pose safety hazards, and reduce local tax revenue” (2018). The study on
Analyzing blight impacts on urban areas: a multi-criteria approach (Pinto et al., 2021)
recognizes impacts on an individual's quality of life, values and behaviors that may be
influenced by the presence of blight in their city. Blight creates a negative environment for a city
and injures the city’s view of itself.

Arts and culture are a form of “placemaking”, and can be instrumental in helping
community members experience greater success in life.

Public art is part of a “strategy for equitable community development that centers the
needs of people and communities in designing shared public spaces”. Benefits include
increased public safety, individual wellbeing, and an opportunity for self-expression for
historically marginalized individuals experiencing exclusion (Young, 2022).

NeighborWorks features placemaking projects in communities connecting people with

arts and culture (Regan, 2021).

Page 217


https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/Economic-Dashboard-2022.pdf
https://www.berkeleyside.org/2023/04/07/shop-talk-barberella-inspired-hair-salon-has-moved#h-new-reports-show-that-storefront-vacancy-rates-remain-high-in-berkeley
https://www.nytimes.com/2023/05/30/magazine/housing-berkeley-yimby-fight.html?smid=url-share
https://www.huduser.gov/portal/pdredge/pdr-edge-featd-article-012218.html
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0264837721003847
https://housingmatters.urban.org/articles/how-public-art-can-improve-quality-life-and-advance-equity
https://www.neighborworks.org/blog/using-art-to-keep-a-neighborhoods-culture-in-place
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
02a.15


Page 2 of 2

REVIEW OF EXISTING PLANS, PROGRAMS, POLICIES, AND LAWS

San Francisco's New Deal initiative through its Vacant to Vibrant Program is designed to
combat urban blight by financially and professionally supporting artists, small businesses, and
landlords to create pop-ups in commercial buildings that would otherwise be empty (Leahy,
2023).

CONSULTATION/OUTREACH OVERVIEW AND RESULTS

There are various ways to support artists and small businesses to install temporary
activations of empty storefronts, and to incentivize landlords and commercial property owners
use of the commercial space. In the City of Milwaukee, WI, the Artistic Board-Up Neighborhood
Revitalization Initiative covers windows and doors of otherwise abandoned buildings with the
beautiful designs painted by local artists. (City of Milwaukee, Department of Neighborhood
Services, 2013).

Shared cultural spaces can also be leveraged to incentivize the occupation of vacant
commercial spaces. The City of Crenshaw, California has implemented Small Business Anti-
Displacement Strategies and Tools and Public Banking in the City of Los Angeles to promote a
community-owned real-estate model and partnering with public banks to support small business
owners and artists (Osemwengie et al., 2022). This can also take the form of creating centers
that provide training for employment that the community requests a demand for.

OUTCOMES AND EVALUATION
T

CONTACT PERSON

Vice Mayor Ben Bartlett bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info

James Chang ichang@cityofberkeley.info

Tina R. Posner tposner@ecityofberkeley.info

Jade Jaimes-Chavez jadejaimesch.berkeley.d3@gmail.com

ATTACHMENTS AND MATERIALS

City of Berkeley 2022 Economic Dashboard - Office of Economic Development

New reports show that storefront vacancy rates remain high in Berkeley (BerkeleySide)
A Tale of Paradise, Parking Lots and My Mother’'s Berkeley Backyard (NYT)

Mitigating Neighborhood Blight (HUDUSER)

Analyzing blight impacts on urban areas: A multi-criteria approach (Science Direct)
How Public Art Can Improve Quality of Life and Advance Equity (Housing Matters)
Using art to keep a neighborhood's culture in place (NeighborWorks)

SE Will Give You Thousands To Open Pop-Ups in Empty Downtown Storefronts. Here's
How To Apply (The San Francisco Standard)

Vacant to Vibrant by SF New Deal page

NN E

©

Page 218


https://sfstandard.com/2023/04/17/sf-will-give-you-thousands-to-open-pop-ups-in-empty-downtown-storefronts-heres-how-to-apply/
https://www.vibrantsf.org/
mailto:bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:jchang@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:tposner@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:jadejaimesch.berkeley.d3@gmail.com
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/Economic-Dashboard-2022.pdf
https://www.berkeleyside.org/2023/04/07/shop-talk-barberella-inspired-hair-salon-has-moved#h-new-reports-show-that-storefront-vacancy-rates-remain-high-in-berkeley
https://www.nytimes.com/2023/05/30/magazine/housing-berkeley-yimby-fight.html?smid=url-share
https://www.huduser.gov/portal/pdredge/pdr-edge-featd-article-012218.html
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0264837721003847
https://housingmatters.urban.org/articles/how-public-art-can-improve-quality-life-and-advance-equity
https://www.neighborworks.org/blog/using-art-to-keep-a-neighborhoods-culture-in-place
https://sfstandard.com/2023/04/17/sf-will-give-you-thousands-to-open-pop-ups-in-empty-downtown-storefronts-heres-how-to-apply/
https://sfstandard.com/2023/04/17/sf-will-give-you-thousands-to-open-pop-ups-in-empty-downtown-storefronts-heres-how-to-apply/
https://www.vibrantsf.org/

Page 1 of 2 02a16

BEN BARTLETT
VICE MAYOR

CONSENT CALENDAR
FEBRUARY 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Vice Mayor Ben Bartlett
Subject: Establishing a Black Arts and Culture District in the Adeline Corridor
RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a resolution designating the Adeline Corridor as the Black Arts and Culture District.
Include members of Healthy Black Families and Equitable Black Berkeley in the Planning
Committee to emphasize community involvement and focus on arts, culture, and well-being for
South Berkeley residents. Establish a Black Arts and Culture Center.

CURRENT SITUATION

Meetings with Healthy Black Families and Equitable Black Berkeley representatives are ongoing
to help with the vision of what the Black Arts and Culture District will be.

BACKGROUND

The Adeline Corridor's development has been in the making for years to increase affordable
housing, preserve historic structures, and increase economic growth. This area is located
between Dwight Way to 62nd street with a focus on improvement while keeping its charm and
legacy. By 2024, Healthy Black Families will have established their headquarters at 2001 Ashby
Street, which will be a space for community members to receive health care with a focus on
community programming with this larger facility.

REVIEW OF EXISTING PLANS, PROGRAMS, POLICIES, AND LAWS

e City of Berkeley Arts and Culture Plan, 2018-2027
e EIFD - Proposal of creating Enhanced Infrastructure Financing Districts (EIFD) to assist
with funding elements of the Adeline Corridor Plan and future projects. (2021)

CONSULTATION/OUTREACH OVERVIEW AND RESULTS

Reached out to Healthy Black Families and Equitable Black Berkeley.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Establishing this district would uplift members of the South Berkeley community with the
development of affordable housing, thriving new businesses, and encouraging learning through
the arts. Having a Black Arts and Culture Center creates a safe place and gathering area with a
focus on encouraging young artists and bringing economic prosperity. This district will draw
more Black families to Berkeley and encourage Cal alumni to stay after graduation with home-
buying opportunities.

Page 219


https://records.cityofberkeley.info/PublicAccess/api/Document/ATQTxk0Ums9jZK9agjjahldW5E3bbfNLQLYp29%C3%894MvhdqHya29q5zvGsdIkKAl0sM5oAIEr37p99%C3%81HOQKNeQtyo%3D/
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IL7LZibvqHHBkCO4Fi1atmGbnSF3kxYd/view?usp=sharing
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
02a.16


Page 2 of 2

IMPLEMENTATION, ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

e Look for funding support from The Civic Arts Grant program.
e Work with Berkeley Cultural Trust to help engage community support for this new
district.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

Studies have yet to be conducted.

FISCAL IMPACTS

There are no direct fiscal impacts to the City of Berkeley related to the adoption of the Black
Arts and Culture District.

OUTCOMES AND EVALUATION

Establishing a Black Arts and Culture District in South Berkeley will create a vibrant community
for citizens and visitors. The arts encourage civic participation, give a voice to diverse
perspectives, promote intercultural communication, and enhance Berkeley’s economy and
physical environment. Berkeley’s rich history of supporting the arts and social justice activism
will flourish in a Black Arts and Culture District.

CONTACT PERSON

Vice Mayor Ben Bartlett bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info
James Chang ichang@cityofberkeley.info
Tina R. Posner tposner@cityofberkeley.info

ATTACHMENTS AND MATERIALS

Page 220


mailto:bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:jchang@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:tposner@cityofberkeley.info

05

Upcoming Worksessions and Special Meetings
start time is 6:00 p.m. unless otherwise noted

Scheduled Dates

Feb 6

1. OED Economic Dashboards Presentation

Feb 13 (4:00pm)

1. Ashby BART Transit Oriented Development
2. Berkeley — El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan Presentation (tentative)

Unscheduled Workshops and Special Meetings

None

Unscheduled Presentations (City Manager)

W N =

BPD Annual Report (March 12 at 4:00pm - tentative)

Draft Waterfront Specific Plan (December 2024)

Dispatch Needs Assessment Presentation

Presentation on Homelessness/Re-Housing/Thousand-Person Plan (TBD regular agenda)

Page 221



NSalwan
Typewritten Text
05


06

City Council Referrals to the Agenda & Rules Committee and Unfinished
Business for Scheduling

None

Page 222


NSalwan
Typewritten Text
06


07

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT
WORKING CALENDAR FOR SCHEDULING LAND USE MATTERS
BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL
Board/ Appeal Period Public
Address Commission Ends Hearing
NOD — Notices of Decision
Public Hearings Scheduled
1960 San Antonio & 645 Arlington Avenue (Spring Mansion) LPC 2/13/2024
2924 Russell Street (install unenclosed hot tub) ZAB 2/27/2024
3000 Shattuck Avenue (construct 10-story mixed-use building) ZAB TBD
Remanded to ZAB or LPC
Notes
1/11/2024

Page 223


NSalwan
Typewritten Text
07


Page 224



08

No Material
Available for
this ltem

There is no material for this item.

City Clerk Department
2180 Milvia Street
Berkeley, CA 94704
(510) 981-6900

City of Berkeley City Council Agenda Index Webpage:
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas

Page 225


https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas
RThomsen
Typewritten Text
08


Page 226



Page 1 of 5

09

{ CITY ©F

[

Kate Harrison
Councilmember, District 4

CONSENT CALENDAR
November 28, 2023

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Councilmember Harrison (Author) and Vice Mayor Bartlett (Co-Sponsor)

Subject: Amend Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 3.78 To Expand Eligibility
Requirements for Representatives of The Poor to Serve on The Human
Welfare and Community Action Commission

RECOMMENDATION

Amend Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 3.78 to expand eligibility requirements for
Representatives of the Poor to serve on the Human Welfare and Community Action
Commission, or any successor commission, to consider the current geographic
formation of poverty in Berkeley.

CURRENT SITUATION AND RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The Human Welfare and Community Action Commission is a body charged with
addressing the social welfare of the Berkeley community, focusing on those
experiencing poverty and financial hardship within our City. This commission, as defined
by Section 3.78.010, consists of fifteen members, nine of which are appointed by each
Councilmember and the Mayor and six of which are “Representatives of the Poor;” this
refers to residents with incomes below the median area income or significant lived
experience in poverty. As it stands, there are three districts (1, 2, and 3) that were
identified by the 1988 Berkeley City Council, based on the 1980 census data, as having
the most concentrated levels of poverty.! Currently, all six of the Representatives of the
Poor must reside in these districts (two from each of the districts). Interestingly, despite
the changing geographic landscape of poverty in Berkeley within the last 43 years, the
ordinance language and participation criteria has remained largely unchanged. The
requirement for service no longer accurately represents the different and changing
image of poverty in Berkeley. By expanding inclusion requirements for Representatives
of the Poor, the HWCA has more opportunity to secure necessary involvement and
funding in addition to becoming a more representative decision-making body.

Substantive revisions to Chapter 3.78:

B. Six of the members shall be representatives of the poor, who shall te be
elected_as individuals residing anywhere within City limits who earn

143.78.010 Creation of the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission.” Berkeley Municipal
Code. Accessed October 23, 2023. https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/3.78.010

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7140 e TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 644-1174
E-Mail: KHarrison@cityofberkeley.info

Page 227


rthomsen
Typewritten Text
09


Page 2 of 5
Amend Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 3.78 To Expand Eligibility Requirements for CONSENT CALENDAR

Representatives of The Poor to Serve on The Human Welfare and Community Action November 28, 2023
Commission

below the median area income or who have had significant lived experience in

poverty. te—b&eleeted—ﬂ#e#em—&aeh—eﬁkmee—d%asest&bh&hed—bﬁhe—@%y

The section B revision seeks to maintain the focus on representing the economically
marginalized, but recognizes that the distribution of poverty within the community has
shifted. City and community led homelessness initiatives, investments in residence
hotels, and increased RV dwellers are just a few of the many reasons why poverty is
dispersed differently across the city than it was 43 years. Additionally, displacement and
gentrification, which have acutely affected West and South Berkeley neighborhoods,
have also contributed to changing demographics. This amendment suggests electing
representatives of the poor from anywhere within the City, based on contemporary
geographical considerations, as opposed to 1980 Census data.

The section C revision (amended to be section B) intends to concurrently address the
issue of the changing landscape of poverty by eliminating the Community Services
Block Grant (CSBG) target area. The HWAC Commission relies on CSBG funding to
accomplish commission goals, but needs to fulfill certain participant criteria to be able to
access the funding. Currently, because there is precarious membership, the HWAC
commission’s funding and resources are threatened. The proposed change expands the
target area to cover the entire City, ensuring section B revision’s feasibility. The CSBG
target area is no longer limited to the former poverty districts drawn according

to the 1980 census because the community of individuals in poverty are now spread
into a wider area of the community as a result of placement of homeless individuals into
residence hotels and RV parking, along with other programs, into other geographical
areas.

These amendments to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 3.78.010 ensure that the
Berkeley Human Welfare and Community Action Commission remains effective in
addressing their goals. These revisions are crucial to be successful in representing a
series of contemporary socio-economic developments and demonstrating the City's
commitment to adapt to changing circumstances.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
No fiscal impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
This budget referral has no effect on environmental sustainability.

CONTACT PERSON

Page 228


https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/3.999

Page 3 of 5
Amend Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 3.78 To Expand Eligibility Requirements for CONSENT CALENDAR

Representatives of The Poor to Serve on The Human Welfare and Community Action November 28, 2023
Commission

Councilmember Kate Harrison, (510) 981-7140

ATTACHMENTS
1. Revised BMC Chapter 3.78

Page 229



Page 4 of 5

ORDINANCE NO. -N.S.

AMENDING CHAPTER 3.78 TO THE BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE TO EXPAND
ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS FOR REPRESENTATIVES OF THE POOR

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 3.78.010 is amended to read as follows:
3.78.010 Creation of the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission.

A Berkeley Human Welfare and Community Action Commission is hereby created. The
membership of such commission shall be fifteen:

A. Nine of the members shall be appointed by Berkeley City Councilmembers, in
accordance with the Fair Representation Ordinance.

1. Four of the nine members of the commission appointed by the council shall
be members or officials of business, industry, labor, religious, welfare, education,
or major groups and interests in the community, as required by California
Government Code Sections 12736(e), 12750(a)(2), and 12751, the language of
which is incorporated herein by reference.

2. Representatives of private sector organizations shall be empowered to speak
and act on behalf of the organizations they represent in connection with the
b